
Document Number: 1770281 V1 

 
 
 
 

 
MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2019 

COUNCIL MEETING – 6:00 PM 
 

“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 15, 2019 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 8, 2019 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 

Day of Mourning – April 28, 2019 

Neighbourhood House Week – May 5 to 11, 2019 

MS Awareness Month – May 2019 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *3, *4, *5, *6, *7, *8 and *9 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be 
considered separately or in one motion. 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536” 

(Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) 
 
*4. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8707” 

(2019 Project Plan Funding) 
 
*5. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 

(2019 Project Plan Funding) 
 
*6. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8709” 

(Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) 
 
  

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL TO 
COMMENCE AT 6:00 PM, IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2019



The Corporation of the   Council Agenda for 
City of North Vancouver Page 2 April 15, 2019 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – Continued  
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*7. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, March 29, 2019 
 
REPORTS 
 
*8. Transfer of Shipyard Artifacts Deaccessioned from the Museum Collection 
 

Information Report, April 9, 2019 – “Lot 5 – Artifact Integration” 
 
*9. Council Conference Attendance – Lower Mainland Local Government Association 

(LMLGA) – 2019 Annual General Meeting and Conference – May 8-10, 2019 
 
10. Funding Appropriation Request – Affordable Housing Initiatives 
 
11. Sunrise Parkland Adjustment – Statutory Right-of-Way – Metro Vancouver Water 

Main and Parks Dedication Bylaw 
 

Item 12 refers. 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
12. “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706” 

(Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) 
 
REPORT 
 
13. 2019 Tax Rates Bylaw 
 

Item 14 refers. 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
14. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704” 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – 125 East 20th Street – 6:30 PM 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
15. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” 

(Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 
125 East 20th Street, CD-718) 

 
16. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource Society for 

the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718, Rental 
Housing Commitments) 

  



The Corporation of the   Council Agenda for 
City of North Vancouver Page 3 April 15, 2019 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING – Continued  
 
17. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” 

(Accessory Lounge Use) 
 

Public Hearing waived. 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(e) [land matter], 90(1)(g) [litigation], 
90(1)(i) [legal advice] and 90(1)(k) [proposed services]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 15, 2019 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 8, 2019 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 

Day of Mourning – April 28, 2019 

Neighbourhood House Week – May 5 to 11, 2019 

MS Awareness Month – May 2019 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 
8500.” 
 
The time allotted for each speaker appearing before Council during the Public Input Period is two 
minutes, with the number of speakers set at five persons.  Speakers’ presentations will be audio and 
video recorded, as well as live-streamed on the Internet, and will form part of the public record. 
 
To make a submission to Council during the Public Input Period, a person must complete the Public Input 
Period sign-up sheet at City Hall prior to the Regular Council Meeting.  A person who fails to complete, or 
only partially completes, the Public Input Period sign-up sheet will not be permitted to make a submission 
to Council during the Public Input Period.  The sign-up sheet will be available on the table in the lobby 
outside the Council Chamber from 5:30 pm until 5:55 pm before a Council meeting. 
 
When appearing before Council, speakers are requested to state their name and address for the record.  
Speakers may display materials on the document camera at the podium in the Council Chamber and 
provide written materials to the City Clerk for distribution to Council, only if these materials have been 
provided to the City Clerk by 4:00 pm on the date of the meeting. 
 
The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for input only, without the expectation of a response from 
Council, and places the speaker’s concern on record. 
 
Speakers must comply with the General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure 
Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 12.25(2). 
 
Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public Hearing/Public 
Meeting and to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when those matters are 
scheduled on the same evening’s agenda and an opportunity for public input is provided when the 
particular item comes forward for discussion. 
 
Please address the Mayor as “Mayor, followed by his/her surname” or “Your Worship”.  Councillors 
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”. 
  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *3, *4, *5, *6, *7, *8 and *9 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be 
considered separately or in one motion. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536” 

(Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8536” (Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) be adopted, signed by the 
Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
*4. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8707” 

(2019 Project Plan Funding) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8707” (2019 Project Plan Funding) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City 
Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
*5. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 

(2019 Project Plan Funding) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 
(2019 Project Plan Funding) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and 
affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
*6. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8709” 

(Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8709” (Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) be adopted, signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*7. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, March 29, 2019 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2019 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the correspondence of Metro Vancouver, dated March 29, 2019, regarding 
the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

 
REPORTS 
 
*8. Transfer of Shipyard Artifacts Deaccessioned from the Museum Collection 

– File: 15-7930-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Director, North Vancouver Museum and Archives, April 1, 2019 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, North Vancouver Museum and 
Archives, dated April 1, 2019, entitled “Transfer of Shipyard Artifacts 
Deaccessioned from the Museum Collection”: 
 
THAT Council authorize the North Vancouver Musem and Archives (NVMA) 
Commission to deaccession 93 artifacts owned solely by the City of North 
Vancouver; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the NVMA Commission to transfer the 93 
deaccessioned artifacts and 5 unaccessioned objects owned jointly by the City 
and the District of North Vancouver, to the City of North Vancouver for integration 
into the Lot 5 project. 

 
Information Report, April 9, 2019 – “Lot 5 – Artifact Integration” 

 
  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
*9. Council Conference Attendance – Lower Mainland Local Government Association 

(LMLGA) – 2019 Annual General Meeting and Conference – May 8-10, 2019 
– File: 01-0390-01-0001/2019 

 
Report: City Clerk, April 9, 2019 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the City Clerk, dated April 9, 2019, entitled “Council 
Conference Attendance – Lower Mainland Local Government Association 
(LMLGA) – 2019 Annual General Meeting and Conference – May 8-10, 2019”: 
 
THAT Council members be authorized to attend the LMLGA Annual General 
Meeting and Conference, to be held May 8-10, 2019, at Harrison Hot Springs, BC; 
 
THAT Council Conference Attendance Policy No. C99C be amended to include 
the annual LMLGA Annual General Meeting and Conference as an approved 
conference for Council to attend; 
 
THAT expenses be paid in accordance with City Policy; 
 
AND THAT the funds be provided from the Conference Education Travel Account. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
REPORTS 
 
10. Funding Appropriation Request – Affordable Housing Initiatives 

– File: 10-5040-03-0003/2019 
 

Report: Planner 2, April 3, 2019 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 3, 2019, entitled “Funding 
Appropriation Request – Affordable Housing Initiatives”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1925) an amount of $300,000 be appropriated 
from the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund to support the delivery of new 
affordable housing initiatives; 

 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 
2022, the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Affordable 
Housing Reserve Fund. 

  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
11. Sunrise Parkland Adjustment – Statutory Right-of-Way – Metro Vancouver Water 

Main and Parks Dedication Bylaw – File: 08-3010-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Section Manager, Real Estate, April 8, 2019 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Section Manager, Real Estate, dated April 8, 
2019, entitled “Sunrise Parkland Adjustment – Statutory Right-of-Way – Metro 
Vancouver Water Main and Parks Dedication Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8706” (Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) be considered; 
 
THAT staff be directed to initiate an Alternative Approval Process for parklands 
located on the southwest corner of Keith Road and Brooksbank Avenue; 
 
THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to sign any necessary 
documentation to give effect to this motion; 
 
AND THAT any proceeds received for the fees for the Statutory Right-of-Way 
under the parkland be directed to the Tax Sale Land Reserve Fund. 

 
Item 12 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
12. “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706” 

(Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706” 
(Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) be given first, second and third readings. 

 
  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
REPORT 
 
13. 2019 Tax Rates Bylaw – File: 05-1970-05-0005/2019 
 

Report: Director, Finance, April 9, 2019 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated April 9, 2019, entitled 
“2019 Tax Rates Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704” be considered.  

 
Item 14 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
14. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704” be given first, second and third 
readings. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – 125 East 20th Street 
 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” (Vancouver 
Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, 
CD-718) and “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource 
Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718, 
Rental Housing Commitments) would rezone the subject property from a Medium 
Density Apartment Residential (RM-1) Zone to a Comprehensive Development 718 
(CD-718) Zone to permit the development of an 85-unit rental building at a height of 6 
storeys and a density of 2.59 times the lot area. Of the 85 units, 10 units will be secured 
as non-market rental housing. A reduction to both vehicle and bicycle parking spaces is 
proposed with an overall provision of 49 vehicle parking spaces and 119 bicycle parking 
spaces. 
 
Bylaw Nos. 8701 and 8702 to be considered under Items 15 and 16. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Staff presentation 
Applicant presentation 
Representations from the public 
Questions from Council 
Motion to conclude the Public Hearing 

  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
15. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” 

(Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 
125 East 20th Street, CD-718) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” 
(Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 
125 East 20th Street, CD-718) be given third reading. 

 
16. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource Society for 

the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718, Rental 
Housing Commitments) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource 
Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, 
CD-718, Rental Housing Commitments) be given third reading. 

 
17. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” 

(Accessory Lounge Use) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” 
(Accessory Lounge Use) be given third reading. 

 
 Public Hearing waived. 
 
  



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting – April 15, 2019 
 

 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(e) [land matter], 90(1)(g) [litigation], 
90(1)(i) [legal advice] and 90(1)(k) [proposed services]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 1519039 

 
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14th  STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY, APRIL 8, 2019 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor T. Hu  
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor T. Valente  
 
 
 
 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, City Clerk 
C. Baird, Deputy City Clerk 
J. Peters, Assistant City Clerk 
B. Pearce, Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
H. Reinhold, Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate Services 
D. Foldi, Project Manager, Strategic Initiatives 
S. Antoniali, Section Manager, Real Estate 
L. Siracusa, Manager, Shipyards and Waterfront 
B. Themens, Director, Finance 
L. Garber, Deputy Director, Finance 
B. Johnson, Revenue Accountant 
D. Pope, City Engineer 
K. Magnusson, Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and 

Environment 
M. Epp, Director, Planning and Development 
H. Evans, Community Planner L. Orr, Manager, Business and 

Community Partnerships 
P. Duffy, Manager, Bylaw Services  
T. Ryce, Assistant Manager, Inspections 
C. Nichols, Manager, Human Resources 
G. Munro, Manager, Information Technology 
G. Penway, Acting Director, Community and Partner Engagement 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 8, 2019 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 1, 2019 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 

• Ron Sostad, 231 East 15th Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the 2019 
Financial Plan.  

• Linda Sullivan, 1262 West 23rd Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the Harry 
Jerome Community Recreation Centre and support for a 50 metre pool. 

• Cathy Roddie, 1246 West 23rd Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the Harry 
Jerome Community Recreation Centre and support for a 50 metre pool. 

• Devin Dougherty, 511-255 West 1st Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding property 
taxes. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda”, be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Financial Plan for the Years 2019 to 2028 Bylaw, 2019, No. 8703” 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2019 to 2028 Bylaw, 2019, No. 8703” be adopted, 
signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
*4. “Officers and Officials Bylaw, 2013, No. 8322, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8710” 

(Statutory Officers / Designation of Municipal Employees / Exempt Benefit Option / 
Language Clarification) 

 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Officers and Officials Bylaw, 2013, No. 8322, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8710” (Statutory Officers / Designation of Municipal Employees / Exempt Benefit 
Option / Language Clarification) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and 
affixed with the corporate seal. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

DELEGATION 
 
Jonathan A. Kouwenberg, Commander, Royal Canadian Navy, HMCS Vancouver, provided a 
presentation regarding the 25-Year Anniversary of HMCS Vancouver and responded to 
questions of Council. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
5. Jonathan A. Kouwenberg, Commander, Royal Canadian Navy – HMCS Vancouver, 

March 29, 2019 
 

Re: HMCS Vancouver 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
THAT the correspondence from Jonathan A. Kouwenberg, Commander, Royal 
Canadian Navy, dated March 29, 2019, regarding the “HMCS Vancouver”, be received 
with thanks. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
REPORT 
 
6. Sidewalk Snow and Ice Removal – Amendment to Street and Traffic Bylaw 

– File: 11-5400-11-0001/2019 
 

Report: Manager, Engineering Planning and Design, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Engineering Planning and Design, dated 
March 27, 2019, entitled “Sidewalk Snow and Ice Removal – Amendment to Street 
and Traffic Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8536” (Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) be considered. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
7. “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536” 

(Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8536” (Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) be given first and second readings. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS – Continued  
 
7. “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536” 

(Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) – Continued  
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, 
No. 8536” (Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal) be given third reading. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
REPORTS 
 

8. Child Care Business Licence Application BUS-0028152 – Greenways Child Care 
Centre (570 West 21st Street) – Initial Consideration by Council 
– File: 10-4750-10-0001/2019 

 
Report: Community Planner, and Manager, Business and Community Partnerships, 

March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Hu 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Community Planner and the Manager, Business and 
Community Partnerships, dated March 27, 2019, entitled “Child Care Business 
Licence Application BUS-0028152 – Greenways Child Care Centre (570 West 21st 
Street) – Initial Consideration by Council”: 
 
THAT the Public Meeting be waived for Business Licence Application BUS-0028152; 
 
AND THAT staff bring forward Business Licence Application BUS-0028152 for Council 
approval. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

9. Assessment Averaging and Assessment Phasing Options 
– File: 05-1950-01-0001/2019 

 
Report: Director, Finance, March 27, 2019 

 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated March 27, 2019, entitled 
“Assessment Averaging and Assessment Phasing Options”: 
 
THAT the Mayor, on behalf of Council, write to the BC Minister of Finance to request a 
review of the “property’s highest and best use” methodology for property assessment 
purposes to reduce the impact this practice is having on small businesses in Metro 
Vancouver; 

…Continued 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS – Continued  
 

9. Assessment Averaging and Assessment Phasing Options 
– File: 05-1950-01-0001/2019 – Continued  
 
AND THAT a copy of the letter to BC Minister of Finance be forwarded to North Shore 
Members of the Legislative Assembly, the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement 
Association, the North Vancouver Chamber of Commerce and Metro Vancouver 
municipalities. 

 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
THAT the following wording be added to the motion, at the end of the second clause: 
 
“and a review of the impact of the current province-wide non-residential flat rate for 
school property taxes and its impact on small businesses in Metro Vancouver” 
 

Amendment motion, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Main motion, as amended, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
10. 2019 Property Tax Increase Distribution Options – File: 05-1610-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Director, Finance, March 27, 2019 
 

The Director, Finance, provided a presentation regarding 2019 Property Tax Increase 
Distribution Options and responded to questions of Council. 

 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Hu 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Finance, dated March 27, 2019, entitled 
“2019 Property Tax Increase Distribution Options”: 
 
THAT 2019 Property Tax Increase Option 2 (2% shift from Business to Residential 
Class) be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT staff bring forward a Tax Rate Bylaw (2019), for adoption before May 15, 
2019, in accordance with the Community Charter. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
11. 2019 Project Plan – Funding Appropriations 1901-1917; Bylaw 8707 and 

Bylaw 8708 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2019 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Finance, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Finance, dated March 27, 2019, 
entitled, “2019 Project Plan – Funding Appropriations 1901-1917; Bylaw 8707 and 
Bylaw 8708”: 

…Continued 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS – Continued  
 

11. 2019 Project Plan – Funding Appropriations 1901-1917; Bylaw 8707 and 
Bylaw 8708 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2019 – Continued  
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1901) an amount of $6,069,771 be appropriated from 
the Annual Budget – Transfer to General Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 
2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1902) an amount of $198,779 be appropriated from the 
Tax Sale Land Reserve Fund – Principal for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1903) an amount of $95,000 be appropriated from the 
Tax Sale Land Reserve Fund – Interest for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1904) an amount of $3,454,875 be appropriated from 
the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1905) an amount of $62,787 be appropriated from the 
General Building Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1906) an amount of $51,234 be appropriated from the 
Justice Administration Building Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 
Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1907) an amount of $485,346 be appropriated from the 
Infrastructure Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1908) an amount of $41,780 be appropriated from the 
General Equipment Replacement Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1909) an amount of $300,000 be appropriated from the 
Fire Equipment Replacement Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1910) an amount of $171,258 be appropriated from the 
Computer Equipment Replacement Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1911) an amount of $840,000 be appropriated from the 
Engineering Equipment Replacement Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1912) an amount of $65,450 be appropriated from the 
Sustainable Transportation Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project 
Plan; 
 

…Continued 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS – Continued  
 

11. 2019 Project Plan – Funding Appropriations 1901-1917; Bylaw 8707 and 
Bylaw 8708 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2019 – Continued  
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1913) an amount of $120,000 be appropriated from the 
Parking Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1914) an amount of $85,000 be appropriated from the 
Public Art Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1915) an amount of $75,000 be appropriated from the 
Carbon Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1916) an amount of $150,000 be appropriated from the 
Environmental Stewardship Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1917) an amount of $2,502,467 be appropriated from 
the General Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the 2019 Project Plan; 
 
THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8707” (2019 Project Plan Funding), a Bylaw to appropriate an amount of $527,175 
from the DCC (Transportation) Reserve Fund to fund the 2019 Project Plan, be 
considered; 
 
THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 
(2019 Project Plan Funding), a Bylaw to appropriate an amount of $49,500 from the 
DCC ( Parks) Reserve Fund to fund the 2019 Project Plan, be considered; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective fund. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
12. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8707” (2019 

Project Plan Funding) 
 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8707” (2019 Project Plan Funding) be given first and second readings. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8707” (2019 Project Plan Funding) be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS – Continued  
 
13. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 

(2019 Project Plan Funding) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 
(2019 Project Plan Funding) be given first and second readings. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” 
(2019 Project Plan Funding) be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
REPORTS 
 
14. New Museum for North Vancouver Museum and Archives (NVMA) – Funding 

Appropriation – 2019-2028 Plan – File: 02-0800-30-0001/1 
 

Report: Project Manager, Strategic Initiatives, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Project Manager, Strategic Initiatives, dated March 27, 
2019, entitled “New Museum for North Vancouver Museum and Archives (NVMA) – 
Funding Appropriation – 2019-2028 Plan”: 
  
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1919) an amount of $525,000 be appropriated from the 
Civic Amenity Reserve Fund to fund the New Museum for the NVMA Project; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve 
Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
15. Central Waterfront Public Realm – Appropriation – File: 13-6740-20-0003/1 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate Services, and Manager, Shipyards 
and Waterfront, March 27, 2019 

 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate Services, 
and Manager, Shipyards and Waterfront, dated March 27, 2019, entitled “Central 
Waterfront Public Realm – Appropriation”: 

…Continued 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 9 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS – Continued  
 

15. Central Waterfront Public Realm – Appropriation – File: 13-6740-20-0003/1 – 
Continued 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1920) an amount of $1,200,000 be appropriated from 
the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the programming, 
maintenance and operations of the Central Waterfront Public Realm; 
 
THAT part of the funding be used to add up to five new regular full-time positions to 
the City’s staff complement in support of the operations of the Central Waterfront 
Public Realm; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve 
Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
16. City Cemetery Program Funding Appropriation 2019 – File: 08-3010-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Section Manager, Real Estate, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Section Manager, Real Estate, dated March 27, 2019, 
entitled “City Cemetery Program Funding Appropriation 2019”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1922) an amount of $100,000 be appropriated from the 
City Cemetery Program Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the City Cemetery 
Program;  
 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the City Cemetery Program 
Reserve Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
17. Pedestrian Scale Lighting – Grand Boulevard Park – Funding Appropriation 

– File: 12-6240-20-0047/1 
 

Report: Pedestrian and Streetscape Planner, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Mayor Buchanan 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Pedestrian and Streetscape Planner, dated March 27, 
2019, entitled “Pedestrian Scale Lighting – Grand Boulevard Park – Funding 
Appropriation”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1923) an amount of $750,000 be appropriated from the 
Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the Pedestrian Scale Lighting 
– Grand Boulevard Park Project; 

…Continued 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS – Continued 
 

17. Pedestrian Scale Lighting – Grand Boulevard Park – Funding Appropriation 
– File: 12-6240-20-0047/1 – Continued  
 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve 
Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
18. Moodyville Traffic Signals – Funding Appropriation – File: 16-8330-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Traffic Engineer, March 27, 2019 
 

Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Traffic Engineer, dated March 27, 2019, entitled 
“Moodyville Traffic Signals – Funding Appropriation”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1921) an amount of $308,050 be appropriated from the 
Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the Moodyville Traffic Signals 
Project; 
 
THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8709” (Moodyville Traffic Signals Project), a Bylaw to appropriate an amount of 
$301,950 from the DCC (Transportation) Reserve Fund to fund the project, be 
considered; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective fund. 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
19. “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8709” 

(Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8709” (Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) be given first and second readings. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8709” (Moodyville Traffic Signals Project) be given third reading. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

REPORTS 
 
20. St. David’s Avenue Greenway Connection – Funding Appropriation 

– File: 12-5810-01-0001/2019 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment, 
dated March 27, 2019, entitled “St. David’s Avenue Greenway Connection – Funding 
Appropriation”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1926) an amount of $700,000 be appropriated from the 
Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the St. David’s Avenue 
Greenway Connection Project; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve 
Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
21. Marine-Main Corridor Improvements – Funding Appropriation 

– File: 16-8350-20-0033/1 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment, March 27, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy  
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment, 
dated March 27, 2019, entitled “Marine-Main Corridor Improvements – Funding 
Appropriation”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #1927) an amount of $1,525,000 be appropriated from 
the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the Marine-Main Corridor 
Improvements Project; 

 
AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve 
Fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
COUNCIL REPORT 
 
Nil. 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared a recess at 7:40 pm for the Public Clarification Period and 
reconvened the meeting immediately after. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 12 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

COUNCIL INQUIRIES 
 

Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 

Nil. 
 
CITY CLERK’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, pursuant to the 
Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(e) [land matter], 90(1)(g) [litigation] and 90(1)(i) 
[legal advice]. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed session, at 7:41 pm and 
reconvened at 9:22 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
3. Land Matter – File: 08-3010-01-0001/2019 
 

Report:    Section Manager, Real Estate, March 28, 2019 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
 PURSUANT to the report of the Section Manager, Real Estate, dated March 28, 2019: 
 

THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, be ratified; 
 

AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Section Manager, 
Real Estate, dated March 28, 2019, remain in the Closed session. 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Hu 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:23 pm. 
 
“Certified Correct by the City Clerk” 
______________________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 



PROCLAMATION
DAY OF MOURNING 

WHEREAS the Day of Mourning honours the memory of those who 
have lost their lives, been injured or suffered from work 
related incidents or disease; and 

WHEREAS in British Columbia alone, 131 workers lost their lives in 
2018 as a result of workplace injury and occupational 
disease, the prevention of which can only be achieved by 
collectively focusing our efforts on creating safe and 
healthy workplaces; and 

WHEREAS the Day of Mourning provides an opportunity to raise 
public awareness of occupational health and safety and to 
remind our community to recommit to safety in the 
workplace; 

NOW THEREFORE I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, 
do hereby proclaim April 28, 2019 as DAY OF 
MOURNING in the City of North Vancouver, the traditional 
territories of the Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 

So proclaimed on Monday, April 15, 2019 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 



 
PROCLAMATION 

 

NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSE WEEK 
 

WHEREAS North Shore Neighbourhood House contributes to our 
vibrant city through innovative programs that help people 
live healthy, full lives, and plays an important role in 
strengthening the social and cultural fabric of our 
community; and 
 

WHEREAS North Shore Neighbourhood House offers a range of 
services and supports including childcare, newcomer 
support, youth leadership, adult literacy, programs for 
seniors and elders, community meals, cultural events, 
volunteer opportunities and more, all of which improve 
social awareness, participation and quality of life for 
residents; and  
 

WHEREAS North Shore Neighbourhood House reflects our City’s 
commitment to nurturing an engaged, inclusive, and 
socially equitable community by offering safe, inviting 
places where people from all backgrounds and walks of 
life are welcomed and included;  
 

NOW THEREFORE I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, 
do hereby proclaim May 5 to 11, 2019 as 
NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSE WEEK in the City of North 
Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and 
Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 

 
So proclaimed on Monday, April 15, 2019 

 

 
Mayor Linda Buchanan 



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

MS AWARENESS MONTH 
 
WHEREAS Multiple Sclerosis (MS) is a chronic, often disabling 

neurological disease for which there is no known cause, 
prevention or cure and symptoms may include problems 
with numbness, coordination, vision and speech, extreme 
fatigue and even paralysis; and  
 

WHEREAS an estimated one in 340 Canadians and more than 12,000 
British Columbians live with MS, and BC continues to lead 
the way in MS research; and 
 

WHEREAS the Multiple Sclerosis Society of Canada, founded in 1948 
is the only national voluntary organization in Canada that 
supports both MS research and services to enhance 
quality of life and to find a cure for people living with MS; 
 

NOW THEREFORE I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, 
do hereby proclaim May 2019 as MS AWARENESS 
MONTH in the City of North Vancouver, the traditional 
territories of the Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 

 
So proclaimed on Monday, April 15, 2019 

 

 
Mayor Linda Buchanan 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536  Document: 1749400-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8536 

A bylaw to amend “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234”  

The Council of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows:  

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8536” (Sidewalks – Snow and Ice Removal). 

2. Part 8: Regulation of Street Usage of “Street and Traffic Bylaw, 1991, No. 6234” is hereby 
amended as follows: 

A. In Section 814: Sidewalks – Removal of Snow and Ice, by replacing this section in its 
entirety with the following: 

 
The owner or occupier of real property must remove any accumulation of snow or ice 
from the sidewalks and footpaths bordering the real property within 24 hours after the 
cessation of any snowfall that caused any accumulation of snow or ice on any sidewalk 
or footpath, or prior to the depth of snow accumulation exceeding ten centimetres; 

 
 

READ a first time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 8th day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8707 Document: 1756696-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8707 

A Bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the 
Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund 

for the 2019 Project Plan Appropriations. 

WHEREAS the entire City is listed in “Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471” as an 
area where development cost charges for transportation will be levied; 
 
AND WHEREAS the development of highway facilities, other than off street parking, is a capital 
cost permitted to be paid using Development Cost Charge funds under Section 566 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8707” (2019 Project Plan Funding). 
 
2. The following amounts are hereby appropriated from the Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding: 
 

A. $148,500 for the “New Sidewalks to Complete Pedestrian Network” project; 
B. $19,800 for the “Bicycle Route Improvements” project; 
C. $59,400 for the “Traffic Signal at Keith & Hendry (Pedestrian & Bike Safety)” project; 
D. $180,675 for the “Traffic Signal at 3rd Street & St. David's” project; 
E. $74,250 for the “Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation” project; 
 and 
F. $44,550 for the “Transportation Plan Update” project. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 8th day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708 Document: 1756698-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8708 

A Bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the 
Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund 

for the 2019 Project Plan Appropriations. 

WHEREAS the entire City is listed in “Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471” as an 
area where development cost charges for parks will be levied; 
 
AND WHEREAS the development of park land is a capital cost permitted to be paid using 
Development Cost Charge funds under Section 566 of the Local Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charge 

(Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8708” (2019 Project Plan Funding). 
 
2. The following amount is hereby appropriated from the Development Cost Charge (Parks) 

Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding: 
 

A. $49,500 for the “1600 Eastern Avenue Park” project. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 8th day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8709 Document: 1757989-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8709 

A Bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the 
Development Cost Charge (Transportation) Reserve Fund 

for the Moodyville Traffic Signals Project. 

WHEREAS the entire City is listed in “Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471” as an 
area where development cost charges for transportation will be levied; 
 
AND WHEREAS the development of highway facilities, other than off street parking, is a capital 
cost permitted to be paid using Development Cost Charge funds under Section 566 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2019, No. 8709” (Moodyville Traffic Signals 
Project). 

 
2. An amount of $301,950 is hereby appropriated from the Development Cost Charge 

(Transportation) Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding the Moodyville Traffic Signals 
project. 

 
READ a first time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 8th day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the 8th day of April, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, March 29, 2019
Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material relating to any of the 
following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. For more information, please contact 
Grea. Valour metrovancouver.ora or Kelly.SinoskifS) metrovancouver.ora

Metro Vancouver Regional District

Engagement for the Regional Industrial Lands Strategy APPROVED

The Board approved the scope of the consultation for the Regional Industrial Lands Strategy and 
authorized staff to proceed with the engagement process as presented.

Regional Industrial Lands Strategy: Survey of Industrial Users RECEIVED

As part of developing the Regional Industrial Lands Strategy, a series of white papers, reports, and other 
deliverables are under development. In 2018, the Task Force expressed interest in better understanding 
the issues and challenges facing industrial users and tenants in the region.

The Board received for information the results of a survey of industrial users undertaken as part of the 
Regional Industrial Lands Strategy project.

Economic Value of Industrial Lands to the Metro Vancouver Region RECEIVED

The Board received for information a consultant report on the economic value of industrial lands to the 
Metro Vancouver Region.

Intervistas completed a study on the economic impact of Metro Vancouver's industrial lands to the 
regional, provincial, and national economy. The report considers interdependencies with non-industrial 
lands and activity, the importance of industrial activity in diversifying the economy, alternative industrial 
land locations outside of the region, and the consequences of an insufficient supply of industrial lands in 
the region.

The study concludes that industrial lands provide the foundation for a significant amount of the region's 
total economic activity, with a disproportionately large amount of employment, and wages above the 
regional average. Industrial lands serve both an important regional role and, as a facilitator of trade-
enabling activities, a critical national role. The extent to which these activities can be moved elsewhere 
will vary by sector and may be limited. The potential effects of a lack of industrial land on the regional 
economy, while difficult to ascertain, will also vary by sector and will likely be negative for the region as 
a whole.

Reviewed by:

WNiiiJu?Aa

CAO
1



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canadd V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Metro Vancouver's 2018 Zero Waste Conference RECEIVED

The Board received a report with an overview of Metro Vancouver's Eighth Annual Zero Waste 
Conference, titled "A Future without Waste: The Journey to A Circular Economy," which was held on 
Thursday, November 8 and Friday, November 9, 2018 at the Vancouver Convention Centre.

The focus of the 2018 Zero Waste Conference was to highlight Canadian leadership on important issues 
of waste prevention and the circular economy while providing opportunities from governments, 
businesses and innovators from around the globe, which are continuing to break ground and serve as 
inspiration to push harder in terms of lasting solutions that will lead to a future without waste.

2018 Regional Create Memories Not Garbage Campaign Results RECEIVED

The Board received for information a report with a summary of the results of the 2018 regional holiday 
waste reduction campaign, "Create Memories, Not Garbage."

The campaign supports the waste reduction objectives in the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan. 
The 2018 campaign was in market from September 24, 2018 to January 15, 2019. The objectives were to: 
raise awareness of the needless amount waste produced over the holiday season; encourage audiences 
to celebrate in ways that produce less waste; and, to reduce the amount of waste produced in Metro 
Vancouver during the holiday season over the long term.

Consideration of the Village of Anmore's Amended Regional Context Statement APPROVED

The Board accepted the Village of Anmore's amended Regional Context Statement as submitted to Metro 
Vancouver on January 11, 2019.

The Village of Anmore sought to amend its Regional Context Statement to include the Anmore Green 
Estates site within the Urban Containment Boundary and to designate it as General Urban.

Village Council has also submitted a formal request to the GVS&DD Board seeking support to become a 
member of the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District and to connect the 51 existing 
residential units of Anmore Green Estates to the regional sewerage system. The requested sewer 
connection via Port Moody is intended to address the environmental and public health concerns related 
to the development's failing septic sewage treatment system, and not to provide excess servicing capacity 
that could accommodate additional development.

Office Development in Metro Vancouver's Urban Centres - 2018 Update APPROVED

The Board:

a)
b)

received for informatsion-the corrsciltent’report;
endorsed the recomifiendations for Metro Vancouver as set out on page 5 of the report, with the

jj a

addition of the follov|ing:

1 *' ) |

2



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

• 8. Further to recommendations #2, #4, and #5, specifically outline the tools and best practices 
member municipalities can utilize to foster a greater share of office development in Regional City 
Centres; and

• 9. Metro Vancouver to take a leadership role in targeting a greater proportion of office 
development across all Regional City Centres and prepare a robust strategy to assist 
municipalities in meeting the employment targets in regional context statements, through a 
review of Regional Growth Strategy policy measures."; and

a) distributed the report to member jurisdiction Councils for information.

Lougheed Corridor Land Use and Monitoring Study - Final Report RECEIVED

Metro Vancouver led the Lougheed Corridor Land Use and Monitoring Study in partnership with 
TransLink, the Cities of Coquitlam, Port Coquitlam, Pitt Meadows and Maple Ridge, as well as invited 
representation from the Katzie, Kwantlen and Kwikwetlem First Nations, the Agricultural Land 
Commission, and Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure.

The Board received the report for information.

The 2018 Regional Parking Study - Key Findings RECEIVED

The Board received the Parking Study report for information and resolved to write letters to share the key 
findings of the 2018 Regional Parking Study and Technical Report to the Mayors' Council on Regional 
Transportation, the TransLink Board of Directors, and the Councils of member jurisdictions.

Food Flow: Agri-food Distribution in Metro Vancouver - Scope of Work RECEIVED

The Board received for information a report about a project being undertaken by Regional Planning that 
will define the extent of the agri-food distribution system and the connections to land use policy and 
transportation infrastructure that are necessary for "food flow" - the movement of food supply across 
the Metro Vancouver region.

The extent of the regional "food flow" is not widely known. Staff have embarked on a study to define the 
location of agri-food distribution businesses and their connections to land use policy and transportation 
infrastructure.

The first phase of work compiled existing data on the agri-food distribution system. The 2019 work will 
focus on interviews with the private sector. The results of the study will be used to improve understanding 
and inform various regional and municipal planning processes.

3



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

2019 Agricultural Land Use Planning Policy Forum RECEIVED

The Board received for information a report about the BC Agricultural Land Use Planning Policy Lab and 
Metro Vancouver's role in co-hosting a one-day policy forum.

Metro Vancouver is co-hosting a forum on April 3, 2019 with the University of Northern B.C. to bring 
experts together to focus on agriculture land use planning solutions to protect B.C.'s farmland. The forum 
is the first step to establish a "policy lab" in B.C. A policy lab is a neutral, expert-centred space for analyzing 
issues and designing solutions that address intractable policy problems. The April policy forum will build 
capacity and enhance understanding of the policies that impact agricultural land use in the Lower 
Mainland, as well as gauge interest in an ongoing provincial policy lab and the future activities/topics that 
are most beneficial to participants.

Belcarra Regional Park - Belcarra South Recommended Static Landscape Display APPROVED
and Interpretive Feature

The Board, in accordance with the MVRD Board resolution dated November 24, 2017, approved the 
recommended non-residential public use of Cabin 1, located in Belcarra Regional Park south picnic area, 
as a static landscape display and interpretative park feature illustrating historical uses of the site.

At its November 24, 2017 meeting, the MVRD Board directed staff to investigate uses for Cabin 1, and to 
report back to the Board. Staff have completed a heritage study on the Belcarra Cabins and identified 
potential uses for Cabin 1. The Belcarra Cabins Heritage Study completed in 2017 was taken into 
consideration, and a variety of other precedent heritage buildings in other parks were reviewed.

Metro Vancouver staff reviewed the precedent study with the Village of Belcarra staff in March 2018 and 
discussed potential options and preliminary cost factors. With all factors and studies considered, the 
recommended use for Cabin 1 is as a static landscape display building without public access, to be viewed 
from the exterior.

Campbell Valley Regional Park - Public Engagement and Management Plan Update APPROVED

The Board authorized staff to proceed with the public engagement process as presented in the report.

Metro Vancouver is undertaking an update to the management plan for Campbell Valley Regional Park. 
Staff anticipate the first round of public and stakeholder engagement will occur between June and 
October 2019.

The proposed stakeholder and public engagement on the Campbell Valley Regional Park Management 
Plan Update will ensure that the final management plan is broadly supported and reflective of regional 
parks users' input. The update will test stakeholder, First Nations, partner, and public current values, 
interests, concerns and desires for the park and also evaluate items identified for action in the previous 
management plan and subsequent review.

4



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

George Massey Crossing Project - Next Phases RECEIVED

The Board received for information the report with an update on the next phases for the George Massey 
Crossing project.

The Province, through the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure, initiated engagement with Metro 
Vancouver, TransLink, municipalities, and First Nations on the George Massey Crossing project. The 
Province will use the regional, municipal and First Nation plans, priorities and input to inform the 
development, assessment and evaluation of the options for the George Massey Crossing. The provincial 
engagement will be conducted in three phases with the target of a completed business case by November 
2020.

Fraser Basin Council - Annual Report to Metro Vancouver RECEIVED

In 2018, the MVRD Board approved a three-year Contribution Agreement with the Fraser Basin Council. 
Under the agreement, the Fraser Basin Council is required to submit an annual report to Metro Vancouver 
by January 31 of each year. The Board received the report for information.

Non-member Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings Policy Revision APPROVED

The Board approved the revised Non-member Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings Policy, as 
presented.

The Non-member Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings Policy sets out the practice associated 
with non-member attendance and participation at Board and Committee meetings. Recently, staff was 
directed to review and clarify the practice associated with how non-members are authorized to attend 
closed meetings.

Electoral Area A 2019 By-Election APPROVED

The Board appointed Klara Kutakova as Chief Election Officer and Kelly Flardy as Deputy Chief Election 
Officer for the 2019 by-election for the office of Regional Director for MVRD Electoral Area A, and 
authorized release of up to $80,000 from the Electoral Area General Reserve, if necessary, to be used for 
the administration of the unbudgeted 2019 by-election for the office of Director of Electoral Area A.

Review of the Federal Gas Tax Fund Expenditures Policy RECEIVED

The Board received for information a report with an overview of the process to review the MVRD Board's 
Federal Gas Tax Fund Expenditures Policy.

The Metro Vancouver Board adopted the Federal Gas Tax Expenditures Policy in 2016 that sets out the 
process through which the Board considers and approves expenditures from the Federal Gas Tax Fund 
(Greater Vancouver Regional Fund) for regional transportation projects proposed by TransLink. At its

5



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604 432 6200 | metrovancouver.org

October 26, 2018 regular meeting, the MVRD Board adopted a resolution directing staff to undertake a 
review of the Federal Gas Tax Fund Expenditures Policy, in consultation with TransLink and the Union of 
British Columbia Municipalities, and to report back to the Finance and Intergovernment Committee in 
2019 with findings and, where appropriate, recommendations.

Key Climate Change Developments Since the Adoption of the Climate 2050 RECEIVED
Strategic Framework REFERRED

At its March 15, 2019 meeting, the Climate Action Committee expressed concerns about the ability for 
greenhouse gas reduction targets identified in Climate 2050 and the Province's CleanBC to combat 
climate change impacts identified in the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) special report 
on the impacts of global warming. Members discussed accelerating Climate 2050 actions and 
subsequently amended the recommendation as presented above in underline style.

The Board received for information the report and directed staff to report back with recommendations 
to align Metro Vancouver's Climate 2050 Strategic Framework and Roadmaps with the 2018 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change special report on global warming, and to report back with 
recommended changes to Climate 2050 Strategic Framework targets, including interim targets.

Climate 2050 Roadmaps Development Process and Engagement Approach RECEIVED

Climate 2050 is an overarching climate action strategy that describes Metro Vancouver's role in taking 
action on climate change, and provides strategic direction on how Metro Vancouver can integrate 
climate change considerations into decisions and policies affecting the region. The Roadmaps 
development process will use an engagement approach that will provide a platform for Metro Vancouver 
to engage with the public and stakeholders and to explore potential integration of climate resilience and 
greenhouse gas reduction efforts with various partners and its member jurisdictions.

Staff will provide additional details on the overall engagement approach and on the engagement plans 
for individual Roadmaps in upcoming Climate Action Committee meetings.

The Board received the report for information.

Consultation on a Cannabis Production Emission Regulation for Metro Vancouver RECEIVED
REFERRED

The Board received the report for information and referred the report back to the Climate Action 
Committee for more information. Furthermore, the Board resolved to write a letter to Flealth Canada 
requesting that they actively enforce federal regulations regarding the prevention of odours from 
federally-licensed cannabis producers.

6



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Metro Vancouver’s Electric Vehicle Public Outreach Programs RECEIVED

Using research that identifies key barriers to EV uptake, Metro Vancouver has designed three public EV 
outreach programs to increase EV ownership in the region, using messaging that is integrated with 
existing incentives aimed at reducing the upfront cost of vehicles and charging infrastructure. Metro 
Vancouver's EV programs will also integrate messaging to support the incoming provincial ZEV Standard, 
which will increase EV supply to meet market demand. As part of the Climate 2050 Transportation 
Roadmap, staff will be identifying EV outreach campaigns as a current strategic approach to reducing 
transportation-related 6HG emissions in the region, and will be considering the long term evolution of 
these programs to reflect a rapidly changing transportation landscape.

The Board received the report for information.

Staff Appointments for the Purpose of Serving Summons under the Offence Act APPROVED

The Board appointed, for the purpose of serving summons under section 28 of the Offence Act for alleged 
violation of MVRD air quality management bylaws, all Metro Vancouver staff currently appointed as 
officers under the Greater Vancouver Regional District Air Quality Management Bylaw No. 1082, 2008.

Delegations Received at Committee March 2019 RECEIVED

The Board received for information summaries of delegations to committees.

Regional Planning Committee

• Roderick Louis

Finance and Intergovernment Committee

• Wayne Wright, Metro Vancouver Nominee, Vancouver Airport Authority Board of Directors, and 
Anne Murray, Vice President of Airline Business Development and Public Affairs, Vancouver Airport 
Authority; and

Climate Action Committee

• Alex Boston, Executive Director, Renewable Cities - SFU Wosk Centre for Dialogue

MVRD Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 1284, 2019 APPROVED

The Board gave first, second and third reading to Metro Vancouver Regional District Freedom of 
Information Bylaw No. 1284, 2019; then passed and finally adopted said bylaw.

Greater Vancouver Water District

7



metrova n co u ve r
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsv^ay, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

GVWD Development Cost Charges Options Update RECEIVED

At the Metro Vancouver District Boards Special Meetings held on November 30, 2018 and December 7, 
2018, Board Directors requested additional information on pursuing GVWD development cost charges to 
offset household impact of an increasing water rate.

The Greater Vancouver Water District Act currently does not include the legal authority to implement a 
Development DCC program forthe regional water utility service. A request from the Board to the Province 
for legislative changes to amend the GVWD Act to permit DCCs will be required to enable a water DCC 
program. This report provides additional information on the process and key considerations that will be 
involved in exploring the implementation of GVWD DCCs for growth projects within the Water District.

The Board received the report for information.

Seymour Salmonid Society - 2018 Annual Report RECEIVED

Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement with GVWD, the Seymour Salmonid Society is required 
to submit an annual report on its activities to Metro Vancouver. The Society achieved the goals set out in 
the Contribution Agreement and operated successfully in 2018. The Seymour Salmonid Society 2018 
Annual Report meets the requirements of the Contribution Agreement.

The Board received for information a report that contains the Seymour Salmonid Society's 2018 Annual 
Report.

Award of Amendment to Construction Contract RFP No. 18-048, Second Narrows APPROVED
Water Supply Tunnel - Burrard Inlet Crossing

The Board approved award of the amended scope within Second Narrows Park in an amount of 
$19,899,602 (exclusive of taxes) to Traylor-Aecon General Partnership resulting from Request for 
Proposal No. 18-048, Second Narrows Water Supply Tunnel - Burrard Inlet Crossing.

Delegations Received at Committee March 2019 RECEIVED

The Board received for information a summary of a delegation to the Water Committee from James Peters 
of ShowerPot.

GVWD Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 251, 2019 APPROVED

8



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

The Board gave first, second and third reading to Greater Vancouver Water District Freedom of 
Information Bylaw No. 251, 2019, then passed and finally adopted the bylaw.

Greater Vancouver Sewage and Drainage District

Bylaw 181 Update and Commercial Waste Hauler Licensing Bylaw Overview RECEIVED
APPROVED

On February 22, 2019, the Board referred recommendations related to two bylaws before the Minister of 
Environment and Climate Change Strategy back to the Zero Waste Committee for more information. The 
proposed updates to Bylaw 181 modernize a bylaw that has not been changed since 1996 and aim to 
increase waste diversion, increase transparency, and ensure a level playing field for facilities managing 
recyclable material and municipal solid waste in the region.

The Commercial Waste Hauler Licensing Bylaw establishes a licensing program for commercial waste 
haulers collecting mixed municipal solid waste. Under the bylaw, these haulers apply for an annual $100 
license with a series of requirements including ensuring that recycling containers are provided wherever 
mixed municipal solid waste is collected. Implementing the Commercial Waste Hauler Licensing Bylaw will 
help advance waste diversion in the region and assist in the collection of the Generator Levy.

The Board received the report for information and resolved to send a letter to the Minister of Environment 
and Climate Change Strategy requesting that the Minister approve the GVS&DD Commercial Waste Hauler 
Licensing Bylaw No. 307, 2017 and the GVS&DD Solid Waste and Recyclable Material Regulatory Amending 
Bylaw No. 309, 2017.

Generator Levy Overview RECEIVED

The Board received a report with additional information on the Tipping Fee Bylaw and Generator Levy.

The Generator Levy was approved by the Board in November 2017, and has been in place since January 
2018. This report provides an overview of the Tipping Fee Bylaw and the Generator Levy. The Generator 
Levy is an important tool in advancing waste diversion in the region and ensuring a cost effective and 
equitably funded regional solid waste system.

Solid Waste Regulatory Framework Correspondence Update RECEIVED

The Board received a summary of correspondence that was emailed to Zero Waste Committee members, 
as well as a letter of support to from the David Suzuki Foundation to the Minister of Environment and 
Climate Change Strategy.

Mixed Waste Processing Pilot APPROVED

9



i.w.,, ; metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Representatives of the cement industry have communicated to Metro Vancouver that cement kilns 
provide a unique opportunity to divert a portion of the municipal solid waste stream.

In addition, over the years, various businesses have come forward promoting technologies that claim to 
effectively recover materials from municipal solid waste for various uses, including use as a fuel source.

The Board authorized engaging a consultant to assist in the design of a pilot project, financial model, and 
procurement process for the purpose of processing municipal solid waste for the recovery of materials 
and/orfuel, and directed staff to report backto the Board with the concept plan and procurement model 
for the implementation of the pilot project.

Waste-to-Energy Facility Second Pass Superheater Replacement Project Contract Award APPROVED

The Board authorized award to Covanta Burnaby Renewable Energy, ULC, for the construction of the 
second pass superheater replacement project at the Metro Vancouver Waste-to-Energy Facility at a cost 
of $5,484,000 (including PST, but excluding GST), under the terms and conditions of existing Contract 
98106.

Staff Appointments for the Purpose of Serving Summons under the Offence Act APPROVED

The Board appointed, forthe purpose of serving summons under section 28 of the Offence Act for alleged 
violation of GVS&DD solid waste bylaws, all Metro Vancouver staff currently appointed as officers under 
the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District Municipal Solid Waste and Recyclable Material 
Regulatory Bylaw No. 181,1996

Support for the Village of Anmore's Membership in the Greater Vancouver APPROVED
Sewerage and Drainage District

The Board:

a) supported the Village of Anmore's application to the Province of British Columbia for membership in 
the Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District (GVS&DD), and

b) agreed to provide sewerage services to the Village of Anmore subject to the following conditions:
i. that the Province grants GVS&DD membership to the Village of Anmore;

ii. that the Metro Vancouver Regional District Board resolves that the Village of Anmore's 
request for regional sewerage services meets the provisions of Metro 2040: Shaping Our 
Future;

iii. that the existing agreement between the Village of Anmore, the City of Port Moody and the 
GVS&DD to service Eagle Mountain Middle School be terminated and the Village of Anmore 
enter into a servicing agreement with the City of Port Moody to convey Anmore wastewater 
through Port Moody infrastructure; and

iv. that an appropriate flow-based billing protocol be developed and implemented to facilitate 
annual GVS&DD servicing levies.

10







The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
NORTH VANOUVER MUSEUM & ARCHIVES

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Nancy Kirkpatrick, Director, North Vancouver Museum & Archives

SUBJECT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE 
MUSEUM COLLECTION

Date: April 1,2019 File No: 15-7930-01-0001/2019

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, North Vancouver Museum & Archives, 
dated April 1,2019 entitled “Transfer of Shipyard Artifacts Deaccessioned from 
the Museum Collection”:

THAT Council authorizes the NVMA Commission to deaccession 93 artifacts 
owned solely by the City of North Vancouver;

AND THAT Council authorizes the NVMA Commission to transfer those 93 
deaccessioned artifacts, and 5 unaccessioned objects owned jointly by the City 
and the District of North Vancouver, to the City of North Vancouver for integration 
into the Lot 5 project.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Report of the Director, North Vancouver Museum and Archives, dated March 11, 
2019, to the NVMA Commission entitled “Recommended Museum Deaccessions 
#24”

-



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval to deaccession 93 accessioned 
City-owned Museum artifacts in the care of the North Vancouver Museum and Archives, 
and to transfer custody of those 93 artifacts, and 5 unaccessioned (“found in inventory”) 
objects, to the City of North Vancouver for integration into the Lot 5 project.

DISCUSSION:

On March 19, 2019, at its regular monthly meeting, the North Vancouver Museum and 
Archives Commission approved the deaccessioning and disposal of 93 accessioned 
artifacts owned by the City of North Vancouver and the disposal of 5 additional 
unaccessioned (found in inventory) objects. All 98 objects are wooden shipbuilding 
patterns that originated at Burrard Dry Dock.

These artifacts are intended to be used as decorative objects in the Shipyards Lot 5 
redevelopment. (See Information Report dated April 9, 2019 entitled “Lot 5 - Artefact 
Integration” for more information.) The patterns originated at Burrard Dry Dock and have 
been retained by NVMA for many years in the expectation that some of them would be 
incorporated into the public realm as part of the Shipyards re-development.

Recommended Deaccessions

The NVMA Commission is the sole custodian of the cultural, archival and museum 
collections owned by the Corporations of the City of North Vancouver and the District of 
North Vancouver. The Commission’s Collection Policy sets out the methodology for 
deaccessioning (ie. documenting and removing) materials from the accessioned 
collection (section B.6.8) and for documenting and disposing of other categories of 
objects (section B.6.9).

According to section D.15 of the Commission’s establishing Bylaws (City of North 
Vancouver Bylaw No. 6019) and District of North Vancouver Bylaw No. 6789), all items 
recommended by the NVMA Commission for deaccession will be referred to the owner 
(City and/or District of North Vancouver) for final approval.

This report seeks Council’s permission to deaccession and transfer custody of all 
objects found on the lists in Attachment One. In the opinion of the NVMA Director, no 
item on these lists has a fair market value in excess of $1,000.

These items were reviewed and approved for deaccessioning by the NVMA 
Commission. At the March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting of the NVMA Commission:

Mr. Ehling moved, and Mr. Hamill seconded:

Page 2 of 7



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

Recommended Museum Deaccessions #24

THAT the North Vancouver Museum & Archives Commission approves the 
deaccessioning and disposal of all 93 accessioned objects and 5 unaccessioned 
(found in inventory) objects on the attached lists,

AND THAT the Commission recommends to the municipal owner of each 
accessioned object (City and/or District of North Vancouver as appropriate) that all 
of these items be deaccessioned and disposed of, according to the provisions of 
the Commission’s Collection Policy.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL AND INTER-MUNICIPAL IMPLICATIONS:

A list of all items formally deaccessioned will be provided by the Commission to the 
Purchasing Department of the City of North Vancouver so the items can be deleted from 
their Master list and the necessary adjustments, if any, can be made to insurance 
coverage for the collections.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Director, North Vancouver Museum 
and Archives

Page 3 of 7



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

ATTACHMENT ONE

nvma
NORTH VANCOUVER
MUSEUM & ARCHIVES

REPORT TO THE NORTH VANCOUVER 
MUSEUM & ARCHIVES COMMISSION

RECOMMENDED MUSEUM DEACCESSIONS #24
March 11,2019

Nancy Kirkpatrick, Director, NVMA

This report concerns artifacts that are recommended for deaccessioning to be used as decorative 
objects in the Shipyards Lot 5 redevelopment. Bill Pechet, of Pechet Studio which specializes in 
creative work for public spaces, recently met with Curator Karen Dearlove and viewed NVMA’s 
extensive collection of wooden shipbuilding patterns. The patterns originated at Burrard Dry Dock 
and have been retained by NVMA for many years in the expectation that some of them would be 
incorporated into the public realm as part of the Shipyards re-development. Mr. Pechet chose 98 
wooden patterns for use as decorative elements around the skating rink being constructed on Lot 
5 of the Shipyards.

DISCUSSION
The Deaccessioning Project has slowed in the recent months and is nearing completion. To date, 
prior to this report, NVMA has recommended the deaccessioning and disposal of 10,947 objects. 
The Curator is now concentrating on the transfer and disposal of deaccessioned objects, as well 
as photographing, packing, and transporting retained objects to the new warehouse.

This report seeks the Commission’s permission to deaccession and dispose of all 98 objects on 
the attached lists, and requests authorization to submit lists of all accessioned items to the 
municipal owners (City or District, as appropriate) for deaccessioning and/or disposal approval. 
In the opinion of the NVMA Director, no item on these lists has a fair market value in excess of 
$1,000.

ATTACHMENTS

1. List of 93 Museum Artifacts solely owned by the City of North Vancouver and 
recommended for deaccessioning and disposal;

2. List of 5 unaccessioned (‘found in inventory’) objects owned jointly by the City and 
the District of North Vancouver and recommended for deaccessioning and 
disposal.

PROPOSED MOTION

The following motion is proposed for adoption by the NVMA Commission:

THAT the North Vancouver Museum & Archives Commission approves the 
deaccessioning and disposal of all 93 accessioned objects and 5 unaccessioned 
(found in inventory) objects on the attached lists,

Page 4 of 7



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

AND THAT the Commission recommends to the municipal owner of each 
accessioned object (City and/or District of North Vancouver as appropriate) that all 
of these items be deaccessioned and disposed of, according to the provisions of 
the Commission’s Collection Policy.

LIST OF 93 MUSEUM ARTIFACTS SOLELY OWNED BY THE CITY OF 
NORTH VANCOUVE AND RECOMMENDED FOR DEACCESSIONING AND

DISPOSAL

OBJECTID OBJNAME MUNICIPAL OWNER
1992.40.1224 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1227 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1230 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1234 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1238 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1249 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1258 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1292 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1293 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1294 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1295 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1299 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1303 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1304 Pattern, casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1314 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1315 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1322 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1348 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1367 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1368 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1370 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1378 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1384 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1385 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1390 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1397 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1446 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1457 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1475 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1478 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1487 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1491 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1492 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

Page 5 of 7



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

1992.40.1493 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1495 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1496 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1502 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1503 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1507 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1575 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1580 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1582 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1583 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1584 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1597 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1607 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1610 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1613 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1620 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1668 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1675 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1679 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1687 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1698 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1760 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1767 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1772 a-b Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1793 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1801 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1802 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1803 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1804 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1805 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1806 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1807 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1808 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1814 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1815 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1816 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1817 Pattern, casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1818 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1819 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1855 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1858 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1860 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

Page 6 of 7



REPORT: TRANSFER OF SHIPYARD ARTIFACTS DEACCESSIONED FROM THE MUSEUM COLLECTION
Date: April 1, 2019

1992.40.1861 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1868 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1896 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1897 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1898 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1899 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1900 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1904 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1905 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1906 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1908 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1910 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1914 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1915 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1917 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.1939 Pattern, casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.2003 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

1992.40.2004 Pattern, Casting City of North Vancouver

Total Objects = 93

LIST OF 5 UNACCESSIONED OBJECTS OWNED JOINTLY BY THE CITY AND 
THE DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER and RECOMMENDED for 

DEACCESSIONING and DISPOSAL

OBJECTID OBJNAME MUNICIPAL OWNER
2013.INV.1200 Pattern, Casting City and District of North Vancouver

2013.INV.1207 Pattern, Casting City and District of North Vancouver

2013.INV.372 Pattern, Casting City and District of North Vancouver

2013.INV.373 Pattern, Casting City and District of North Vancouver

INV0721 Pattern, Casting City and District of North Vancouver

Total Objects = 5

Page 7 of 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



lAi!
Department
Manager

D1 CAOictor

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
STRATEGIC & CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

A

IM
INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

Heather Reinhold, Deputy Director, Strategic InitiativesFrom:

Subject: LOT 5 - ARTEFACT INTEGRATION

April 9, 2019 File No: 13-6740-20-0007/1Date:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Lot 5 Site Plan - Public Realm Artefact Installation - Site Plan Doc #1768078
2. Public Support Space Artefact Installation - Schematic Design Layout Doc 

#1767945

DISCUSSION:
The Shipyards area is a noticeably distinct and unique area within the City. Throughout 
the public realm, features from the historic shipyard have been integrated and 
reinterpreted. The development of Lot 5 will continue to build on this character - not only 
through the reinstatement of the Machine Shop structure, which is a protected heritage 
structure, but with the integration of site artefacts throughout the public realm. (See 
Attachment #1 for site plan with artefact layout.)

In addition, within the City’s interior Public Support Space, an installation of artefacts, 
deaccessioned from the North Vancouver Museum and Archives collection, will be 
installed in the interior hallway leading to public washrooms and lockers. See 
Attachment #2 for the schematic design layout.

Lastly, an additional piece of the original Flamborough Head Stern will be retained for a 
future potential project to be coordinated with the North Vancouver Museum and 
Archives.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
H^her Reinhold
Deputy Director, Strategic Initiatives

Document Number: 1768499 V1
Page 1 of 1



LOT 5 SITE PLAN - PUBLIC REALM ARTEFACT INSTALLATION 

Attachment #3

Integrated Artefact 
Seating (8)

Heritage Truck

Machine Shop

Box Girder Bench (2)

)))))))))))

Box Girder Bench (1)

Rivet Bench (2)

Flamborough Head 
Stern 

Water Spray 
Spigot (2)

Heritage Tanks 
(2 relocated)

PUBLIC REALM

PUBLIC 
SUPPORT 

SPACE 
(Interior)

hreinhold
Text Box
Attachment #1



Lorem 
ipsum dolor 
sit amet, 
consectetue
r adipiscing 
elit, sed 
Lorem 
ipsum dolor 
sit amet, 
consectetue
r adipiscing 
elit, sed 
diam 
nonummy 
nibh 
euismod 
tincidunt ut 
laoreet 
dolore 
magna 
aliquam 
erat 
volutpat. Ut 
wisi enim 
ad minim 
veniam, 
quis nostrud 
exerci tation 
ullamcorper 
suscipit 
lobortis nisl 
ut aliquip ex 
ea 

Lor
em 
ipsu
m 
dol
or 
sit 
am
et, 
con
sect
etu
er 
adi
pisc
ing 
elit, 
sed 
Lor
em 
ipsu
m 
dol
or 
sit 
am
et, 
con
sect
etu
er 
adi
pisc

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, 
consectetuer adipiscing elit, 
sed Lorem ipsum dolor sit 
amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam 
nonummy nibh euismod 
tincidunt ut laoreet dolore 
magna aliquam erat 
volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad 
minim veniam, quis nostrud 
exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut 
aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat. Duis autem vel 
eum iriure dolor in hendrerit 
in vulputate velit esse 
molestie consequat, vel 
illum dolore eu fevugiat nulla 
facilisis at vero eros et 
accumsan et iusto odio 
dignissim qui blandit 
praesent luptatum zzril 
delenit augue duis dolore te 
feugait nulla facilisi.
Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, 
cons ectetuer adipiscing elit, 
sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet 
dolore magna aliquam erat 
volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad 
minim veniam, quis nostrud 
exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut 

Lorem 
ipsum dolor 
sit amet, 
consectetue
r adipiscing 
elit, sed 
Lorem 
ipsum dolor 
sit amet, 
consectetue
r adipiscing 
elit, sed 
diam 
nonummy 
nibh 
euismod 
tincidunt ut 
laoreet 
dolore 
magna 
aliquam 
erat 
volutpat. Ut 
wisi enim 
ad minim 
veniam, 
quis nostrud 
exerci tation 
ullamcorper 
suscipit 
lobortis nisl 
ut aliquip ex 
ea 

Lor
em 
ipsu
m 
dol
or 
sit 
am
et, 
con
sect
etu
er 
adi
pisc
ing 
elit, 
sed 
Lor
em 
ipsu
m 
dol
or 
sit 
am
et, 
con
sect
etu
er 
adi
pisc

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, 
consectetuer adipiscing elit, 
sed Lorem ipsum dolor sit 
amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam 
nonummy nibh euismod 
tincidunt ut laoreet dolore 
magna aliquam erat 
volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad 
minim veniam, quis nostrud 
exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut 
aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat. Duis autem vel 
eum iriure dolor in hendrerit 
in vulputate velit esse 
molestie consequat, vel 
illum dolore eu fevugiat nulla 
facilisis at vero eros et 
accumsan et iusto odio 
dignissim qui blandit 
praesent luptatum zzril 
delenit augue duis dolore te 
feugait nulla facilisi.
Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, 
cons ectetuer adipiscing elit, 
sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet 
dolore magna aliquam erat 
volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad 
minim veniam, quis nostrud 
exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut 

41
90

2130 ±1810 ±

approx. 4000

3140 ± 4070

Original ship-list panels and salmon 
club sign to be photographed and 
reprinted (method TBD)

As-built site measurements req’d

Door 
swing

Door 
swing Lockers Lockers

Key Plan
1 : 150

1

Wall Section Elevations
1 : 50

2

Reference Photographs
NTS

3

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

Victory Ships SignsSalmon Derby Sign

Note:
Verify finished height of ceiling and confirm
if there any conflicting overhead services.

No

drawn by

NoteDatedate

3
project

sheet title

no. date issue notes

scale
306-228 East 4th Avenue  Vancouver   BC   V5T 1G5   T. 604 732 0697 
bill@pechetstudio.ca    www.pechetstudio.ca A12LV 1 Preliminary Study - Not for Construction 

Artefact placement in Public Corridor

Lot 5, Shipyards, North Vancouver

25/03/19

1 : 50 31/01/19
2 Revisions - Not for Construction22/02/19
3 Revisions - Not for Construction25/03/19

 
A

ttachm
ent #2

 PU
B

LIC
 SU

PPO
R

T SPA
C

E A
R

TEFA
C

T IN
STA

LLA
TIO

N
 (IN

TER
IO

R
) 

- SC
H

EM
A

TIC
 D

ESIG
N

 LA
YO

U
T



2130 ±1810 ±

400 400
1000

100 TYP100

1680

420 420 200 200

1990

20
0

20
0

18
70

20
70

70
 T

YP10
0

10
0

70 TYP

98
0

20
70

60
0

13
80

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

29
0

20
0

10
70

14
70

3140 ±

1/2” plywood back panel for mounting
artefacts, secured to wall, painted to match wall colour

Note: designer to confirm method of attachment 
for each artefact with fabricator  

Lockers Lockers

2 3 43 panels of 1000 x 2070 mm
  1680 x 600 mm
3 panels:  1680 x 1380 mm
  1680 x 1470 mm

2 panels totalling 2070 x 1990 mm
(designer and fabricator to decide together)

Typical method of wall attachment
TBD, based on coversations with 
project architect / engineers

Estimated Weights:
A, B, C  80lbs
D   55lbs
E   100lbs
F   110lbs
G, H   85lbs

A B C

D

E G H

F

No

drawn by

NoteDatedate

3
project

sheet title

no. date issue notes

scale
306-228 East 4th Avenue  Vancouver   BC   V5T 1G5   T. 604 732 0697 
bill@pechetstudio.ca    www.pechetstudio.ca A13LV 1 Preliminary Study - Not for Construction 

Artefact placement in Public Corridor, mounting on back panels

Lot 5, Shipyards, North Vancouver

25/03/19

1 : 20 27/02/19
2 Revisions - Not for Construction25/03/19

 PU
B

LIC
 SU

PPO
R

T SPA
C

E A
R

TEFA
C

T IN
STA

LLA
TIO

N
 (IN

TER
IO

R
) - 

SC
H

EM
A

TIC
 D

ESIG
N

 LA
YO

U
T

 
A

ttachm
ent #2







City of North Vancouver 
CORPORATE POLICY  
 

 City of North Vancouver Corporate Policy Document: 1079244-v2 

Policy Name:  Council Conference Attendance 
Policy Number: C99C 

 

POLICY 

1.  Preauthorized Approval  
All members of Council are authorized each year to attend the annual conferences of 
the following local government organizations, and expenses shall be paid by the City of 
North Vancouver within current expense reimbursement policies: 
 

 Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) 
 Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) 
 Local Government Leadership Academy (LGLA) 
 Lower Mainland Local Government Association (LMLGA) Annual General 

Meeting and Conference 

REASON FOR POLICY 

To establish the authority for members of Council to attend local government 
conferences and events as identified in this policy. 

AUTHORITY TO ACT 

Administration of this policy is delegated to the Chief Administrative Officer. 

PROCEDURE 

1.  Conference Registration 
Any member of Council wishing to attend a conference that is subject to this policy shall 
contact the Office of the Chief Administrative Officer, and the registration, travel and 
accommodation requirements shall be made on behalf of the Council member through 
that office. 

2.  Conference Expenses 
All expense claims for reimbursement, or expenses paid directly on behalf of the 
Council member, shall be handled in accordance with “Council Expense Bylaw, 2003, 
No. 7487”, as amended from time to time. 
 

 

Approval date: September 9, 2013 Approved by: Council 
Amended: November 26, 2018  Council 
Amended: April 15, 2019   
    
    











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Wendy Tse, Planner 2

Subject: FUNDING APPROPRIATION REQUEST - AFFORDABLE HOUSING
INITIATIVES

Date: Aprils, 2019 File No: 10-5040-03-0003/2019

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated April 3,2019, entitled “Funding 
Appropriation Request - Affordable Housing Initiatives”:

THAT (Funding Appropriation #1925) an amount of $300,000 be appropriated 
from the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund to support the delivery of new 
affordable housing initiatives;

AND THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended by December 31, 
2022, the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Affordable 
Housing Reserve Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Affordable Housing Reserve Fund - Overview (Doc#i367i84)
2. Draft Terms of Reference - North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab

(Doc#1752382)

Document Number: 1758254 V1



REPORT: Funding Appropriation Request-Affordable Housing Initiatives
Date: April 3, 2019

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to request a funding appropriation of $300,000 from the 
Affordable Housing Reserve Fund (AHRF) to commence work on new affordable housing 
initiatives, including rental tenure zoning and the North Shore Balanced Housing 
Innovation Lab, as directed by Council.

DISCUSSION

The City of North Vancouver was one of the first municipalities in Metro Vancouver to 
establish an AHRF (formerly the Social Housing Reserve Fund) in 1989. Initially 
supported by a $200,000 contribution from general revenue, the City has allocated funds 
to the AHRF over the past 30 years to amass monies to support various affordable 
housing projects and research initiatives to the benefit of City residents. An overview of 
the AHRF, including contribution sources and allocations to date, is provided in 
Attachment #1.

The AHRF has been an essential tool for the City in addressing its housing affordability 
objectives. The AHRF provides a dedicated source of funding to facilitate affordable 
housing capital projects, often in partnership with the non-profit housing sector and senior 
levels of government. The AHRF also funds a Housing Initiatives Grant (HIG) program to 
support non-capital affordable housing initiatives to provide research and best practices 
on emerging housing issues. The use of the AHRF and HIG are both at the discretion of 
Council.

Staff seek to appropriate $300,000 from the AHRF to act on a number of Council-directed 
initiatives, as well as to enable funds to address emerging housing issues. In particular, 
issues related to homelessness often require minor funding in a relatively expedited 
manner. Overall, the funding appropriation contemplates the following housing initiatives:

• Rental tenure zoning;
• North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab; and
• Homelessness and other affordable housing initiatives.

Any of the appropriated funding that is not utilized by December 31,2022 will be returned 
to the credit of the AHRF.

Rental Tenure Zoning

On May 7, 2018, Council unanimously endorsed the following resolution:

WHEREAS the BC Provincial Government has recently introduced 
legislation that would allow municipalities to zone for residential rental 
tenure;

WHEREAS it would be useful for Council to have staff consider the 
opportunities of this legislation and the new proposed residential rental

Page 2 of 5



REPORT: Funding Appropriation Request - Affordable Housing Initiatives
Date: April 3, 2019

zoning option presents our City in dealing with housing affordability 
issues;

AND WHEREAS rental accommodation provision is becoming the only 
affordable housing option for many residents and families in light of 
soaring home purchase prices;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council request staff to report on 
the opportunities the new Provincial Residential Rental Tenure legislation 
could provide in addressing housing affordability in the City of North 
Vancouver, provide rental tenure on appropriate sites and provide 
possible recommendations as to how this could be implemented.

As a new tool provided to municipalities, the implementation of rental tenure zoning, 
particularly in addressing housing affordability, is currently under exploration by many 
municipalities, including the City. At the regional level, Metro Vancouver has been leading 
an effort to advance knowledge about the effectiveness and applicability of various policy 
and financial tools to support the development of transit-oriented affordable rental 
housing. The Transit-Oriented Affordable Housing (TOAH) Study includes an exploration 
of rental tenure zoning, in addition to inclusionary housing policies, density bonusing and 
acquisition and deployment of land and airspace, to encourage the construction of 
affordable rental housing. The TOAH Study is anticipated to be completed in mid-2019.

Further to the TOAH Study, select municipalities in Metro Vancouver have been 
collaborating to better understand how to utilize rental tenure zoning to further municipal 
housing priorities. A project is now underway, in partnership with the University of British 
Columbia’s Housing Research Collaborative and the Sauder School of Business, to 
analyze the effects of rental tenure zoning on land values. To participate, the City would 
have to contribute approximately $2,000 to the project. In total, staff seek $50,000 from 
the AHRF to further explore rental tenure zoning, including retaining a qualified land 
economist to conduct a financial analysis for the City. Consideration and possible 
implementation of rental tenure zoning is anticipated to be part of a larger process to 
update the City’s Zoning Bylaw.

North Shore Housing Solutions Lab

On February 4, 2019, Council initiated a significant partnership project for the North Shore 
to explore a more balanced approach to housing to enable residents, particularly low and 
moderate income earners, to live and work in the community:

WHEREAS the historic escalation in housing prices has resulted in a lack 
of attainable housing options for those working on the North Shore with 
wide-ranging implications for the North Shore’s economy and business 
vitality and increased congestion and lengthier commutes;

WHEREAS the goal of achieving complete and inclusive communities 
with opportunities to live and work is shared by all jurisdictions on the 
North Shore;

Page 3 of 5



REPORT: Funding Appropriation Request-Affordable Housing Initiatives
Date: April 3, 2019________________________________________________

WHEREAS the City’s Housing Action Plan recognizes that partnerships 
are key to meaningfully addressing housing challenges on the North 
Shore given limited municipal resources;

AND WHEREAS the needs of moderate income earners are not well 
served by any existing housing policies and programs;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that staff develop and implement 
a collaborative North Shore Housing “Solutions Lab” focused on 
identifying opportunities and high impact actions to address the urgent 
need for housing facing low and moderate income earners.

Based on Council’s direction, staff have developed a draft Terms of Reference (ToR) for 
the North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab (BHIL) (Attachment #2). The draft ToR 
defines the project scope, timeline, deliverables, governance model and budget. 
Approximately $200,000 is anticipated to complete this work, which is envisioned to be 
facilitated and managed by a consultant with significant housing knowledge. A Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for the consultant will be posted on BC Bid, a provincial procurement 
website.

Staff propose that the budget of $200,000 be shared amongst municipal partners, with 
senior governments requested to contribute financially as well. An invite to participate in 
the project, as well as a request for a contribution from each of the project partners, will 
be sent shortly. In addition, staff will be applying for Solutions Lab funding from Canada 
Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) in May 2019. If successful, up to $250,000 
of additional funding would be available to support the project, including potentially 
amending the scope to encompass a larger research component to test ideas generated 
by BHIL.

Homelessness and Other Affordable Housing Initiatives

Homelessness is a growing issue in Metro Vancouver, including on the North Shore. 
Recent homeless counts and studies have found the following:

• 100 homeless individuals were counted on the North Shore during the 2017 Metro 
Vancouver Homeless Count (the point-in-time methodology is recognized to be 
an undercount);

• 736 unique homeless individuals accessed homelessness services on the North 
Shore in 2016 (based on service user data from six major providers of 
homelessness services on the North Shore); and

• 64 homeless children and youth were counted on the North Shore during the 2018 
Metro Vancouver Youth Homeless Count (third highest in Metro Vancouver).

To ensure staff can address homelessness and other affordable housing issues in a 
timely manner, staff request funds of $50,000 to be available for emerging housing 
initiatives that may arise from time to time. In particular, this funding may be utilized to 
increase outreach efforts with homeless individuals, prepare for extreme weather events 
and develop working documents and protocols in working with homeless individuals and

Page 4 of 5



REPORT: Funding Appropriation Request - Affordable Housing Initiatives
Date: April 3, 2019

other vulnerable populations. Efforts to implement the Housing Action Plan may also 
benefit from this funding.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2019-2028 Project Plan includes a provision of $2.2 million for affordable housing 
projects. The proposed appropriation of $300,000 falls within this budgeted amount.

In 2017, an amount of $2.5 million was appropriated from the AHRF to pay back to the 
City a portion of the land value of a City-owned site, known as Lot C. The City-owned site, 
in partnership with Community Land Trust (CLT), the development arm of the Co-
operative Housing Federation of BC (CHFBC), was to be leveraged for provincial funding 
to develop approximately 20 new co-operative housing units in the City. Unfortunately, 
the City and CLT were unsuccessful in securing funding under the recent Building BC: 
Community Housing Fund from BC Housing. While the City continues to work with CLT 
to explore additional funding opportunities, staff recommend returning this prior 
appropriation to the AHRF. Should the City and CLT secure funding, staff will request the 
funding appropriation at that time.

The use of the AHRF for policy initiatives aligns with the mandate of the reserve fund, 
which has been used to fund capital projects, policy studies and affordable housing 
events in the past. Any appropriated funds unspent on December 31, 2022 will be 
returned to the AHRF. Since the adoption of the City’s Density Bonus and Community 
Benefits Policy in 2015, the AHRF has had a sustainable funding source with 20 percent 
of Community Benefit Cash Contributions received by the City allocated towards the 
AHRF for affordable and rental housing initiatives. To maximize the impact of the AHRF 
on facilitating new affordable housing projects, initiatives, and research, a review of the 
terms of reference of the AHRF will be undertaken as part of the implementation of the 
Housing Action Plan.

SUSTAINABILITY COMMENTS

The provision of affordable housing is a key component to the social sustainability of the 
City in that individuals of varying income levels and abilities are able to reside in the 
community. In addition, housing affordability has broad-reaching impacts on the local 
economy in terms of the competiveness of the City and workforce availability. Allowing 
individuals to live and work in close proximity not only promotes overall household 
affordability by reducing transportation costs, but it further contributes to the economic 
and environmental sustainability of the City.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Wendy Ise 
Planner 2

Page 5 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 Document: 1367184-v1 

 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESERVE FUND – OVERVIEW 

 
 
Historical Overview:  
As a result of social housing research undertaken in 1988, City Council determined that a 
reserve fund would be an effective tool to implement the City’s Social Housing Policies. The 
‘Social Housing Reserve Fund’ was established in 1989 to facilitate the City’s social housing 
objectives, and as a source of funds to provide for the difference between the sale price of land 
and the value of land leased for social housing projects.   
 
In 1995, the terms of reference of the Fund were revised to broaden the use of the funding 
beyond social housing to reflect the focus of senior government housing programs on mixed 
income projects rather than housing core-need households only. In addition to the revised title 
‘Affordable Housing Reserve Fund’ (AHRF), a ‘Housing Initiatives Grant’ program (HIG) was 
also established, with provision for funds from the Fund’s annual interest to support non-capital 
affordable housing related initiatives. 
 
Over the past decade, the Fund has increasingly been used to offset City costs and charges 
related to affordable housing projects such as permit fees, site and development costs. 
 
 
Contributions: 
Initially, the Fund was supported with a 1989 contribution of $200,000 from the City’s general 
revenue.  In 1990 and 1991 the contributions increased to $210,000 and then dropped to 
$25,000 in 1992. There were no further City contributions until 2003 when as part of the 10 year 
Capital Plan, Council determined that the Fund would receive $260,000 annually from general 
revenue. In 2014, after 10 years of funding, Council approved a funding cap with the 
consideration for future funding if the balance falls below $2.5 million. The City’s Density Bonus 
and Community Amenity Benefits Policy, adopted in 2015, is expected to provide significant 
contributions to the fund with 20 percent of all community amenity contributions received by the 
City going to the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund. 
 
Other contributions to the Fund have included: 

• $6,000 provincial grant for negotiating 5 rental housing units in a 1990 strata 
development; 

• Contributions of $8,000 in 1996 and $110,000 in 1999 linked to legalization of units in 
existing apartment buildings; 

• $480,000 transfer in 1998 into the Fund from sale of a Lower Lonsdale road right of way;  
• $110,000 contribution as a result of a 1999 rezoning legalizing suites in an existing 

apartment building; 
• $100,000 contribution as the result of a 2006 rezoning. 

 
 
 
 



- 2 - 

Allocations: 
While it took a number of years before the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund held sufficient 
funds to support a housing project, the loss of federal housing programs in the early 1990’s, 
together with the severely limited and narrow focus of provincial government housing programs, 
have constrained the City’s opportunities to develop affordable housing projects.  Nevertheless, 
in 30 years, five housing developments have been facilitated in the City with Affordable Housing 
Reserve Fund monies: 
 
1. Margaret Heights Family project (1991) 
This 19 unit non-profit family townhouse project was developed by Entre Nous Femmes 
Housing Society on a leased City site in the Cedar Village neighbourhood.  A $276,000 amount 
was transferred from the Fund to the Tax Sale Land Fund to offset the lease cost from market 
value (25%), and an additional $16,000 was withdrawn to support additional landscaping costs. 
 
2. Quay View Apartments project (2001) 
This 42 unit project for single and family households of various disabilities and income levels 
was sponsored by the North Shore Association for the Mentally Handicapped (renamed ‘North 
Shore Connexions’) on a leased City site in the Lower Lonsdale neighbourhood.  The project 
was allocated a $330,000 subsidy from the AHRF for the value of the discounted lease to 50% 
below market, representing a 25% discount.  These funds were transferred from the Fund to the 
Tax Sale Land Fund to offset the lease cost from market value. The project was also provided 
with $87,815 from the AHRF to enhance the exterior finishes and accessibility fixtures of the 
complex.  
 
3. North Shore Adult Emergency Shelter and Transition Housing (2005) 
In 2005 the Lookout Emergency Aid Society opened the North Shore’s 25 bed adult shelter and 
25 bed transition housing on a City site in the Marine Drive area.   A total of $210,000 was 
contributed from AHRF in 2003 to assist with various site related costs (hydro, soils, waived 
fees and charges) for the adult shelter and transition housing project.  A further $263,296 was 
transferred from the AHRF to the Tax Sale Lands Fund to represent the 25% subsidy of the City 
land lease at 50% of market value. 
 
4. Kiwanis St. Andrews Place (2006) 
In early 2006, the AHRF was accessed for costs related to the 27 unit St. Andrews Place 
seniors’ non-profit complex situated within a larger market project.  The $1.1 million site was 
created by the City permitting increased density on the redevelopment site, and transfer of the 
density to one corner of the site for the seniors’ project.  $500,000 federal funds and a $500,000 
provincial forgiveable loan were provided via BC Housing, and the Kiwanis provided over $1 
million equity.  The City contributed approximately $33,275 in reimbursed fees for a total 
contribution of approximately $140,000 in a variety of waived fees and development costs to 
increase the affordability of the project.   
 
5. Chesterfield House (2007 & 2009) 
In support of retention of existing rental housing and partnering to provide non-market affordable 
housing, the AHRF supported the joint purchase in January 2007 of an existing 16 unit 
apartment building (constructed in 1961) for $2.5 million with partners BC Housing and 
Marineview Housing Society.  Both the City and BC Housing contributed $950,000, with the 
remainder ($600,000) provided by Marineview, the operator.  City contributions from the AHRF 
totalled $968,073 including legal fees.  The purpose of the Chesterfield House project is to 
provide supportive housing for individuals with mental illness.   
 



- 3 - 

During 2009-2010, the existing 16 unit building was renovated to link with an additional building 
constructed at the rear of the property.  The City has allocated approximately $735,000 from the 
AHRF for the project.  Chesterfield House contains 24 units, 3 common areas, and is fully 
sprinklered and upgraded for energy and water efficiency.  The project is also the first existing 
residential building to connect to the City’s district heating system with connection fees 
($40,000) provided by the Fund. 
 
Other Projects Receiving AHRF Funds: 

• Marketing costs ($3,319) for City-leased site for Entre Nous Femmes Market Heights 
family housing project and related social housing economic research ($5,800) in 1990; 

• Review potential for inclusion of the then new Adaptable Design policy into the Quayside 
Village Cohousing development funded with Housing Initiatives Grant ($2,739) (1997); 

• Affordable Housing Task Force ($32,034) in 1997-1998; 
• Sponsorship of BC Non-Profit Housing Association Housing & Hunger in BC Symposium 

($1,000) in 2013; 
• Grant to North Shore Crisis Services ($24,000) in 2014; 
• Homeless Employment Initiative ($1,459 in 2014 and $33,066 in 2015) 
• Housing Action Plan ($50,000) in 2015;  
• Innovations in Small Housing Showcase ($22,238) in 2015; 
• Housing Initiatives Grant to Cascadia Society ($10,000) in 2016; 
• City-owned site, Lot C, land repayment to City and other development costs ($2.5 

million) in 2017 (appropriation to be returned to AHRF until senior government funding 
secured); 

• Inclusionary Zoning Analysis ($25,000 in 2018); and, 
• Lonsdale Energy Corporation Service Connection Rebates ($56,397 in 2018); 

 
The 2019 balance in the AHRF is approximately $2.2 million, and staff are able to propose 
projects as they arise through Council’s decision to have the funds available. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
The Affordable Housing Reserve Fund has been an essential City tool to address housing 
affordability issues of current and future residents through partnerships with non-profit societies, 
senior government programs, and the development sector.  Since the establishment of the 
Fund, non-market housing opportunities and potential partnerships have continually evolved.   
 
 
 

 

 

Updated: March 2019 

 



 

Draft April 9, 2019 

North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab (BHIL) 
Terms of Reference 
 
Problem Statement 

With the rising cost of homeownership significantly outpacing growth in incomes, traditional 
approaches to delivering housing are increasingly failing to meet the community’s needs. While 
the market is responding to demand with new housing, market housing in any form is now out of 
reach for many, including families and middle income earners*, and the rental vacancy rate 
continues to be at a historic low. These rapid and fundamental changes have resulted 
increasingly in a mismatch between labour supply and demand; unable to afford to live on the 
North Shore, median income earners are taking on longer commutes and businesses often find 
themselves unable to attract new employees.   

 

PURPOSE 

A North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab will bring together partners to develop new 
solutions to these complex and critical problems with a focus on providing new housing options 
for households with incomes of $50,000 to $100,000 per year. A North Shore wide collaborative 
effort, the Balanced Housing Innovation Lab will generate new approaches to delivering housing 
solutions, in partnership with other levels of government.  

* In 2015, median household income in the City of North Vancouver was $67,119, lower than Metro Vancouver’s regional 
median of $72,662. The District of North Vancouver’s 2015 median income was $103,981 and the District of West Vancouver’s 
$89,808.  

SCOPE 

The North Shore Balanced Housing Innovation Lab seeks to forge an enduring coalition to 
address housing issues. The scope of work will include the following elements: 

1. Completing a comprehensive assessment of work force housing needs on the North 
Shore and gaps in meeting both existing and long term needs 
 

2. Conducting research to inform an assessment of the existing and forecast scope of the 
issue and generating a concise problem statement identifying the gap and need for 
middle income housing units. 
 

3. A participatory exploration and mapping to identify existing and potential assets 
(physical, monetary, capacities) held by government, partners and non-profits which 
could be leveraged to create housing. 
 
This aspect of the Balanced Housing Innovation Lab would map North Shore assets, 
including lands, which could be leveraged in conjunction with senior government funds, 
to create a significant stock of affordable middle-income housing on the North Shore. 
This could include contemplation of a North Shore Housing Land Trust.  
 

4. Holding a multi-level multi agency forum for the sharing of housing and planning 
information and housing related problem-identification and problem solving. 



 

Draft April 9, 2019 

5. Explore the development of a framework for collective action on workforce housing on 
the North Shore. 
 
Housing issues do not recognize municipal boundaries and local governments which 
work together can be more effective. Establishing a framework for cooperation on North 
Shore housing solutions will enable jurisdictions on the North Shore to share resources 
and attract senior government funds. This exploration would include identifying and 
evaluating potential models for cooperation including sharing fiscal resources, sharing 
staff resources, or forming a joint agency to implement and administer North Shore 
housing projects. Expert advice would be sought from organizations such as the 
University of British Columbia’s Housing Research Collaborative and learning from 
experiences in other communities such as the Whistler Housing Authority, the ARCH 
Regional Housing Coalition in East King County, Washington, and other effective and 
innovative delivery models. 
 

6. Developing coordinated policies and strategies to maximize the impact of senior 
government programs.  
 
BC Housing has established the HousingHub, with a focus on creating new opportunities 
for middle-income earners through new rental housing and affordable home ownership 
programs. The Lab would explore the potential for coordinated North Shore policies on 
middle-income housing, which would work in conjunction with the HousingHub programs 
(ie. establishing similar incentives across jurisdictions).  
 

7. Develop innovative housing prototypes.  
 
New forms of housing are required which make efficient use of land through thoughtful 
design which maximizes opportunities for building community, access to greenery and 
outdoor space and space efficient layouts. This component of the Lab will generate 
viable prototypes for middle-income and family housing which are replicable. In addition 
to form, the Lab will explore tenure, including mixed-income and mixed-tenure projects, 
rental housing and co-op housing forms.  

 

Deliverables and Timeline 

The Balanced Housing Innovation Lab will launch in June 2019. Once a consultant team has 
been selected, a detailed work program will be developed with guidance from the project’s 
Steering Committee and Staff Working Group. Key deliverables include:  

Workshop 1: Defining Success, Identifying Opportunities (Fall 2019) 

Tactical Groups: Asset Mapping; Governance and Policy; Housing Prototypes (Fall 
2019) 

Interim Report (Fall 2019) 

Workshop 2: Direction Setting – Prototypes and Policies (Winter 2019) 



 

Draft April 9, 2019 

 Final Report to Steering Committee (Winter 2019) 

 

PARTICIPANTS AND GOVERNANCE 

Project Governance 

The BHIL would be governed by a Steering Committee made of up elected officials and/or 
senior staff and supported by a core Staff Working Group made up of representatives from key 
agencies and partners. Key agencies and partners will include all levels of government which 
are either directly involved in setting housing policies or which have vested interests in the topic 
and the capacity to contribute resources to further project goals. Participating partners will be 
encouraged to include staff with a broad range of skills to participate in the Lab.  

The Steering Committee and Working Group would be supported by a skilled third-party 
facilitator. Outside expertise, including design skills and fiscal analysis, would be retained as 
required to support the development of ideas generated through the Innovation Lab.  

Steering Committee 

• Government of Canada (MP) 
• Government of BC (MLAs) 
• District of West Vancouver 
• District of North Vancouver 
• City of North Vancouver 
• Squamish Nation 
• Tsleil-Waututh Nation 

Directly involving senior government in the conversation at the outset is an important aspect of 
the project to foster a streamlined and cooperative approach. 

The Steering Committee is anticipated to meet three to four times over the duration of the 
project.  

 

Staff Work Group 

• City of North Vancouver 
• District of North Vancouver 
• District of West Vancouver 
• Squamish Nation 
• Tsleil-Waututh Nation 
• BC Housing 
• Metro Vancouver Housing Corporation 
• School District (SD44 and SD45) 

The staff working group is anticipated to as required over the duration of the project.  

 



 

Draft April 9, 2019 

Stakeholders and Tactical Groups 

Innovation Labs require broad participation with a diversity of perspectives represented. 
Stakeholders will be engaged through participation in workshops and “tactical groups”. Two 
stakeholder workshops which would invite a larger group to participate in generating and 
refining solutions. This would include incorporating housing expertise and experience as well as 
partners with a role in housing delivery.  

Tactical groups will consistent of selected groups of government, private sector, and non-profit 
housing developers, housing experts and advocates, and will focus on generating solutions in 
the areas of:  

Asset Mapping;  

Governance and Policy;  

Housing Prototypes. 

 

Key stakeholders include:  

• Housing Research and Expertise 
• UBC Housing Research Collaborative 

 
• Housing Advocates 

• Community Housing Action Committee  
• Tenant Resource and Advisory Centre 
• Generation Squeeze  

 
• Non-Profit Housing Developers and Operators 

 

• Rental Sector 
• Rental Developers Active on the North Shore  
• Landlord BC  
• Tenant Relocation Experts 

 
• Market Housing Developers  

• UDI Representation 
• Developers Active on the North Shore  
• Greater Vancouver Home Builders’ Association  

 
•  Employers and Business Community  

• Chamber of Commerce  
• Economic Partnership  
• Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement District 
• British Columbia Government and Service Employees’ Union 
• Major North Shore Employers (Health Sector, Government, Port, Unions, 

etc.) 
 



 

Draft April 9, 2019 

A final list of stakeholders, as well as details of the stakeholder engagement strategy, would be 
created collaboratively after project inception.  

A broader public outreach and communications program would be developed and incorporated 
into the project. 

 

BUDGET AND RESOURCES 

The project is anticipated to last approximately one year and will require outside assistance in 
the form of facilitation and report writing to record, test and present the ideas generated by the 
Lab. A budget of approximately $200,000 is anticipated for this work. The City proposes that this 
budget be shared amongst the municipal core partners and that senior governments be 
requested to contribute.  

An application for funding under CMHC’s Solutions Lab funding will be submitted in spring 
(May) 2019. If successful, up to $250,000 of additional funding would be available to support the 
project. The scope of the project would then be altered to include a substantial research 
component including utilizing a research based approach to test ideas generated by the 
Balanced Housing Innovation Lab over time.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



A <0? UA
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
STRATEGIC AND CORPORATE SERVICES

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Susan Antoniali, Section Manager, Real Estate

SUBJECT: SUNRISE PARKLAND ADJUSTMENT - STATUTORY RIGHT-OF-WAY - 
METRO VANCOUVER WATER MAIN AND PARKS DEDICATION 
BYLAW

Date: Aprils, 2019 File No: 08-3010-01-0001/2019

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Please refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Section Manager, Real Estate, dated April 8,2019 
entitled “Sunrise Parkland Adjustment - Statutory Right-of-Way - Metro 
Vancouver Water Main and Parks Dedication Bylaw”:

THAT “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8706” (Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) be considered;

THAT staff be directed to initiate an Alternative Approval Process for 
parklands located on the southwest corner of Keith Road and Brooksbank 
Avenue;

THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to sign any necessary 
documentation to give effect to this motion;

AND THAT any proceeds received for the fees for the Statutory Right-of-Way 
under the parkland be directed to the Tax Sale Lands Reserve Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Draft “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8706” (Sunrise Parkland Adjustment - Statutory Right-of-Way).

Document 1765908



PURPOSE OF REPORT:

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval of “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, 
No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706” (Sunrise Parkland Adjustment) and 
commencing an Alternative Approval Process to allow a subsurface Statutory Right-of- 
Way for a Metro Vancouver water main. (Attachment #1).

BACKGROUND:

The City of North Vancouver currently has 35 Statutory Right-of-Ways (SRW) with 
Metro Vancouver. SRW’s are a means to provide access to underground rights to 
ensure the integrity of the regional water main service networks.

DISCUSSION:

This initiative is to accommodate a re-routing of the Metro Vancouver water main from 
the constricted intersection of Brooksbank Avenue and East Keith Road to the 
underground northern portion of Sunrise Park. Due to the subsurface already having 
multiple utilities, reconstructing the water main in its current location would cause the 
complete closure of this intersection for approximately 2 months. Leaving the Metro 
water main as-is is considered highly undesirable, as the pipe is deeply buried and has 
been subject to numerous failures. Therefore it is highly likely to experience future 
failures causing the need for disruptive emergency repairs.

Constructing a new section in a less impactful location will likely see a 100-year life of 
the pipe without the need to disturb the park lands. The planned Spirit Trail connection 
along Heywood Street will not be impacted by this initiative.

Metro Vancouver intends to construct and place the water main under the park land, 
which will require temporary construction on the park. Post construction, the area will 
be replanted with appropriate native species and improvements will be made, such as a 
new park entrance with trailhead and new forest trails connecting to 4th Street and 
Gladstone Avenue.

A sketch showing the location of the proposed SRW is shown below.

Document 1765908



Proposed Metro Vancouver Water Main Keith Road

) T

, ' '

- k' %
^ V rjey ^

Ji v

Park

#5-

■/ "

-4^

Sunrise
Park

E 4th St

J fiVAl Ri’l' . k fta sti

-4

I
North'
Shore

Studios

Proposed Metro 
right-of-way

Park and 
Tflford

Pari; and 
Tilford

&■.

IfM
: \ fj

I

■ E

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

In 2017, the City received an independent appraisal of the value of Sunrise Park. Staff 
have applied the same methodology found in the previous appraisal to the lands 
required by Metro Vancouver, and have determined that the value of the lands for the 
SRW interest is estimated at $88,000 for 2,443 sq.ft, of right-of-way for the underground 
piping.

In addition to the SRW payment of $88,000, the City is negotiating with Metro 
Vancouver to cover the costs of the reconstruction of the park entrance and replanting 
of native species.

As the park lands were originally acquired through tax sale, staff recommend that the 
$88,000 be directed to the Tax Sale Land Reserve Fund. It is anticipated that the 
reconstruction funding paid by Metro Vancouver would be used to restore the impacted 
area and create a new trailhead and park entrance.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS:

Collaboration from various City sections include Real Estate, Engineering, Finance, and 
City Clerk’s.

Document 1765908



CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The recommended option is consistent with the City’s Official Community Plan with 
respect to employing a proactive approach to infrastructure maintenance and upgrades.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:
Susan Afitoniali 
Section Manager, Real Estate

Document 1765908



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706 Document: 1756946-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8706 

A Bylaw to amend “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No. 7628” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, 

No. 7628, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706” (Sunrise Parkland Adjustment). 
 
2. “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 2004, No 7628” is hereby amended by:  
 

A. Registering a right of way in favor of the Metro Vancouver Water District over a portion 
of: 

 
(1) Lot 3, Block 13, DL 272 Plan 4692, except part on Plan EPP68036, 

PID 011-393-874; 
(2) Lot 4, Block 13, DL 272 Plan 4692, except part on Plan EPP68036, 

PID 011-393-891. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8706 Document: 1756946-v1 

B. Replacing the map contained within the bylaw with the following map, to reflect the 
right of way in favor of the Metro Vancouver Water District.   

 

 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



IM
CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Ben Themens, Director of Finance

Subject: 2019 TAX RATES BYLAW

Date: April 9,2019 File No: 05-1970-05-0005/2019

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Director of Finance, dated April 9, 2019, entitled 
“2019 Tax Rates Bylaw”:

THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 be brought forward for consideration by 
Council.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 (cityDocs #1765996)

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval for the 2019 Tax Rates Bylaw.

The Community Charter requires the preparation and adoption of a Tax Rates Bylaw, 
after adoption of the financial plan but before May 15 each year. The property tax rates 
are set each year to enable the City to collect the tax levy that is required in the 
Financial Plan.

The Tax Rate Bylaw presented for endorsement reflects the 4.25% tax rate increase 
approved by Council at the March 4, 2019, Regular Council meeting and the tax rate

Document: Number: 1762861-v1



REPORT: 2019 Tax Rates Bylaw 
Date: April 9, 2019

distribution Option 2 (2% shift from Business to Residential Class) endorsed by Council 
at the April 8, 2019, Regular Council meeting.

The 2019 Tax Rates Bylaw contains the following schedules:

Schedule A - Rates required for the City’s total general municipal tax revenue 
Schedule B - Rates required for the City’s storm drainage levy 
Schedule C - Rates required for the City’s eco levy
Schedule D - Rates required for the Metro Vancouver Regional District tax

Note that the other governmental agencies (School, TransLink, BC Assessment and 
Municipal Finance Authority) will set their own respective rates.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Financial implications have been addressed in detail during the 2019 - 2028 Financial 
Planning process.

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLICATIONS:

The preparation and approval of a Tax Rates Bylaw is consistent with the City’s 
Community Vision outlined in the Official Community Plan (OCP). This includes 
anticipating and preparing for future costs, including planning in advance for 
infrastructure replacement; apply taxes fairly between property types; and tax at a rate 
that encourages investment in the City.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Ben Themens 
Director of Finance

Page 2 of 2



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BYLAW NO. 8704 
 

A bylaw for imposing property value taxes on land and improvements 
in the City of North Vancouver for the year 2019. 

 WHEREAS it is provided under Section 197(1) of the Community Charter being, that the 
Council must, each year after adoption of the financial plan but before the 15th day of May, 
subject to the provisions and restrictions of the Community Charter contained, pass a bylaw to 
impose property value taxes on all land and improvements according to the assessed value 
thereof, for the purpose enumerated and set forth in Section 197(1) of the Community Charter; 

 WHEREAS the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver deems it 
necessary and expedient to pass a bylaw for imposing a property value tax on all taxable land 
and improvements, according to the assessed value thereof, on the last Revised Assessment 
roll for The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, the rates thereinafter imposed and 
levied for purpose hereinafter stated; 

 WHEREAS for General and Debt purposes, according to the last Revised Assessment 
Roll of the City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable improvements 
is $26,525,459,197; 

 AND WHEREAS for the Regional Hospital purposes, according to the last Revised 
Assessment roll of the City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable 
improvements is $26,548,246,197; 

 NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in 
open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2019, No. 
8704”. 

2. The following rates are hereby imposed and levied for the year 2019: 

A. For all lawful general purposes of the municipality on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule 
“A” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 

B. For the storm drainage purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements 
taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “B” attached 
hereto and forming a part hereof. 

C. For the eco levy purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements taxable 
for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “C” attached hereto 
and forming a part hereof. 

D. For the City’s appropriate share of the monies required for the operating fund of the 
Metro Vancouver Regional District for the year 2019, on the assessed value of land 
and improvements taxable for Regional Hospital District purposes, rates appearing 
on Schedule “D” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

3. The minimum amount of taxation upon a parcel of real property shall be One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) for property owners 65 years of age and over and Three Hundred and 
Fifty Dollars ($350.00) for property owners under 65 years of age. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 

 
  



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

SCHEDULE “A” 

2019 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 

 

 

Property Class Municipal General 

 

1. Residential       1.61185 

2. Utilities     38.08824 

4. Major Industry    26.18567 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 26.18567 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 21.42464 

for new investment) 

5. Light Industry      5.03018 

6. Business       5.03018 

8. Recreation/Non Profit     1.83638 

 
  



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

SCHEDULE “B” 

2019 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 

 

 

Property Class Storm Drainage 

 

1. Residential     0.05966 

2. Utilities     1.40978 

4. Major Industry    0.96922 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 0.96922 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap        0.79300 

for new investment) 

5. Light Industrial     0.18618 

6. Business     0.18618 

8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.06797 
 
 
  



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

SCHEDULE “C” 

2019 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 

 

 

Property Class Eco Levy 

 

1. Residential     0.02125 

2. Utilities     0.50198 

4. Major Industry    0.34511 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 0.34511 

4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 0.28236 

for new investment) 

5. Light Industry     0.06630 

6. Business     0.06630 

8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.02420 

 
 
  



 

The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8704 Document: 1765996-v1 

SCHEDULE “D” 

2019 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 

 

 

Property Class                            Metro Vancouver Regional District 

 

1. Residential     0.04339 

2. Utilities     0.15186 

4. Major Industry    0.14751 

5. Light Industry     0.14751 

6. Business     0.10630 

8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.04339 

 
 
 



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Wendy Tse, Planner 2

SUBJECT: REZONING APPLICATION: 125 EAST 20™ STREET (VANCOUVER 
RESOURCE SOCIETY FOR THE PHYSICALLY DISABLED / NSDA 
ARCHITECTS)

Date: March 20, 2019 File No: 08-3360-20-0467/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated March 20, 2019, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the 
Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” 
(Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 
East 20th Street, CD-718) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource Society 
for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718, 
Rental Housing Commitments) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

THAT (Funding Appropriation #1918) an amount of $400,000 be appropriated 
from the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund to be granted to the Vancouver 
Resource Society for the Physically Disabled in support of 10 non-market rental 
units in the proposed development, secured in perpetuity;

THAT should any of the amount remain unexpended as at December 31, 2022, 
the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the Affordable Housing 
Reserve Fund;

Document Number: 1754030 v2





REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

In lieu of the “Shared Care” model, VRS has been providing two subsidized rental units 
for persons with disabilities and one rental unit for Hollyburn Family Services’ “Seniors at 
Housing Risk” program. The remainder of the units have been rented at below market 
rates.

In addition to the second mortgage, Council approved the appropriation of up to $300,000 
from the AHRF to help offset anticipated operating shortfalls for VRS. This funding would 
be dispersed on an annual basis, subject to the receipt of an annual operating budget, for 
up to five years. This funding was never utilized by VRS and the second mortgage was 
repaid in full in July 2015, as per the terms of the Partnering Agreement.

Since that time, VRS has been contemplating the potential redevelopment of the site to 
meet their initial vision of providing a “Shared Care” model. In addition, due to the age 
and condition of the building, which was constructed in 1965, significant maintenance and 
building function issues have arisen, challenging the resources and capacity of the non-
profit organization.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant: Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled
Architect: NSDA Architects
Official Community Plan 
Designation: Residential Level 5 (R5)

Existing Zoning: Medium Density Apartment Residential 1 (RM-1)
Applicable Guidelines: None

The application proposes to replace the existing 28-unit, 4-storey rental building with a 
new 6-storey wood-frame apartment building with a total of 85 rental units. Of the 85 rental 
units, 10 units are proposed to be non-market, with rents set at $375 per month (the 
shelter portion of the Persons with Disabilities benefits) or geared to income. The 
remainder of the units would be rented at market rates, with VRS offering below market 
rents for any existing tenants wanting to return to the new development. The rental tenure 
of the development, in addition to the non-market units, would be secured through a 
Housing Agreement with the City.

The subject site is located at the southwest corner of the 100-block of East 20th Street in 
Central Lonsdale (Attachment #1). The site is 2,120.8 square metres (22,828 square feet) 
and slopes downward approximately 2.64 metres (8.7 feet) from east to west along East 
20th Street. The slope in the north-south direction is minimal. The overall development is 
proposed to be 2.59 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) or 5,492.9 square metres (59,125 square 
feet). A summary of the development, as well as architectural and landscape plans, are 
provided as Attachments #2 and #3, respectively.

One level of underground parking is proposed for the development, accessed from the 
lane to the south of the property. The parking level contains vehicle and bicycle parking 
spaces, in addition to mobility scooter parking, storage lockers and a mechanical room.

Page 3 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

The application proposes a variance to both vehicle and bicycle parking, based on the 
rationale that residents of the non-market units would not require the provision of either 
amenity. Instead, the development proposes an extended passenger drop-off zone on 
East 20th Street to accommodate ride services for passengers with disabilities, such as 
HandyDART.

A significant number of accessible units are proposed for the project, including 57 
Adaptable Level 2 units and 10 Adaptable Level 3 units, well above the minimum City 
requirement of 25 percent at Adaptable Level 2 standards. The fully-accessible Adaptable 
Level 3 units would be allocated to tenants with disabilities in the non-market rental units.

The unit mix for the development is proposed as follows:

• 4 Studio Units;
• 63 One-Bedroom Units;
• 12 Two-Bedroom Units; and
• 6 Three-Bedroom Units.

A variety of amenities is proposed for the project, including an indoor/outdoor shared 
social gathering space with kitchen and washroom, a guest room, and active and passive 
outdoor areas, including accessible gardening plots. A small office space for VRS is also 
proposed to help serve residents on-site. The building is required to connect to the 
Lonsdale Energy Corporation (LEG), as per the City's Hydronic Energy Service Bylaw.

POLICY CONTEXT 

Metro 2040

The proposed development aligns with the Metro Vancouver Regional Growth Strategy, 
Metro 2040, through the creation of a compact urban area. The provision of non-market 
rental housing further achieves housing affordability goals established in the Regional 
Affordable Housing Strategy, including:

• Expand the rental supply and balance preservation of existing stock with 
redevelopment while supporting existing tenants;

• Meet housing demand estimates for very low and low income earners; and
• Increase the rental housing supply along the Frequent Transit Network.

Metro Vancouver has been working to better understand the high household cost burden 
faced by renters when housing and transportation costs are considered together. The 
location of the subject site, in close proximity to Lonsdale Avenue, will allow renters to 
utilize public transit, cycling and walking to help minimize transportation costs associated 
with car ownership. In addition, the recently released 2018 Metro Vancouver Apartment 
Parking Study confirms the following key findings:

Page 4 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

• Apartment residential parking supply continues to exceed parking utilization across 
the region; and

• Proximity to the Frequent Transit Network (FTN) is associated with lower 
apartment residential parking utilization and supply.

Based on this study, parking utilization for market rental apartments near the FTN range 
from 0.35 to 0.72 spaces per unit.

2014 Official Community Plan

The Official Community Plan (OCP) identifies the subject site as Residential Level 5 (R5), 
which contemplates multi-unit residential uses with a maximum building height of six 
storeys. The OCP allows for a density of up to 1.6 FSR, with the potential of an additional 
bonus of 1.0 FSR to be granted at the discretion of Council, for a total of 2.6 FSR. City 
policy related to the provision of additional density is discussed in the Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits section below.

The application is in keeping with the vision established in the Official Community Plan 
for the City to be a vibrant, diverse and highly livable community. In particular, this project 
supports the following goals in the OCP:

1.1 Develop a compact, complete community that meets the needs of its diverse 
residents and businesses (1.1.1 and 1.1.2);

1.3 Enhance the distinctive sense of place and livability of the City through high quality 
design and maintenance of urban form (1.3.1 and 1.3.5);

1.4 Enhance quality of life through the provision of amenities (1.4.4); and,

1.5 Pursue attainable housing that meets the needs of its diverse community (1.5.2, 
1.5.3, 1.5.4 and 1.5.6).

As presented, the proposal is consistent with the OCP.

Flousing Action Plan

The Flousing Action Plan (FIAP) establishes strategies and actions for the City to achieve 
greater housing diversity and affordability for residents of all ages, incomes and abilities. 
To incentivize new rental housing, the City offers bonus density for secured market rental 
projects. As a condition of the density bonus, the City requires 10 percent Mid-Market 
Rental (MMR) units to be rented at 10 percent below average rents in perpetuity.

While the City has been successful in recent years in increasing the number of market 
rental units and by extension, MMR units, non-market rental units have been more difficult 
to achieve due to the deep discounts required to support housing for lower income 
individuals. Non-market housing typically requires subsidies from senior levels of 
government, a non-profit society, or a housing co-operative as rents are geared to income 
(e.g. maximum of 30 percent of income).

Page 5 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

In lieu of the required nine MMR units, VRS is proposing 10 wheelchair accessible non- 
market units to be rented to individuals with high care disabilities. To support the creation 
of the non-market units, VRS is requesting a funding contribution of $400,000 from the 
AHRF (Attachment #4). The AHRF, established in 1989, was created to help the City 
implement its affordable housing objectives, including funding affordable housing 
projects. A summary of non-market housing projects facilitated by the AHRF to date is 
provided in Table #1.

In addition to funding from the AHRF, VRS is proposing to use their equity and other 
internally generated funds, including the rents received from the market units in the 
development, to subsidize the non-market units.

Table #1: Non-Market Projects funded by the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund

Year Operator Description Contribution 
from AHRF

1991 Entre Nous Femmes 19-unit townhouse project for families $292,000

2001 North Shore
Connexions

42-unit apartment project for single and 
family households with disabilities $417,815

2005 Lookout Housing and 
Health Society

25-bed adult shelter and 25-bed 
transition housing $263,296

2006 Kiwanis North Shore 
Housing Society 27-unit apartment for seniors $173,275

2007 & 
2009

Marineview Housing 
Society

24-unit supportive housing project for 
individuals with psychiatric disabilities $1.7 million

2018 Community Land Trust
16-unit co-operative townhouse project 
(potential project - currently seeking 
senior government funding)

$2.5 million 
(appropriated)

As per Metro 2040, the need for non-market rental housing is significant in the City with 
approximately 80 new non-market rental units required annually.

The proposed development does not meet the City’s Family-Friendly Housing Policy with 
only six three-bedroom units proposed for the development, instead of the required nine 
three-bedroom units. Recognizing that the foremost priority for VRS is the financial 
viability of the non-market rental units, the overall unit mix is supportable for this 
development.

As the site is currently used as a purpose-built rental building, VRS is required to comply 
with the City’s Residential Tenant Displacement Policy. To date, VRS has hosted 
information meetings with existing tenants and is offering compensation beyond City 
requirements. VRS is offering to pay for moving expenses and provide additional financial 
compensation for longer-term tenants. In addition, all existing tenants who want to return 
to the new development may do so at below-market rents. Information about the tenant

Page 6 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019 _______________________

relocation process to date, including the proposed below market rents for returning 
tenants, is available in Attachment #5.

Sustainable Development Guidelines

A design rationale and sustainability statement for the project is provided in Attachment 
#7. A commitment to social and environmental sustainability is proposed through the 
following efforts:

• Provision of non-market and market rental housing;
• Use of water efficiency measures and storm water management principles;
• Use of high recycled content;
• Consideration of indoor environmental quality and comfort;
• Connection to the LEG system;
• Achievement of Step 3 of the BC Energy Step Code; and
• Provision of 20 percent of residential stalls for electric vehicle charging.

Active Design Guidelines

The proposed development would achieve many of the social interaction elements of the 
City’s Active Design Guidelines, including an indoor/outdoor amenity space for residents. 
In addition, community gardens are proposed, with accessible gardening plots provided 
to ensure individuals in wheelchairs can partake in this activity. The overall building is 
designed to be accessible and inclusive, with wider hallways and ramps to promote 
interaction of tenants of all abilities.

Due to the high number of individuals in wheelchairs anticipated for this project, the Active 
Design elements that promote stair use was not incorporated into this development.

Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700

The subject site is currently zoned Medium Density Apartment Residential 1 (RM-1), 
which permits a multi-unit building up to three storeys or 13 metres (42.6 feet) in height. 
An amendment to the Zoning Bylaw is required, via a new Comprehensive Development 
Zone 718 (CD-718) Zone, to permit the following requested variances:

• Density increase to 2.6 FSR in exchange for rental tenure and 10 non-market 
rental units, secured in perpetuity through a Housing Agreement;

• Height maximum of six-storeys;
• Reduced building setbacks to suit the proposed development;
• Waiver of maximum building width above the third storey;
• Allowance of the parking structure and fencing to be located within 4.6 metres (15 

feet) of the intersection of the lot lines at the northwest corner of the property;
• Reduced recycling and garbage room size by nominal amount;
• Reduced vehicle parking by 10 spaces (9 residential and 1 visitor space); and
• Reduced secured bicycle parking by nine spaces.

Page 7 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

A complete list of amendments is provided in Attachment #8.

PLANNING ANALYSIS 

Use

The proposed use of the subject site as multi-unit residential is consistent with the OCR 
and surrounding area (Table #2).

The subject site is located in Central Lonsdale, within walking distance to a number of 
community amenities, public transit, employment, and retail services along Lonsdale 
Avenue. In addition, the proximity to medical and social services and the relatively flat 
topography of the neighbourhood makes the use of the site for individuals with high care 
disabilities appropriate.

Table #2: Surrounding Uses

Direction Address Description Zoning
North
across East
20th Street

2032 Lonsdale 
Avenue

One-storey commercial 
building (London Drugs)

General Commercial 
(C-2)

North
across East
20th Street

132 East 20th Street Four-storey rental 
apartment

Comprehensive 
Development 448 
(CD-448)

South 
across lane 120 East 19th Street Three-storey rental 

apartment

Medium Density
Apartment Residential 1 
(RM-1)

South 
across lane 124 East 19th Street Four-storey rental 

apartment

Medium Density
Apartment Residential 1 
(RM-1)

East 135 East 20th Street Three-storey strata 
building

Medium Density
Apartment Residential 1 
(RM-1)

West
across lane

1900-1950 Lonsdale 
Avenue

Two-storey commercial 
building

General Commercial 
(C-2)

Intensity

The proposed development at six-storeys and 2.59 FSR is consistent with the height and 
density contemplated in the OCR. The subject site is in a transitional location being 
directly adjacent to Lonsdale Avenue to the northwest and west. The OCR land use 
designation for the properties on Lonsdale Avenue is Mixed Use Level 3 (Medium 
Density), which permits a maximum density of 2.3 FSR and a potential bonus of 0.5 FSR, 
for a total density of 2.8 FSR. The height maximum for these properties is 25 metres (82 
feet) or approximately eight storeys.

Page 8 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019 _____

Parking

To reduce excavation costs, one level of underground parking is proposed for the 
development. In total, 41 vehicle spaces for tenants, eight vehicle spaces for visitors and 
119 secured bicycle spaces are proposed for the project. Of the 119 secured bicycle 
spaces, seven spaces are earmarked for mobility scooters. The underground level further 
proposes 57 storage spaces, of which 20 will be accessible. In addition, 12 short-term 
bicycle spaces will be provided near the front entry of the development.

The parking variances requested are detailed in Table #3. Due to the tenants envisioned 
for the non-market rental units, staff support the proposed variance to parking. Similar 
reductions in vehicle and bicycle parking have been provided for prior non-market rental

projects in the City, recognizing that the demand for parking may be reduced for non- 
market tenures. In this case, tenants of the non-market units are high care individuals 
with disabilities, many of whom may not be able to drive a car or ride a bicycle, but instead, 
rely on ride services, such as HandyDART. To accommodate access for VRS clients, an 
extended passenger loading zone on East 20th Street is proposed to accommodate pick-
up and drop-off for individuals with mobility limitations.

Table #3: Proposed Parking Variances

Type of Parking Space Zoning Bylaw Requirement Proposed
Rental Residential 51 spaces (0.6 spaces per unit) 41 spaces
Visitor 9 spaces (0.1 spaces per unit) 8 spaces
Secure Bicycle 128 spaces (1.5 spaces per unit) 119 spaces

The development is required to provide off-site infrastructure upgrades, as per City 
bylaws, including:

• New boulevard sidewalk on East 20th Street;
• Rain garden, street trees and grass boulevard on East 20th Street;
• Full lane reconstruction with curb extensions and speedbumps; and
• New overhead and pedestrian level street lighting.

Form

In response to the higher height and density potential on Lonsdale Avenue, the building 
is designed in a “T” shape, with the top of the “T” flanking the north-south lane on the 
western portion of the site, adjacent to the high street. The siting of the building results in 
the bulk of the building being closest to Lonsdale Avenue, with two larger open areas 
available on the street and the lane to accommodate semi-private and private green 
spaces. The bottom of the “T” is in line with the neighbourhood building to the east to 
reduce shadowing impacts.

The use of colour, material, and relief through the provision of balconies assists in 
reducing the overall massing of the building. In particular, the darker colour on the 
uppermost floor helps to minimize visual bulk and create greater interest in design.

Page 9 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East 20th Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

Density Bonus and Community Benefits

The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits (DBCB) Policy, in conjunction with the 
Official Community Plan, allows a density bonus of 1.0 FSR for properties designated 
Residential Level 5. To achieve the density bonus, VRS has agreed to secure, in 
perpetuity, the rental tenure of the development, in addition to the 10 non-market rental 
units through a Housing Agreement. The provision of non-market rental units in a market 
rental development is unique, and not a common occurrence due to the financial 
challenges of rental development. To assist in the financial viability of the non-market 
units, VRS is requesting funding from the City to deliver upon this community amenity.

If the applicant was proposing these units for sale as a strata development, the DBCB 
Policy would value the bonus density at just over $4.3 million as shown in Table #4.

Table #4: Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing

Density Value Calculation Value
Density Bonus from 1.60 FSR to 1.60 FSR / OCR Density (@ $25 / sq. ft.) N/A
Density Bonus from 1.60 to 2.60 FSR (@ $190 / sq. ft.) $4,337,320
Total Value of Community Benefits $4,337,320

ADVISORY BODY INPUT

The Advisory Design Panel (ADP) reviewed the application on September 19, 2018 and 
recommended approval of the project, subject to the issues outlined in Attachment #7 
being addressed to the satisfaction of staff.

In response to ADP’s comments the applicant has made the following modifications:

• Use of colour and fagade materials to give greater visual interest and reduce the 
massing; and

• Landscaping improvements, including using low level planting to deter graffiti 
along low exterior walls.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

The applicant held a Developer Information Session (DIS) with the local community on 
September 12, 2018. A total of 11 people signed in and two comment sheets were 
submitted at the meeting. Staff have received additional comments on the proposal via 
email, which are included, along the with DIS summary prepared by the applicant, in 
Attachment #8.

The overall feedback received was mixed, with concerns raised about shadowing 
impacts, height, and general design and colours of the development. An additional 
comment was expressed about the desire for additional affordable housing for individuals 
in need of subsidized units.

Page 10 of 11



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 125 East20lh Street (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically
Disabled / NSDA Architects)
Date: March 20, 2019

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Housing affordability is beyond the resources and authority of local government to 
effectively address on their own. As such, unique opportunities to work with non-profit 
housing operators to create new non-market housing units is critical to increasing the 
stock of affordable housing in innovative ways.

VRS is requesting $400,000 from the AHRF to help create 10 non-market rental units for 
individuals with high care disabilities. The funding of affordable housing is part of the 
mandate of the AHRF.

The 2019-2028 Project Plan, endorsed by Council on March 4, 2019, includes a provision 
of $2.2 million for affordable housing projects. The proposed appropriation falls within the 
budgeted amount. If approved, there will be $1.8 million remaining for other affordable 
housing projects. Through the Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, additional 
financial contributions is anticipated for the AHRF.

CONCLUSION

The proposed development at 125 East 20th Street would provide a new 85-unit, six- 
storey non-market and market rental project owned and operated by the non-profit 
organization, Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled. The provision of 
non-market rental housing in a new market rental project is unique, hence the request 
from VRS for a funding contribution of $400,000 from the AHRF to support this community 
amenity.

The overall development is consistent with both the Regional Growth Strategy and the 
OCP in use, intensity and form. The proposed development is in close proximity to 
Lonsdale Avenue, with easy access to community amenities, public transit, employment, 
and retail services. With its location adjacent to Lonsdale Avenue, the proposed parking 
variances are supportable and are consistent with parking reductions provided to prior 
non-market rental projects in the City.

Staff recommend Council grant first and second reading to proposed Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 8701 (Attachment #9) and Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 8702 (Attachment 
#10) and that a Public Hearing be scheduled.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Wendy Tse 
Planner 2

WT/rf/eb

Page 11 of 11



City of North Vancouver

Context Map

1
2

3

1
3

5

1
4

5

1
2

0

1 8 4 0

1 8 2 6
1

6
0

1
5

5

1
5

7

1
5

5

1 9 0 5

2
0

31
2

1

1
2

5

1 8 2 0

2 0 0 1

1
4

3

2
0

4

1
9

4
9

2
0

2

1 8 4 9

1 8 2 9

2 0 3 5

1
3

2

1
4

5

1 9 2 5

1
2

5

1
5

5

2 0 3 5

1 6 0

1
2

4
1

2
5

1
9

0
0

1 9 4 5

1
4

5

2
0

3

1
1

6

2 0 2 5

1
2

5

1
2

5

1
5

7

1
3

5

1
2

4

1 8 4 4

1 8 5 7

1 8 3 6

1
4

5

2 0 5 7

1
2

5

1
4

0

1
2

5

1
2

5

1 9 2 5

2
0

1

1
2

4

2
0

4
8

1
6

5

1
4

5

1
2

4

1 8 5 4

1
2

4

1 9 2 5

1
2

1

2
0

5

1 9 1 5

1
2

0

2
0

3
2

1
2

4

2
0

5
7

1 4 4

1
2

0

1
9

0
8

1 8 3 1

1 4 3

PLOTT ED : 2/26/2019

COOR DIN ATE SYSTEM: NAD 83, U TM Zone 10

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

0 10 205
Meters

Legend
Subject Site

1:1,500

SOUR CE: StaffMAP



SITE CHARACTERISTICS

OCP Designation

Existing Zoning 

Site Area

FLOOR AREA AND HEIGHT Existing Zoning (RM-1)

Total Lot Coverage Maximum 50%

Principal Building Height 
Maximum 13.0 m            

(42.7 ft.)                   
or three storeys

SETBACKS

Front (East 20th Street)

Interior Side Yard (West)

Interior Side Yard (East)

Rear (South)

BICYCLE PARKING

Total Bicycle Parking (stalls)

VEHICLE PARKING

Resident

Visitor

Total Vehicle Parking (stalls)

Proposed 

PROJECT SUMMARY SHEET
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

125 East 20th Street

Residential Level 5 (R5)

2,120.8 sq. m                  
(22,828 sq. ft.)

Medium Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RM-1)

Offical Community Plan 

Numbers based on plans dated March 4, 2019                                                                                                                        #1754164

47.0%

19.5 m                       
(63.9 ft.)                     

and six storeys
Maximum Six Storeys

Proposed

N/A

Existing Zoning (RM-1)

6.1 m (20 ft.)

4.6 m (15 ft.)

4.6 m (15 ft.)

60 49

9 8

Required

6.1 m (20 ft.)

Floor Space Ratio
Maximum 1.6 FSR           
or 3,393.3 sq. m            
(36,525 sq. ft.) 

5,475.3 sq. m                 
(58,936 sq. ft.)                 

2.6 FSR

                            
OCP - 1.6 FSR                

3,393.3 sq. m (36,525 sq. ft.)      
Density Bonus - 1.0 FSR         

2,120.8 sq. m (22,828 sq. ft.)

Total Maximum               
5,514.1 sq. m (59,353 sq. ft.)     

2.6 FSR

Proposed 

2.0 m (6.5 ft.)

2.9 m (9.5 ft.)

3.8 m (12.5 ft.)

3.5 m (11.5 ft.)

128 secured / 12 short term 119 secured / 12 short term

51 41

Required Proposed





»U M
O

T* KCMMVtD MO KMKTM M»» COMY. MCPMOOOCt. 
MCMueuiM. TSAMMirr on nurn tmo

 oocuuckt
, in wm

ou
 on w 

p*MT. w
m

our tml Lxvmina wm
ntM

 conocnt
 of ucclmanmct

 
ASSOCIATES LAND SUAVCYMO LTD

11 
M

c
E

lh
a

n
n

e
y

M
cE

lhinnty C
ontultlng S

trvic** U
d.

C
O

R
E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

103-375 LYNN AVENUE. NORTH VANCOUVER. V7J2C4

TO
P

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 P

LA
N
 O

F LO
TS

 35 A
N

D
 36 O

F 
LO

TS
 4 A

N
D

 5. P
LA

N
 1102 A

N
D

 LO
TS

 37 T
O

 39 O
F LO

T 6. 
P

LA
N
 1163 A

LL O
F

 B
LO

C
K

 7 D
IS

TR
IC

T LO
T 549

NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS
jm

.n4AU»nii

125 E
a

st 20th 
N

orth V
ancouver

S
 

V
R

S
S

urvey

17033 

A
s N

oted

A-001



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITE

C
TS

301-04 Alabon U 
Cu-ooo V40 3>4

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

V
R

S
S

ite C
o
n
text

17033

1:450

A
-002





A
-004



Issued tof Re^onng

NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

S
h
a
d
ow

 A
nalysis

17033

1:450

A
-005



... ..

Longitudinal S
ection NSDA

A
R

C
H

ITEC
TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

S
tree

t E
levations and S

ections

17033

1:200

A
-006



NSDA

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

P
I P

arking P
lan

17033

1:100

A-101



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

1st F
loor P

lan

17033

1-100

A
-102



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

1st F
loo

r P
lan - A

rea D
iagram

17033

1:100

A
-102a



A
-102b



A
-103



@ (”)

NSDA

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

2nd F
lo

or P
lans - A

rea D
iagram

17033

A
-103a



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

P £04«U.I34I

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

V
R

S
2nd F

loo
r P

lans - T
rave

l D
istance

17033

1:100

A
-103b



A
-104



A
-104a



A
-104b



A
-105



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

T
ypical U

n
it P

lans

A
-106



A
-107



NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS

125 E
ast 20th 

N
orth V

ancouver

S
ections

17033

1:100
Longitudinal S

aclion

A
-201



26IB*30*1t 
lisuedlorRftMnT'Q

30IM
W

X 
R«»si«d la Beiormo

M
aterials Legend

(~) clear Glazing In Vinyl Fromeo 

Q
 Clear Glazing In Sloralronl Fmmaa 

(^) Pro Flnlahod Compoallo Panola 

Pro Finlahod Compoflito Pnnoln 

Q
 Pro Finished Compo&llo Panola 

Q
 Glass Railing In Aluminum Frames 

Polntod Motul Fence 

Q
 Metal Fashing 

Q
soflil

Pip Finished Composite Panels 

W
ood Fence

NSDA
A

R
C

H
ITEC

TS
im.Q4 tLbai SI 
Co-uOs V4B 3m 
r SOJ.aof.IS3e 
I aOJ an].33Jt

125 E
a

st 20th 
N

orth V
ancouver

V
R

S
E

levations

17033

1:100

A
-301



W
osl E

levation

M
atorlalt Loqond

(~) Clear OlozInD In Vinyl FmmeQ 

{^) Clear Glazing In Storefront Frames 

Q
P

ro Flnlshod Composilo Ponols 

Q
pro Fimshod Composilo Panels 

(^) Pra Finished Composite Ponols 

Gloss Rolling In Aluminum Fromes 
(^~) Pmnled Metal Fence 

Metal Flashing 
0S

olTil

C^) Pro Rnlshed Composite Panels 
Q

w
ood Fence

A
-302



125 E
ast 20th

Re-Issued for Rezoning

C
o

n
ta

ct Inform
ation

O
th

e
r K

ey C
ontacts:

van dor Zalm
 * aooodatoa Inc.

Sulla 1-20177 07lh Avonuo
Langloy, Brllluh Columbia. VIM

 4B0
1.604 882 0024 1.604 882 0042

Primary pra]ocl conlacd

JonnBorQvdica
604 546 0034

Allomolo conlada (Incaso away):
Mnri< van dor Zalm
Prindpol Landscape Architect 
marinflivdz.cn
O. 604 882 0024 *22

#310 - 2006 W
ool 10th Avo

Vancouver. B.C.
L 604 7311020

NSDAArchlludk

201-134 Abbott SI
Vancouver BC
Canada V6B2K4

(. 604 683 2241 
lnloftn6da.bc.ca

Coro
P-riflc-.r-laurJI-r
102-375 Lynn Avonuo

BC Canada V7J2C4
Cormac Unnhnn, PXno
L 778.835X430 
cormaclBlcoropm.ca

Legal A
ddress and D

escription:
LOTS 35 AND 36 OF
LOTS 4 AND 5. PU

N 1102 AND LOTS 37 TO 30 OF LOT 6.
PU

N 1163 ALL OF BLOCK 7 DISTRICT LOT 540
PIDS: 012-180-360.012-160-360.012-180-611.012-180-020 AND 012-180-637
125 EAST 20TH STREET. NORTH VANCOUVER. B.C.

Landscape S
heet List Table

S
h

e
e

t N
um

ber
S

h
e
et T

lile
S

h
o

al N
um

ber

L-01
C

O
V

E
R

 S
H

E
E

T
L-01

L-02
T

R
E

E
 R

E
T

E
N

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L P
LA

N
L-02

L-03
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

LA
N

L-03

LD
-01

D
E

T
A

ILS
LD

-01

LD
-02

D
E

T
A

ILS
LD

-02

LD
-03

D
E

T
A

ILS
LD

-03

LD
-04

P
R

E
C

E
D

E
N

T
S

LD
-04

LS
-01

S
E

C
T

IO
N

LS
-01

F 
r-3

-
r [j

G 
•!' 

~
 '

, Ijfit E 
p <•

IS
*

a
______

J
 ! 1 

|

fe
 f, , 

’. 
b

I b
j
 

iL
 

'

1 1 I 
’

P
roject 

Site

• 
S

' 
l 7

- ' 
■ 

"f' 
JU

L
^

' <05?- 
V!T"-7'

T
- 

-TT 
rr- 

A
rc

- /-r 
rr- ^

 r
' 

. 
„

f
t
r
"
-

 
^

 
■■

StowSIEb.----------H
ff-------

1- 
-a

H
R

^.-sL-.w
'^S

a
u
^-

(T
bE

i P
LA

N
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

f
 von dorZolm

 + ossoc
*
 /^PniksSRpO

TBlW
i - CMCno 

Urt-B D*«lQn . Landtca

0
JW

Hduum
 lo< Hoamlng

Mom. 04, 2010
4

JW
l«iui«l lor llB.-trtno

Juno 11,2010
3

U
iM

uodrorH^to-
Jun. 0,2010

!
u

luvad for Honnlno
May 24.2010

1
U

luuodforRovbw
May 10,2010

No.
or.

Doccrlptbn
Odo

REVISIONS TABLE FOR DRAW
INGS

Z
Z

No.
or

Deocilpllon
Dor.

REVISIONS TABLE FOR SHEET

Project:

125E
20TH

Location:
125 East 20th Stroot,
N

orth V
ancouver BC

uChecked:

Approved:
M

VDZ
Oriolnnl Shoal Slia:
24“*36“

Scale:

I---
LULUXCOX

 
LU 

!
>

 
I

O
I oCDoo
it O
# CM
S 0

- 
§ Q

1 o
 

I 
'l





E
20TH

 S
treet

B
ike C

anopy R
efer to A

rch 
R

am
p R

efer to A
rch —

 
B

ench Typ.

G
reen  roof

S
torm

 w
ater 

m
anagem

ent
:
 under sidew

alk

P
rivacy Fence 

A
rch

S
torm

 w
ater m

anagem
ent 

refer to C
ivil

Jakobs Trellis W
ebnet 

P
ergola w

ith vines 

H
an/est Table

1200m
m

 high 
alum

inum
 fence 

on concrete w
all

C
ustom

B
ench

P
LA

N
T S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

G
arbage

P
lanters

Trellis R
efer to A

rch ■

3.0m
 long x 0.61m

 deep 
root barrier
3.0m

 long x 0.3m
 deep 

root barrier

B
ench Typ.

S
hrub P

lanting on slab Typ.

FEN
C

IN
G

S
O

FTS
C

A
P

E M
A

TER
IA

LS

S
ITE

 FU
R

N
ISH

IN
G

S

G
roundcover planting

P
roperty Line

Broadw
ay

S
peed H

um
p 

R
efer to C

ivil
-A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

LA
N

Drawing#: VDZ Project#: 2 Drawing Title:

L-03 DP2018-16 LANDSCAPE PLAN



D
raw

ing #: 
V

D
Z Project #: 

D
raw

ing Title:

LD
-01 

D
P2018-16 

D
ETAILS



M
odel: Square Sorloa 

Size: 36‘Lx36"W
x36"H 

M
anufacturer: G

reen Theory 
Color: G

lossy W
hile

G
>

(?>

M
odel: Parallel 42 Bench

M
anufacturer: Landscape Form

s
Color: W

ood with white powder coaled m
etal

M
ounting: Surface M

ount
67* Straight Unit

P
A

R
A

LLE
L B

E
N

C
H

alum
inum

 picket 

bar stock support post

stock support 

stock support post

nnnel rail 
TSO

m
m

x ISO
m

m
x 10m

m
base 

plate welded to bottom
 of post 

m
croto Retaining wall 

per arch and structural

(5>
A

LU
M

IN
U

M
 G

U
A

R
D

R
A

IL

(D-

M
odel: Broadway Paver 

M
anufacture: Barkm

an Concrotr 
C

olon Natum
l

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 P
A

V
E

R

M
odel: Bola Bike Rock 

M
anufacturer Landscape Form

s 
C

olor Stainless stool 
M

ounting: Surface M
ount

.A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 FO
R

M
S

 B
O

LA
 B

IK
E

 R
A

C
K

NO
TES:

1. 
AD wood to bo Cedar

2. 
A

ll hardware to bo hot dip galvanized
3. 

Contractor to provide shop drawings.

'50m
m

 X
 200m

m
 cap rail—

■100m
m

 X
 100m

m
 lino post —

 

•50m
m

 X
 100m

m
 side support—

■50m
m X

 100m
m

 m
iddle ra 

■25m
m X

 150m
m

 fence boards—

100m
m

x100m
m

 post saddle (for lino —
 

posts) and 150m
m

x150m
m

 post 
saddle (for corner posts) anchored In

—
Concrete Retaining wan —

FRO
NT ELEVATIO

N

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

t
 von dor Zolm

 + ossociotos ini
^

 Puli* & RecraUlon * CNV Cnglrwcflng
Ul*‘*nll**|n * U»d*c*p*Aian*«

5
JW

R*H,*uM W
 R«0Nn,

much 04.2010
4

JW
losjcd for Rezonns

Jim
 11.3011

3
u

l™
u!W

R
~

^
jM

«.a)i»
U

l**ood fcr ReoonnB
m

organa
1

u
Ksuod lor Rovlew

Mar ID. Z010
No.

Dr:
DounpBon

Dale
REVISIONS TABLE FOR DRAW

INGS

No.
Or:

DeOToton
0.1.

REVISIONS TABLE FOR SHEET

Project:

125 E 20TH

Location:
125 East 20th Street,
N

orth V
ancouver BC

UChocked:
JWApproved:
MVDZ

Original Sheet Size:
24”x36“

Scale

AS SHOW
N

Drawing #: VDZ Project #: Drawing Title:

LD-02 DP2018-16 DETAILS



M
odel: A

rchitectural S
eries 

LE
D

 S
trip Light 

M
anufacturer: U

ltraB
right™

(D-

M
odel: A

ccent 1-Lt 12V
C

olour: Textured A
rchitectural Bronze

M
anufacturer: K

ichlor

d>
TR

E
E

 U
P

LIG
H

TS

M
odel: S

top 2-Lt 12V
C

olour: Textured A
rchitectural Bronze

M
anufacturer: K

ichler

©
"

STAIR
AW

ALL LIG
H

TS

M
 von dor Zolm

 ♦ ossociolos im
^

 P»rtf & R«cr«rtion • M
 Cngimwlng 

^
 

U(b*n D*»gn . UntftcapvAnftlectt
| p asucucM

JW
Rr<ra»d lor Roconng

MorcTi 04. JOIS
JW

NkjoO lor Rwonnp

u
liourO lor Roxorong 

"
an.

u
l.u,M

W
R

L.
MOT 11.201.

No.
B»:

DoKnpbon
0>Io

REVISIONS TABLE FOR DRAW
INGS

No.
Bj:

PoocnoUon
0.1.

REVISIONS TABLE FOR SHEET

Project:

125 E 20TH

Location:
125 East 20th Street.
N

orth V
ancouver BC

uChockod:

Approved
MVOZ

Original Shost See:
24"x36"

Seals:

AS SHOW
N

LD-03 DP2018-16 DETAILS



R
E

D
 TIP

P
E

D
 N

O
R

W
A

Y
 S

P
R

U
C

E
G

O
LD

E
N
 FU

LLM
O

O
N
 M

A
P

LE

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
LE

 P
LA

N
TE

R
S

Project:

125 E 20TH

E
f&

E
1<§S|

05J30

Drawing 0: VDZ Project 0: Drawing Title:

LD-04 DP2018-16 PRECEDENTS



©
-

900m
m

 doop — 
; '-J. '■ 

G
arden w

allscapo 
drip strip edge

d>
S

E
C

TIO
N

 A
 B

E
TW

E
E

N
 W

E
S

T P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 LIN

E
 A

N
D

 B
U

ILD
IN

G

0
-1 S

E
C

TIO
N

 B B
E

TW
E

E
N

 E
20TH

 S
TR

E
E

T A
N

D
 B

U
ILD

IN
G

t
 Y

ondorZolm
 +

REVISIONS TABLE FOR DRAW
INGS

REVISIONS TABLE FOR SHEET

Project:

125 E 20TH

Location:
125 East 20th Street, 
N

orth V
ancouver BC

Approved
MVDZ

Scale:

AS SHOW
N

Original  Shoe! Size: 
24"x36"

b I--
P
 of
 LU
i co

/NCOI
co

? O
 

cm
 

5 0- 
s Q

»
 
°

IC
O









125 EAST 20th AVENUE V7L 3A3

UNIT/TENANT MIX

December 4 2017
sq ft Rent Tenure 

monthly years
1 2bdr 882 $1,029 17
2 2bdr 889 $930 16
3 1 bdr 732 $900 4
4 1 bdr 806 $787 14
5 1 bdr 704 $650 6
6 1 bdr 710 $879 3
7 1 bdr 771 $912 1
8 1 bdr 777 $980 1
9 bach 558 $705 5
10 1bdr 814 $895 2
21 2 bdr 835 $1,024 5
22 2bdr 919 $1,096 4
23 1 bdr 750 $920 4
24 1 bdr 803 $909 28
25 1 bdr 706 $960 >1
26 2 bdr 1,158 $1,238 10
27 1 bdr 764 $930 1
28 2 bdr 899 $1,053 11
29 1 bdr 731 $935 2
31 2 bdr 899 $903 21
32 2 bdr 919 $920 46
33 1 bdr 803 $948 3
34 1mbd 750 $946 12
35 1 bdr 706 $925 9
36 2 bdr 1,158 $1,187 7
37 1 bdr 764 $920 1
38 2 bdr 835 $1,030 11
39 1 bdr 731 $893 18
office
Lonsdale medical 

382
Storage 350

23,505 $26,404 260.5
 



                                         
Feb 8, 2018 

 

TO: Royal Crown Tenant , 125 E. 20th, North Vancouver V7M 2K2 

FROM: Vancouver Resource Society 

RE:  Royal Crown -Redevelopment 

 

Dear Royal Crown Tenants,  

 

We invite you to attend our  first information session regarding the planning and 
redevelopment  of 125 East 20th Street, North Vancouver.   

The project development team will be hosting this meeting for the tenants of BUILDING to 
provide initial details and answer questions. Tenants will also have the opportunity to learn 
about the tenant relocation planning process. 

 

The meeting will be held on Monday, February 26, 2018 from 5:30 pm to 7:30 pm 

At the Royal Canadian Legion on  123 West 15th , North Vancouver in the Chris 
Lucus Room.   

 

 

****Please fill out your relocation questionnaire form and bring it to the meeting . 

 If you are not attending the session please give the form to a neighbour that will be attending. 

Thank You  

 
Ken Fraser, Executive Director,     ken@vrs.org      604-731-1020 ex 206 
Vancouver Resource Society 



 

ROYAL CROWN TENANT COMPENSATION POLICY (Feb 8, 2018) 

 

 

1 All tenants in the building will be given a minimum move out payment 
equal to 3 times your monthly rental payment. 
 

2 All tenants in the building will be given a moving allowance of $500 for a 
1 bedroom unit and $700 for a 2 bedroom unit. 

 
3 All tenants in the building with over 12 years tenure will have their move 

out payment topped up to $8,400 for a 1 bedroom and $12,000 for a 2 
bedroom unit.  ie, 3 months rent plus top up equals $8,400 for a 1 
bedroom or $12,000 for a  2 bedroom  

 
4 All tenants in the building will be offered to move back into the new 

building once it is completed. 
 

5 All tenants in the building with over 12 years tenure and who choose to 
move back into the new building will be offered a 1 bedroom unit for 
$1220 or a 2 bedroom unit for $1800.  To qualify for this rental rate your 
income must be less than $45000 annually for a 1 bedroom and $61000 
for a 2 bedroom. 

 
6 All tenants with less than 12 years tenure will be given the same offer 

but it will be prorated based on your years of tenure divided by 12. 
 



 1 

 
ROYAL CROWN TENANT RELOCATION QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
 
Name: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Suite # - Address: ____________125 East 20th Street, North Vancouver 
 
Rent: $_________ Lease Start (Move-in Date) DD/MM/Year =    __________________________ 
  
 

HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS 
 
PRIMARY LEASEHOLDER 
 
Name ________________________________________ Age ________ Relationship_______________ 
 
Home Phone ____________________ Cell Phone __________________ Email ____________________ 
 
Employer _______________________ Location ________________________________________  
 
 
Do you: Smoke ______________ Pet (if yes, # and kind)________________ # of Cars _____________ 
 
 
OTHER TENANT(S) NAMED ON THE LEASE WHO RESIDE IN THE RENTAL UNIT 
 
Name ________________________________________ Age ________ Relationship_______________ 
 
Home Phone ____________________ Cell Phone __________________ Email ____________________ 
 
 
Do you: Smoke ______________ Pet (if yes, # and kind)________________ # of Cars _____________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHOOL AGE CHILDREN RESIDING IN THE UNIT & RELATIONSHIP TO YOU (IF ANY) 
 
1. Name ________________________________________ Age _____  Relationship_____________ 
 
School Name  ___________________________________________ Grade __________________ 



 2 

 
2. Name ______________________________________ Age ________  Relationship_______________ 
 
School Name  ___________________________________________ Grade __________________ 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS RESIDING IN THE UNIT & RELATIONSHIP TO YOU (IF ANY) 
 
Name ________________________________________ Age ________ Relationship_______________ 
 
Home Phone ____________________ Cell Phone __________________ Email ____________________ 
 
 
Smoke ______________ Pet (if yes, # and kind)________________ # of Cars ______________ 
 
Name ________________________________________ Age ________ Relationship_______________ 
 
Home Phone ____________________ Cell Phone __________________ Email ____________________ 
 
 
Smoke ______________ Pet (if yes, # and kind)________________ # of Cars  ______________ 
 
CURRENT MARKET REALITY 
The rental housing market is extremely tight and rents continue to rise. Based on current rents on 
the North Shore, the following are typical monthly rent ranges by unit types: 
1 bedroom: $1300 – 2000 – majority in the $1500-2000 range 
2 bedrooms: $1600 – 2500 – majority in the $2000+ range 
3 bedrooms: $2200 – 4000 – limited stock & small # of vacancies  
4 bedrooms: $3500 – 5000 – very limited options and vacancies 
 
I am/we are not interested in the opportunity to move back into the new building      Initial    _______ 
 
I am/We are/ interested in the opportunity to move back to the new building when it is ready for 
occupancy, provided I/we keep my contact information updated with VRS. I/We fully understand that 
if I/we choose to move back to the new building, I/we will need to meet the eligibility requirements set 
out by VRS. I/We are responsible for all moving costs and related expenses to move back.  Initials ___ 
 
 
 
 
HOUSING NEEDS  
 
Number of Bedrooms ______________                Monthly rent you can afford $_________________  
 
Would consider:     Apartment______ Townhouse _______ Basement Suite _______ House ______ 



 3 

 
Do you need Parking? Yes __________   No ____________    # of stalls _____________ 
 
Neighbourhood(s) you are interested in moving to __________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Do you need to be near: Transportation________ Shopping ________ School_________ Other ______  
 
If so, please explain reasons: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
What do you NEED to have in your new home? _____________________________________________ 
 
What would be NICE to have? ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Is there anything preventing you from looking and moving now? _______________________________ 
 
Have you been looking for a new home? Please tell us what you have done thus far? 
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

UNDERSTANDING YOUR HOUSING NEEDS  
 
Tell us about your own and other household members.  
 
Disabilities or health concerns _________________________________________________________ 
 
Anticipated change in family circumstances: E.g., travel, new baby, someone moving, retirement?  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Other Information 
Anything else we should know? 
 
 
 

 
 



125 EAST 20th AVENUE V7L 3A3

UNIT/TENANT MIX
March 07, 2019

sq ft Rent Tenure   

monthly years
1 2bdr 882
2 2bdr 889
3 1 bdr 732
4 1 bdr 806
5 1 bdr 704
6 1 bdr 710
7 1 bdr 771
8 1 bdr 777 980 1
9 bach 558
10 1bdr 814 895 2
21 2 bdr 835
22 2bdr 919
23 1 bdr 750
24 1 bdr 803 909 28
25 1 bdr 706
26 2 bdr 1158 1238 10
27 1 bdr 764 930 1
28 2 bdr 899
29 1 bdr 731
31 2 bdr 899
32 2 bdr 919
33 1 bdr 803
34 1mbdr 750
35 1 bdr 706
36 2 bdr 1158 1187 7
37 1 bdr 764
38 2 bdr 835
39 1 bdr 731
office
Lonsdale medical 

382
Storage 350

23505 6139 49
 2

  

NOTES ON TENANT RELOCATION
Following the initial meeting with the tenants on Feb 26th , 2018, when the tenant relocation compensation package
and additional project information was presented, additional meetings were then held on September 6th, 2018 and
January 22nd, 2019. Tenants were updated on the status of the permitting process, design, and construction timelines.
As of March 7, 2019, there are 6 units that remain occupied. 















VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Developer Information Session Summary

125 East 20th Street

Meeting held September 12, 2018



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

2 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Table of Contents
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................. 3

Overview ................................................................................................................................................. 4

Event Details ........................................................................................................................................... 5

Notification Methods .............................................................................................................................. 5

Developer Information Session Layout .................................................................................................... 6

Representatives at Event ......................................................................................................................... 6

Summary of Attendees and Comment Form Feedback ............................................................................ 7

Appendix A - Presentation Materials ....................................................................................................... 8

Appendix B - Newspaper Advertisement................................................................................................ 11

Appendix C - Mail-out Flyer ................................................................................................................... 13

Appendix D - Mail-out Flyer Distribution Map ........................................................................................ 14

Appendix E – Signage............................................................................................................................. 15

Appendix F - DIS Sign-In Sheets .............................................................................................................. 17

Appendix G - DIS Comment Forms ......................................................................................................... 19



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

3 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Executive Summary

NSDA Architects has submitted a Development Application on behalf of the non-profit organization,
Vancouver Resource Society (VRS), for 125 East 20th Street to develop a 6-storey market and non-
market rental building. A total of 85 units is proposed, of which 10 units will be secured for VRS clients
as non-market housing and up to 28 units as below-market rental housing.

As part of the public engagement process, NSDA hosted a Developer Information Session (DIS) on
September 12, 2018. The event was an open house format, with 18 display boards illustrating all aspects
of the proposed development. The project team and City staff were available to answer questions.

The local community was notified of the DIS by three methods: signage, flyers, and newspaper
advertisements. Approximately 14 people attended the event. 11 attendees signed in and 2 comment
cards were submitted; both comment cards submitted were in support of the proposed project.

The VRS has also held multiple meetings with the existing building residents prior to this DIS to update
them on the project, address any concerns from the residents, and clarify the support that VRS will be
providing them.

The majority of attendees supported the proposed project and the Developer Information Session was
effective at engaging the local community and receiving feedback and comments on the proposal.



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

4 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Overview

NSDA Architects, on behalf of VRS, applied to the City of North Vancouver for a Development Permit and
Rezoning, proposing the following:

· 6-storey market/non-market rental development
· 85 units, with 10 of these to be dedicated to VRS clients
· 1, 2, and 3-bedroom apartments ranging in size from 400 to 920 square feet

VRS is a non-profit society whose purpose is to promote community living for seniors and persons with
disabilities by:

a) operating homes and programs for seniors, including those with low and moderate incomes;
b) operating homes and programs for adults and minor persons with disabilities, including those

with low and moderate incomes;
c) buying, leasing, holding, building, developing, or improving any lands and buildings necessary for

the provision of community living for seniors and persons with disabilities.

This project will also provide affordable rent for the general population, including families. VRS intends
to offer 10 fully wheelchair accessible units, with 24 hour support services provided by Vancouver
Coastal Health. Rent for these units will be approx. $375 per month, or 30% of income, whichever is
greater. In addition, VRS will be offering the existing building tenants, who have lower incomes, a 1-
bedroom unit for approx. $1,210 per month and a 2-bedroom unit for approx. $1,800 per month. 14 of
the existing tenants will qualify for this discount on an income-tested basis (under $45,000 for a 1-
bedroom and under $61,000 for a 2-bedroom). The remaining 14 tenants will be offered lessor
discounts for tenures less than 12 years. The VRS market rates at the time of application are based on
$1,570 for a 1-bedroom, $2,300 for a 2-bedroom, and $2,600 for a 3-bedroom. In addition, these units
will become even more affordable as market rents increase and VRS is able to keep the rent increases at
minimal levels.

The City is processing the Development Permit and Rezoning applications concurrently. As part of the
public engagement process, NSDA hosted a Developer Information Session (DIS) on September 12, 2018
in the Royal Canadian Legion at 123 West 15th Street from 6:00pm – 8:00pm.



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

5 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Event Details

The focus of the September 12th Developer Information Session was to present project information and
provide the local community an opportunity to ask questions and comment on the proposed project.

Event:    Developer Information Session
Location:   Royal Canadian Legion
Address:   123 West 15th Street, North Vancouver
Date:    September 12, 2018
Time:    6:00pm – 8:00pm

Project:   125 East 20th Street
Application Type:  Rezoning and Development Permit

Notification Methods:  Flyer, Newspaper Ad, Site Signage

Notification Methods

The local community was notified of the Developer Information Session by three methods. All signage,
flyer, and newspaper ads were approved by City staff prior to placement or delivery.

1. At the direction of City staff, a sign posted on August 31, 2018 at the front of the existing
building at 125 E20th St.

2. Print advertising in the North Shore News occurred on September 5, 2018 (page A24) and
September 5, 2018 (page A33). See Appendix B.

3. On August 30, 2018, 175 flyers were posted to the homes within the boundary of the map
provided by City staff. See Appendices C and D.



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

6 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Developer Information Session Layout

· Sign in – Upon entering the venue, attendees were asked to sign in, given a brief overview of the
event, and given a comment card to fill out and submit before leaving.  See Appendix F.

· Display board review and questions – Attendees were free to walk around and review display
boards. The project team and City staff made themselves available to answer questions. See
Appendix A.

· Comment forms – Tables and chairs were set up for attendees to fill out comment forms. A
comment form envelope was placed at the exit and attendees were reminded to fill out and
submit comment forms before leaving.  See Appendix G.

Representatives at Event

The project team present at the event:
· Vancouver Resource Society

o Brad Tone
o William Jon
o Kalin Stoyanov

· NSDA Architects
o Larry Adams
o Carlos De Carli

· Core Project Management
o Cormac Linehan
o Josh Henderson

The City of North Vancouver staff present at the event:
· Wendy Tse, Planner 2, Planning Department



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

7 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Summary of Attendees and Comment Form Feedback

Attendees: approx. 14

Of the approximate 14 attendees, 11 attendees signed in:

Of the approximate 14 attendees, 2 comment cards were received:

Comment Cards Received: 2
In Support: 2
Opposed: 0
Not clearly indicated: 0

Verbal comments not formally submitted on comment cards:
· Resident from the building next door wanted to confirm what material the boundary fence

between the new building and 135 E20th St would be once the new building was constructed.
There is an existing concrete wall, which is old and in poor condition, so the resident requested
that this be replaced as part of the project.

· Resident from the existing building at 125 E20th attended to look at the updated plans for the
new building, including the total number of units and the number of parking stalls.

· A member of the local community voiced their concerns that another development was
proposed with inadequate provisions for affordable housing. It was explained by the Project
Team that the 85-unit building was 100% rental, with 10 units being provided to VRS clients, and
up to 28 units offered to the existing building tenants to return at subsidized rents. The member
did not feel that this was sufficient provision of affordable housing to the local community.

Sign-in sheet and comment cards are attached in Appendix F & G respectively.



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

8 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix A - Presentation Materials



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

9 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

10 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

11 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix B - Newspaper Advertisement



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

12 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

13 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix C - Mail-out Flyer



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

14 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix D - Mail-out Flyer Distribution Map



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

15 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix E – Signage



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

16 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

17 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix F - DIS Sign-In Sheets



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

18 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

19 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY

Appendix G - DIS Comment Forms



Developer Information Session Summary
125 East 20th Street

Meeting Date: September 12, 2018

20 | P a g e
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Wendy Tse
"Cap Munro"
"ladams@nsda.bc.ca"; "cormac@corepm.ca"
RE: Questions regarding Development at 125 E 20th 
September-24-18 10:20:00 AM

Hi Caprice,

I have cc’d the applicant as the leaflet should be have been delivered well before the day of
the event.
There is typically only one information meeting that’s hosted by the applicant. The next
meeting will be the Public Hearing, which is before Council.

Hearing that you and other residents in your building may be interested in learning more
about the project, perhaps a time can be scheduled for a quick meeting. I will leave this to
the applicant and yourself to determine if its necessary.

Sincerely,
Wendy

Wendy Tse
Planner 2, Planning Department
t: 604.982.3942 | e: wtse@cnv.org

From: Cap Munro 
Sent: September-21-18 8:02 PM
To: Wendy Tse <WTse@cnv.org>
Subject: RE: Questions regarding Development at 125 E 20th

Thank you Wendy for your response. 

I appreciate it and your position in this.  We were all just startled with this and also the fact that the
leaflet on the information session was delivered on the same day of the event.  I would have gone
but I have a commitment that evening that I could not change.  Will there be another information
evening?  If so I would like to go but need to be aware a bit further in advance.  It would probably be
good to hear what is planned. 

I will share this with the other residents who are interested and missed the meeting.

Best

Caprice Munro

124 E 19th Street

From: Wendy Tse <WTse@cnv.org> 
Sent: September 21, 2018 5:31 PM
To: Cap Munro 
Cc: ladams@nsda.bc.ca; 'cormac@corepm.ca' <cormac@corepm.ca>

mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:cormac@corepm.ca
mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:cormac@corepm.ca


Subject: RE: Questions regarding Development at 125 E 20th

Good Afternoon Mr./Ms. Munro,

Thank you for your email.
Please see my answers below in purple. I have noted which questions are better answered
by the applicant and have cc’d the applicant on this email for them to respond to you.

Please feel free to contact me if you have additional questions.

Sincerely,
Wendy
Wendy Tse, MA (Planning) 
Planner 2, Planning Department
t: 604.982.3942 | e: wtse@cnv.org

City of North Vancouver

141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1H9
Reception: 604.985.7761 | f: 604.985.9417 | www.cnv.org
From: Cap Munro 
Sent: September-14-18 11:15 AM
To: Wendy Tse <WTse@cnv.org>; ladams@nsda.bc.ca
Subject: Questions regarding Development at 125 E 20th

Dear Ms Tse and Mr Adams

I was unable to attend the Open House on this property as the information concerning it only arrived
on the day of the meeting by which point I had a prior engagement.  As someone who lives and has
lived in this neighbourhood for over 30 years and who will be directly impacted by the building itself
and most definitely by the construction I have some questions and concerns.  My questions are:

1) With all the current building going on in North Van why is this particular building
development relevant?
Any property owner in the City may request redevelopment of their property. I would defer
this question to the applicant to explain the merits of this development.

2) Why is a 6 storey building required?  It affects other peoples view but more importantly will
increase traffic and congestion in a lane that already is used by people to by pass the already
busy Lonsdale and St Georgia’s.
A six-storey building is not required, but the City’s Official Community Plan does allow a
maximum of six-storeys in this particular land use designation. The basis of the City’s
development is highest height/density along Lonsdale Avenue, with a gradual decrease as
you move away from this main corridor in the City. Based on the location of this property
and its proximity to Lonsdale Avenue, the Official Community Plan envisions a mid-rise
building at six-storeys. For more information about the Official Community Plan, please see
here: https://www.cnv.org/your-government/official-community-plan.

3) What is the construction time frame?  This will impact the neighbourhood with dust, noise
and traffic.

mailto:wtse@cnv.org
http://www.cnv.org/
mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
https://www.cnv.org/your-government/official-community-plan


Again, I defer this question to the applicant.
4) Who is taking into consideration of the affects of taking down older buildings – this results in

a movement of rodents and in the case of every building removed in the neighbourhood has
been a boon for pest companies but an added expense for residents and tenants.
The applicant can likely provide more specific answers, but the City does require certain
actions to be taken as part of the Demolition Permit. For a list, please see this website under
Demolition: https://www.cnv.org/property-and-development/building-and-
development/permits-and-inspections/building-permit-application-forms-and-information.

5) What are the rents looking like.  The current suites look small but I expect the rents are all
over 1000.00 which is not great for fixed incomes.
I defer to the applicant, but note that the owner of this building is a non-profit organization,
Vancouver Resource Society. The client population that Vancouver Resource Society serves
are persons with disabilities. There are 10 units proposed to be for persons with disabilities
at rents at approximately $375 per month.

6) Why are such large buildings necessary when we have towers everywhere and a huge traffic
issue which affects getting around in North Van and in the area in general.  People speed
through alleys now all the time due to local congestion caused by new building and their
construction.
The City’s Official Community Plan permits a density of 1.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR), plus a
bonus density of 1.0 FSR under this land use designation. Again, the density was determined
as part of the overall planning of the City, with Lonsdale being the central core of the City.
The development is required to submit a transportation plan to determine the impacts of
the development in terms of traffic. There are also vehicle and bicycle parking requirements
as part of every development.

7) What infrastructure improvements are planned ie transit – buses are pretty full every
morning now; and hospital beds.  More people with out the infrastructure seems to be a
trend everywhere.
There are transit improvements underway for the North Shore under Translink’s 10-Year
Vision. As part of this, there will be increase in bus services, 1 new SeaBus with increased
sailings, as well as B-Line bus services from Main Street to Marine Drive. For more
information, please see here: https://tenyearvision.translink.ca.

Please let me know your response to these question and I will share them with my neighbours many
of whom are long term residents in a rental building who are starting to worry about our own place
in the neighbourhood and the neighbourhood itself.   

Looking forward to hearing from you

C Munro

https://www.cnv.org/property-and-development/building-and-development/permits-and-inspections/building-permit-application-forms-and-information
https://www.cnv.org/property-and-development/building-and-development/permits-and-inspections/building-permit-application-forms-and-information
https://tenyearvision.translink.ca/


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Stephanie Kiernan
Wendy Tse; ladams@nsda.bc.ca
rodclark4mayor@gmail.com
Fwd: Shadow analysis for 125 East 20th St 
October-17-18 6:07:11 PM
2018-09-21 - 125 East 20th St - SHADOW STUDY.pdf 
ATT00001.htm

Dear Sirs, 

As an owner at 140 East 20th Street, North Vancouver, since 2003, the attached shadow study 
for 125 East 20th Street is particularly disturbing to me and my fellow owners here. There’s 2 
months in Fall and Winter that we will not have afternoon sun.  Again, we are being 
bombarded with over-development here in this Lonsdale corridor. I for one will be working 
toward ensuring that a future replacement building is not higher than what is in place 
currently. That’s a large, long lot and what is being proposed is simply as menacing as the 
high-rises closing in on this entire corridor.  

I look forward to more public meetings with a new Mayor and Council. 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie D. Kiernan
#15, 140 20th St East, North Vancouver, BC V7L3A 

From: Carlos De Carli <cdecarli@nsda.bc.ca>Date: September 21, 
2018 at 9:54:06 AM PDT
To: Cormac Linehan <cormac@corepm.ca>, WTse@cnv.org, 

Cc: Larry Adams <ladams@nsda.bc.ca>
Subject: Shadow analysis for 125 East 20th St

Hi Cormac, Wendy and Erika

As requested from Erika on 2018-09-19 
Please find attached PDF with Shadow Study.

Regards

Carlos De Carli
Sr. Project Manager, Bach. Arch. & Urb. Plan., LEED AP.

cdecarli@nsda.bc.ca

NSDA ARCHITECTS

mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:rodclark4mayor@gmail.com
mailto:cdecarli@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:cormac@corepm.ca
mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:cdecarli@nsda.bc.ca


604.669.1926 

201-134 Abbott Street, Vancouver BC V6B 2K4 



From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

erika rathje
Wendy Tse
ladams@nsda.bc.ca
Re: 125 East 20th St 
January-03-19 7:06:47 PM

Dear Ms Tse,

I'm very late in submitting my comments to you about Vancouver Resource Society's proposed development at 125
East 20th, but it's given me a chance to think about the proposal in the context of changing winter light conditions.

I attended the development information open house in September and spoke with Mr Adams and colleagues about
the design and my concerns around direct sunlight.

I've lived kitty-corner to this property for over six years. I feel the "bookend" design (the portion that juts out toward
the street on the western end of the building) is not an appropriate form for this street. In my opinion it blocks the
flow and negatively alters the feel of the street, acting as a visual barrier. It is also the single most impactful part of
the design in terms of its effects on neighbours.

You will have received a copy last fall of the shadow study. The reduction of access to direct sunlight — already in
short supply from November to March — by residential buildings to the north (including mine) is significant and
lengthy. I believe access to direct sunlight at home, especially in winter, is vital. I work from home and will find my
living and office spaces affected; others nearby will only get to enjoy direct sunlight on weekend mornings in the
winter as it disappears around lunchtime.

I would like to see the design adjusted to mitigate the impact of its bulk on neighbours. I will fully support this
project if the height is reduced to 4-5 storeys and the bookend on the west removed from the proposal. This would
create a more human scale and reduce impacts on the neighbourhood while still improving the space and offering
modern suites to people in need of subsidised housing. That said I'm disappointed only 10 units will be secured for
VRS clients and that the total of VRS & below-market rental units comprise fewer than half of the units proposed. I
think we can do better.

Thank you for your consideration, and happy new year.

Sincerely,

Erika Rathje
140 East 20th St

mailto:WTse@cnv.org
mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Chanelle Nicol
ladams@nsda.bc.ca
Wendy Tse
PROPOSED PROJECT - 125 20TH STREET EAST, NORTH VANCOUVER: COMMENTS 
January-05-19 10:03:02 AM

Hello Larry and Wendy –

I live in the following apartment building, which is about to be
demolished and re-built this year:

#27 – 125 20th Street East
North Vancouver, B.C.
V7L 3A3

I just now located my Vancouver Resource Society – Development
Information Session (September 12, 2018 meeting) form.  I am hoping it
is not too late for my submission.  Please take under consideration these
comments:

I feel the building and landscape designs are fine however, I do
strongly object to the light green scent colour on the building.  The
reason for this is;  while that shade of green is a very ‘in’ colour at
the moment, it will date and make the building look dated down-
the-road.  My suggestion would be to choose more ‘traditional,
classic colours’ to alleviate this issue.  Personally, I do not dislike
green however, I do feel that this shade in addition to dating the
building, also cheapens the overall look of the building.
A focus point on the building would be nice – for example; 
punching up the front door area with nice rich, classy colours.  In
part this might be achieved with front door colour and colourful
shrubs etc.  Perhaps some black iron railing?  There are many very
‘classy’ looking buildings around the city.  I have worked as a
professional Interior Decorator for a number of years so I am well
aware how powerful colour can affect an overall look.
Rooftop – use of rooftop for sunbathing and watching summer
fireworks – is this a possibility?        

Thank you for this opportunity to voice my comments and to take them
under consideration.

mailto:ladams@nsda.bc.ca
mailto:WTse@cnv.org


Chanelle Nicol (aka Carole Nicol)



Public Hearing
125 East 20th Street
Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8701 & Housing Agreement Bylaw 8702

Staff Presentation
Presented April 15, 2019
Planning Department



Background and Site Context

2

• 28-unit rental building constructed 
in 1965

• City provided second mortgage      
to Vancouver Resource Society      
to purchase site

• Units rented at below market rates
• Council approved $300,000 to                

help offset anticipated                  
operating shortfall – never used

• Tenant Displacement Policy applies



Proposed Development

• Six-storey market and non-market rental apartment 
• 2.59 FSR
• 85 units

– 10 non-market units
• Zoning Bylaw                                                                  

Amendment 8701
• Housing Agreement                                                             

Bylaw 8702

3



Neighbourhood Context

4

• Primarily 3 and 4 storey 
rental and strata 
apartments on block

• Adjacent to commercial 
uses on Lonsdale

• New 5 and 6 storey 
rental apartments in 
close proximity 



5

Official Community Plan

OCP Designation: Residential Level 5
(1.60 FSR with potential 1.0 FSR Density Bonus)
Height – Six Storeys

Mixed Use Level 3
(2.3 FSR with potential 
0.5 FSR Density Bonus)
Height – Eight Storeys



Policy Analysis – Housing Action Plan

• 1.0 FSR density bonus for market rental housing as per 
Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy 

• Provision of 10 non-market rental units, in lieu of 9                    
mid-market rental units

6

Unit Size Mid-Market Rent
(10% below Average Rent)

Non-Market Rent

Bachelor $1,208.70
One-Bedroom $1,199.70 $375 or 30% of income
Two-Bedroom $1,483.20
Three-Bedroom 
or Larger

$2,211.30



Policy Analysis – Housing Action Plan

• Request of $400,000 from Affordable Housing Reserve 
Fund to support non-market housing aligns with 
objectives and past use of Fund

• Six three-bedroom units below requirement under the 
City’s Family-Friendly Housing Policy (10% of units)

• Existing tenants able to return to building at below-
market rents as part of Tenant Relocation Plan

• Housing Agreement to secure rental tenure, including 10 
non-market rental units, in perpetuity

7



Policy Analysis - Sustainability

• Close proximity to Lonsdale Avenue, public transit and 
amenities

• Provision of non-market units
• Mix of unit sizes 
• Active design elements
• Accessibility elements
• Connection to LEC
• Step 3 of BC Energy Step Code
• 20% of parking stalls with electric vehicle charging

8



Site Design

• T-shaped building
• Main entrance from East 

20th Street
• Private open space to 

front and rear of building
• Accessible building
• Parking access from rear 

lane to the south

9



Unit Breakdown

85 rental units:
• 4 Studio units
• 63 One Bedroom units
• 12 Two Bedroom units
• 6 Three Bedroom units

• 57 Adaptable Level 2
• 10 Adaptable Level 3 (non-market units)

10



Consultation and Feedback

• Advisory Design Panel - September 19, 2018
• Developer Information Session - September 12, 2018
• Public feedback mixed, with main concerns about:

– Height and shadowing impacts
– General design and colour of building
– Desire for more affordable housing

11



Zoning Amendment

• Amendment to the Zoning Bylaw to:
– Increase allowable density from 1.6 FSR to 2.6 FSR;
– Increase building height to 19.9 metres (64 feet) and                                                                 

six storeys;
– Relax setbacks
– Reduce vehicle and bicycle parking

• 1 residential vehicle space
• 1 visitor vehicle space
• 9 bicycle spaces

12



Recommendation

• Six-storey market and non-
market rental apartment 

• Compliant with use, intensity 
and form as outlined in OCP 
and other City policies

• $400,000 contribution from 
Affordable Housing Reserve 
Fund

• Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8701
• Housing Agreement Bylaw 8702

13



14

Thank you.



VRS Rental Housing 
125 East 20th Avenue, North Vancouver BC



Neighbourhood Context



NorthwestMain Floor Plan

Boulevard

Sidewalk

Existing 
Building

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0

Consultants

Date Issue / Revisions

Seal

Project

Sheet Title

Project Number

Scale

Sheet Number

North Vancouver
 

1st Floor Plan
 

17033

1:100

A-102

125 East 20th

 

Issued for Rezoning2018-06-11

P.M
.T.

re
f

single

doubledo
ub

le
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

dw

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

do
ub

le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D
do

ub
le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

do
ub

le

W

D W60" x D30"

ref

dw

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

double

do
ub

le
dw

ref

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

D

double

do
ub

le

dw

750

18 risers @ 169mm 

U
P

11
00

1100

75
0

18
 ri

se
rs

 @
 1

69
m

m
 

UP

1100 11
00

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

(Accessible)

ref

Stair
#2

Stair
#1

Patio Patio

7680

E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ui
ld

in
g

Patio

M
ai

l

canopy above

Garden

5%

10
%

12
.5

%

DN

DN

UP 5%

UP

Finish Floor Elevation:
106.70m

106.70m
FFE

10
6.0

9m

TOC

105.70m
EL

106.00m
EL

106.12mEL

10
6.6

0m

TOC

107.31m
TOC 10

6.7
9m

EG
106.03m

EG
105.53m

EG
10

5.2
9m

EG
106.09m

TOC

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

106.09m
TOC

10
5.2

0m

EL

10
6.0

9m

TOC

106.23mTOC
10

6.2
3m

TOC

10
5.4

0m

TOC

10
6.2

3m

TOC

10
5.1

7m

EG

10
5.1

5m

EG

10
4.9

6m

EG

10
4.6

4m

EG

10
4.6

5m

EG 10
5.1

7m

EG 10
6.0

4m

EG
10

7.2
9m

EG

106.34mTOC

106.23mTOC 10
6.3

4m

TOC 10
5.4

2m

EG

106.70mTOC

107.31mTOC

10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.00mEL

107.20mTOC

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

Trellis Above

UP

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
8.1

7m
EL

Patio

Patio Patio

Patio Patio

P
at

io
P

at
io

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
6.6

4m
EG

10
7.3

1m

TOC

10
6.7

0m

EG
10

7.3
1m

TOC10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.31mTOC

Balcony above

B
al

co
ny

 a
bo

ve

Balcony above Balcony above

Balcony aboveBalcony above

E
le

ct
ric

al
Vo

id

10
6.2

3m

TOC

106.20m
EG

Patio Patio
Balcony above

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A4
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit C
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

canopy above

10
7.3

1m

TOC

106.86m
FFE

10
6.8

1m

EG

Gas
meter

106.60mFFE

U
P 

2%

106.62mEL

106.60mEL

106.03mEL

U
P 

5%

10
6.3

0m

TOC

10
6.8

0m

TOC

Siamese 
Connection

22
05

S
et

ba
ck

83
50

S
et

ba
ck

4180
Setback

13
88

0
S

et
ba

ck

37
75

S
et

ba
ck

3080
Setback

6 Bikes

6 Bikes

S
an

ita
ry

 L
in

e

S
to

rm
 W

at
er

 L
in

e

W
at

er
 L

in
e

L.
E.

C
. L

in
e

AmenityGuest RoomOffice

Lobby

Corridor

Vestibule

C
or

rid
or

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0



Main Floor Plan

Boulevard

Sidewalk

Existing 
Building

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0

Consultants

Date Issue / Revisions

Seal

Project

Sheet Title

Project Number

Scale

Sheet Number

North Vancouver
 

1st Floor Plan
 

17033

1:100

A-102

125 East 20th

 

Issued for Rezoning2018-06-11

P.M
.T.

re
f

single

doubledo
ub

le
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

dw

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

do
ub

le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D
do

ub
le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

do
ub

le

W

D W60" x D30"

ref

dw

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

double

do
ub

le
dw

ref

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

D

double

do
ub

le

dw

750

18 risers @ 169mm 

U
P

11
00

1100

75
0

18
 ri

se
rs

 @
 1

69
m

m
 

UP

1100 11
00

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

(Accessible)

ref

Stair
#2

Stair
#1

Patio Patio

7680

E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ui
ld

in
g

Patio

M
ai

l

canopy above

Garden

5%

10
%

12
.5

%

DN

DN

UP 5%

UP

Finish Floor Elevation:
106.70m

106.70m
FFE

10
6.0

9m

TOC

105.70m
EL

106.00m
EL

106.12mEL

10
6.6

0m

TOC

107.31m
TOC 10

6.7
9m

EG
106.03m

EG
105.53m

EG
10

5.2
9m

EG
106.09m

TOC

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

106.09m
TOC

10
5.2

0m

EL

10
6.0

9m

TOC

106.23mTOC
10

6.2
3m

TOC

10
5.4

0m

TOC

10
6.2

3m

TOC

10
5.1

7m

EG

10
5.1

5m

EG

10
4.9

6m

EG

10
4.6

4m

EG

10
4.6

5m

EG 10
5.1

7m

EG 10
6.0

4m

EG
10

7.2
9m

EG

106.34mTOC

106.23mTOC 10
6.3

4m

TOC 10
5.4

2m

EG

106.70mTOC

107.31mTOC

10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.00mEL

107.20mTOC

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

Trellis Above

UP

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
8.1

7m
EL

Patio

Patio Patio

Patio Patio

P
at

io
P

at
io

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
6.6

4m
EG

10
7.3

1m

TOC

10
6.7

0m

EG
10

7.3
1m

TOC10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.31mTOC

Balcony above

B
al

co
ny

 a
bo

ve

Balcony above Balcony above

Balcony aboveBalcony above

E
le

ct
ric

al
Vo

id

10
6.2

3m

TOC

106.20m
EG

Patio Patio
Balcony above

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A4
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit C
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

canopy above

10
7.3

1m

TOC

106.86m
FFE

10
6.8

1m

EG

Gas
meter

106.60mFFE

U
P 

2%

106.62mEL

106.60mEL

106.03mEL

U
P 

5%

10
6.3

0m

TOC

10
6.8

0m

TOC

Siamese 
Connection

22
05

S
et

ba
ck

83
50

S
et

ba
ck

4180
Setback

13
88

0
S

et
ba

ck

37
75

S
et

ba
ck

3080
Setback

6 Bikes

6 Bikes

S
an

ita
ry

 L
in

e

S
to

rm
 W

at
er

 L
in

e

W
at

er
 L

in
e

L.
E.

C
. L

in
e

AmenityGuest RoomOffice

Lobby

Corridor

Vestibule

C
or

rid
or

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0



Consultants

Date Issue / Revisions

Seal

Project

Sheet Title

Project Number

Scale

Sheet Number

North Vancouver
 

Shadow Analysis
 

17033

1:450

A-005

125 East 20th

 

Issued for Rezoning2018-06-11
Reissued for Rezoning2018-03-04

June 21st - 10am1

March/September 21st - 10am4

December 21st - 10am7

June 21st - 12pm2

March/September 21st - 12pm5

December 21st - 12pm8

June 21st - 2pm3

March/September 21st - 2pm6

December 21st - 2pm9



Landscape Plan - Entryway

Bench typ.
 
Shrub Planting 
on slab typ.
 
450mm high 
Alan Block
 
Drip Strip on 
Slab typ.
 
Privacy fence 
refer to Arch.



Entryway



Main Floor Plan

Boulevard

Sidewalk

Existing 
Building

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0

Consultants

Date Issue / Revisions

Seal

Project

Sheet Title

Project Number

Scale

Sheet Number

North Vancouver
 

1st Floor Plan
 

17033

1:100

A-102

125 East 20th

 

Issued for Rezoning2018-06-11

P.M
.T.

re
f

single

doubledo
ub

le
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

dw

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

do
ub

le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D
do

ub
le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

do
ub

le

W

D W60" x D30"

ref

dw

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

double

do
ub

le
dw

ref

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

D

double

do
ub

le

dw

750

18 risers @ 169mm 

U
P

11
00

1100

75
0

18
 ri

se
rs

 @
 1

69
m

m
 

UP

1100 11
00

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

(Accessible)

ref

Stair
#2

Stair
#1

Patio Patio

7680

E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ui
ld

in
g

Patio

M
ai

l

canopy above

Garden

5%

10
%

12
.5

%

DN

DN

UP 5%

UP

Finish Floor Elevation:
106.70m

106.70m
FFE

10
6.0

9m

TOC

105.70m
EL

106.00m
EL

106.12mEL

10
6.6

0m

TOC

107.31m
TOC 10

6.7
9m

EG
106.03m

EG
105.53m

EG
10

5.2
9m

EG
106.09m

TOC

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
FFE

106.09m
TOC

10
5.2

0m

EL

10
6.0

9m

TOC

106.23mTOC
10

6.2
3m

TOC

10
5.4

0m

TOC

10
6.2

3m

TOC

10
5.1

7m

EG

10
5.1

5m

EG

10
4.9

6m

EG

10
4.6

4m

EG

10
4.6

5m

EG 10
5.1

7m

EG 10
6.0

4m

EG
10

7.2
9m

EG

106.34mTOC

106.23mTOC 10
6.3

4m

TOC 10
5.4

2m

EG

106.70mTOC

107.31mTOC

10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.00mEL

107.20mTOC

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

10
6.5

9m
EG

10
5.8

3m
EG

105.33m
EG

10
5.0

9m
EG

Trellis Above

UP

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
8.1

7m
EL

Patio

Patio Patio

Patio Patio

P
at

io
P

at
io

10
6.7

0m
FFE

10
6.7

0m
EL

10
6.6

4m
EG

10
7.3

1m

TOC

10
6.7

0m

EG
10

7.3
1m

TOC10
7.3

1m

TOC

107.31mTOC

Balcony above

B
al

co
ny

 a
bo

ve

Balcony above Balcony above

Balcony aboveBalcony above

E
le

ct
ric

al
Vo

id

10
6.2

3m

TOC

106.20m
EG

Patio Patio
Balcony above

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A4
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit C
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

canopy above

10
7.3

1m

TOC

106.86m
FFE

10
6.8

1m

EG

Gas
meter

106.60mFFE

U
P 

2%

106.62mEL

106.60mEL

106.03mEL

U
P 

5%

10
6.3

0m

TOC

10
6.8

0m

TOC

Siamese 
Connection

22
05

S
et

ba
ck

83
50

S
et

ba
ck

4180
Setback

13
88

0
S

et
ba

ck

37
75

S
et

ba
ck

3080
Setback

6 Bikes

6 Bikes

S
an

ita
ry

 L
in

e

S
to

rm
 W

at
er

 L
in

e

W
at

er
 L

in
e

L.
E.

C
. L

in
e

AmenityGuest RoomOffice

Lobby

Corridor

Vestibule

C
or

rid
or

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0



Level 2-6 - Typical
Consultants

Date Issue / Revisions

Seal

Project

Sheet Title

Project Number

Scale

Sheet Number

North Vancouver
 

3rd-6th Floor Plan
 

17033

1:100

A-104

125 East 20th

 

Issued for Rezoning2018-06-11

re
f

single

doubledo
ub

le
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

dw

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

re
f

dw

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

Ddouble

do
ub

le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D
do

ub
le

m
w

 &
 w

al
l

ov
en

pantry

stove
o/u

work
surface

ref

dw

W

D

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

750

18 risers @ 169mm 

U
P

D
N

11
00

1100

Stair
#2

do
ub

le

W

D W60" x D30"

ref

dw

ref

dw

W60" x D30"

W

D

do
ub

le

single

W60" x D30"

W

D
re

f

dw

ref
W

60
" x

 D
30

"

W

D

double

do
ub

le
dw

ref

W
60

" x
 D

30
"

W

D

double

do
ub

le

dw

75
0

18
 ri

se
rs

 @
 1

69
m

m
 

UP
DN

1100

11
00

Stair
#1

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A1
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A4
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit C
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit B
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A3
(Level 2

Accessibility)
Unit A2
(Level 2

Accessibility
)

Unit A2
(Level 2

Accessibility
)

Unit A5
(Level 2

Accessibility
)

Unit D
(Level 2

Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Unit A6
(VRS)

(Level 3
Accessibility)

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony Balcony

Balcony Balcony Balcony Balcony

Balcony BalconyBalcony Balcony

Balcony Balcony

Corridor

C
or

rid
or

line of roof above

line of roof above

lin
e 

of
 ro

of
 a

bo
ve

Property Line (50.27m = 164.93')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

Property Line (50.30m = 165.02')

P
ro

pe
rty

 L
in

e 
(4

2.
18

m
 =

 1
38

.3
8'

)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

12690 4195 6555 6500 6500 6555

A

B

C

D

E

F

61
45

87
45

15
55

96
50

10
10

5

A
-2

01
2

A
-2

01
2

A-201 1

A-201 1

22
05

36
20

0
37

75

3100 42995 4180

3080 4230

37
75

22
05

19
95

0



Northeast











141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG                  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider:

Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701
Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702
to rezone the subject property from a Medium 
Density Apartment Residential (RM-1) Zone to a 
Comprehensive Development 718 (CD-718) Zone 
to permit the development of a 85-unit rental 
building at a height of 6 storeys and a density of 
2.59 times the lot area.  Of the 85 units, 10 units 
will be secured as non-market rental housing.  
A reduction to both vehicle and bicycle parking 
spaces is proposed with an overall provision of 
49 vehicle parking spaces and 119 bicycle parking 
spaces.

opportunity to be heard in person and/or by written submission.  Written or email 
submissions must include your name and address and should be sent to the City 
Clerk, at input@cnv.org, or by mail or delivered to City Hall.  Submissions must be 
received no later than 4:00 pm, Monday, April 15, 2019, to ensure their availability 
to Council at the Public Hearing.  Once the Public Hearing has concluded, no further 
information or submissions can be considered by Council.

The proposed Zoning Amendment and Housing Agreement Bylaws and background 
material will be available for viewing at City Hall between 8:30 am and 5:00 pm, 
Monday to Friday, except Statutory Holidays, from April 5, 2019, and online at 
cnv.org/PublicHearings.

Please direct any inquiries to Wendy Tse, Planner 2, at wtse@cnv.org or 
604-982-3942.

12
3

13
5

14
5

12
0

1840

1826

16
0

15
5

15
7

15
5

1905

1820

2001

14
3

19
49

1849

1829

2035

13
2

14
5

1925

15
5

2035

160

19
00

1945

14
5

2025

15
7

13
5

12
4

1844

1857

1836

14
5

2057

14
0

1925

20
1

16

20
0

20
1

20
3

19
08

20
2

20
48

5

14
5

1854
12

4

1925
1915

20
32

12
4

20
57

1441
12

5
12

5
12

5
12

5
12

5

20

1831

143

E 20th St
W 20th St

E 19th StW 19th St

St
. G

eo
rg

e’
s 

A
ve

Lo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

125 E 20th St

WHO: NSDA Architects on behalf of
 Vancouver Resource Society
WHAT: Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment
 Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701 (CD-718)
 

 Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702
WHERE: 125 East 20th Street
WHEN: Monday, April 15, 2019 at 6:30 pm
 Council Chamber, City Hall
 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701 Document: 1756681-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8701 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically 
Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-718 (Comprehensive Development 718 Zone): 

 
 Lots  Block           D.L.        Plan 
 
 35 of Lots 4 and 5 7                   549        1102 from RM-1 
 36 of Lots 4 and 5 7                   549        1102 from RM-1 
 37 of Lot 6  7                   549        1163 from RM-1 
 38 of Lot 6  7                   549        1163 from RM-1 
 39 of Lot 6  7                   549        1163 from RM-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-717 
Comprehensive Development 717 Zone”: 

 
“CD-718 Comprehensive Development 718 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-717 Comprehensive 

Development 717 Zone”: 
 

“CD-718 Comprehensive Development 718 Zone” 
 

In the CD-718 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RM-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Uses on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use; 
(b) Residential Care Facility Use; 
(c) Accessory Home Occupation Use subject to section 507 (6), (7), and (8);  
(d) Accessory Home Office Use; 

 
(2) Unit mix within the Rental Apartment Residential Use will be as follows: 

 
(a) A minimum of 6 units will contain 3 bedrooms; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701 Document: 1756681-v1 

(3) Gross Floor Area 
 

(a) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Gross Floor Area of 1.0 times 
the Lot Area, provided that this amount may be increased to a maximum 
of 1.6 times the Lot Area through the provision of Adaptable Design 
subject to section 423; 

 
(b) Notwithstanding 2(a), the maximum Gross Floor Area may be further 

increased, upon entering into a Housing Agreement with the City, as 
follows: 

 
BASE DENSITY

OCP Schedule 'A' 1.6 FSR  

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

100% Rental 
Housing 

Secured rental 
apartment 
building, of 
which 10 units 
are non-market  

1.0 FSR 
OCP Section 
2.2 

 

TOTAL 2.6 FSR  

 
To a maximum of 2.6 FSR; 

 
(4) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Height of six storeys and 19.5 metres 

(64.0 feet), except that elevator shafts and screened mechanical equipment may 
be permitted to project to a Height of up to 21.3 metres (70 feet); 

 
(5) The Principal Building shall be sited as follows: 

 
(a) 1.9 metres (6.2 feet) from the Front Lot Line (East 20th Street); 
(b) 3.5 metres (11.5 feet) from the Rear Lot Line; 
(c) 2.8 metres (9.2 feet) from the west Interior Lot Line; 
(d) 3.8 metres (12.5 feet) from the east Interior Lot Line; 

 
(6) An Accessory Structure providing weather protection at the main entrance of the 

Principal Building may be a maximum of 3.1 metres (10.2 feet) in Height and 
sited to the front of the front face of the Principal Building up to the property line; 

 
(7) Section 510(2) Building Width and Length shall not apply; 

 
(8) The required setback of 4.52 metres (15 feet) from the point of intersection of a 

Street and a lane shall apply, except that portions of the underground parkade, 
fencing and low-level landscaping may be permitted; 

 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701 Document: 1756681-v1 

(9) The regulations of Part 9: Parking and Access Regulations shall apply, except 
the following: 

 
(a) The driveway ramp shall not exceed a slope of 8.2 percent in the first 3.048 

metres (10 feet) from the property line, nor a maximum of 13.5 percent for 
the remainder of the driveway; 

(b) The minimum required number of residential parking spaces shall be 49 
spaces, of which 8 spaces shall be allocated as visitor parking spaces; 

(c) A minimum of 20 percent of the required residential parking spaces will 
provide an Energized Outlet capable of providing Level 2 Electric Vehicle 
charging;  

 
(10) The minimum required number of Secure Bicycle Parking Spaces shall be 119 

spaces, of which no more than 40 percent may be Vertical Bicycle Parking 
Spaces; 

 
(11) A minimum of 4 Short-Term Bicycle Parking Spaces shall be sheltered from the 

elements;  
 

(12) The minimum required floor area recycling and garbage facility shall be 37.5 
square metres (403.6 square feet); 

 
(13) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping is subject for approval for the 

Advisory Design Panel. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 1st day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 1st day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019.  

RECEIVED APPROVAL FROM THE 
MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION ON THE 
<> DAY OF <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8702 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (125 East 20th Street) 
 
WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw will be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 
2019, No. 8702” (Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA 
Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-718, Rental Housing Commitments). 
 

2. The Council hereby authorizes the agreement substantially in the form attached to this 
bylaw between The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and Vancouver Resource 
Society for the Physically Disabled with respect to the lands referenced as 125 East 20th 
Street, “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701” (Vancouver 
Resource Society for the Physically Disabled / NSDA Architects, 125 East 20th Street, CD-
718). 
 

3. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute any documents required to give effect 
to the Housing Agreement. 

 
READ a first time on the 1st day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 1st day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 
 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the <> day of <>, 2019. 

BETWEEN: 

VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY FOR THE PHYSICALLY 
DISABLED (INC. NO. S-0009843) 
#310-2006 West 10th Avenue 
North Vancouver, BC 
V6J 2B3 
 
(the “Owner”) 

AND: 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, 
British Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Owner is the registered and beneficial owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Act. 

C. As a condition of the Rezoning Bylaw, the Owner has agreed to enter into a housing 
agreement with the City in accordance with section 483 of the Act. 

D. Section 483 authorizes the City, by bylaw, to enter into a housing agreement in respect of 
the form of tenure of housing units, availability of such units to classes of identified person, 
administration and management of such units and the rent that may be charged for such 
units. 

 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC. 2015 c.1 as amended or replaced 
from time to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Housing Unit" means a Dwelling Unit occupied by a tenant for Rental 

Purposes at Affordable Rent; 
(c) “Affordable Rent" means rent (exclusive of taxes and utility fees) that is the higher 

of the following: 
 

(i) $375/month; and 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

 
(ii) market rent for a comparable Dwelling Unit, provided, however, that is does 

not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the total household income of the 
residents of the unit from all sources (including government rent subsidies); 

 
(d) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 
 
(e) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 
 
(f) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 

 
(c) “Director of Planning and Development” means the chief administrator of the 

Department of Planning and Development of the City and his or her successors in 
function and their respective nominees; 

 
(d) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700”, as amended from time to time; 
 
(e) “Lands” means those lands and premises described in Schedule A; 

 
(f) “Market Rental Unit” means a Dwelling Unit occupied by a tenant for Rental 

Purposes at market rates, as set by the Owner; 
 

(g) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 
be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(h) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Affordable Housing Units; 
 
(i) “Residential Building” means the six- storey residential building to be constructed 

on the Lands to be used for Rental Purposes with 85 Dwelling Units, of which 75 
Dwelling Units will be Market Rental Units and 10 Dwelling Units will be Affordable 
Housing Units; 

 
(j) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 

 
(k) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 

as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8701”; and 
 
(l) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
 
2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by Council of Vancouver Resource Society 

for the Physically Disabled “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702”, (the 
“Commencement Date”) and will continue until the date this Agreement is terminated in 
accordance with sections 2.2 or 8.3(d) (the “Term”). 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 
Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 7.3, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. USE AND TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City that during the term of this Agreement, 

notwithstanding the Rezoning Bylaw, the Lands will be used and built on only in strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that:  

(a) the Lands will not be subdivided or stratified in any manner; 

(b) all Dwelling Units in the Residential Building will be used for Rental Purposes only;  

(c) the Residential Building will contain at least 10 Affordable Housing Units; and 

(d) all Affordable Housing Units in the Residential Building will be wheelchair 
accessible, to the satisfaction of the City. 

3.2 The Owner will not rent, lease, license or otherwise permit occupancy of any Affordable 
Housing Units except in accordance with the following conditions: 

(a) the Affordable Housing Unit will be used or occupied only pursuant to a tenancy 
agreement under RT Act, as may be amended or replaced from time to time; 

(b) the monthly rent payable for the Affordable Housing Unit will not exceed the 
Affordable Rent; and 

(c) the Owner will not permit an Affordable Housing Unit to be subleased or assigned, 
except at Affordable Rent, in accordance with this Agreement. 

3.3 The Owner shall ensure that all tenants and occupants of the Residential Building, 
including tenants and occupants of the Affordable Housing Units, have equal access to all 
indoor and outdoor common amenities in the Residential Building. 

3.4 The Owner hereby authorizes the City to make such investigations as the City deems 
necessary from time to time to confirm that the Owner is complying with this Agreement. 

3.5 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 
or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building will be developed, built 
and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as amended 
from time to time. 

4. LOCATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS 
 
4.1 The Owner will be entitled to determine the location of the 10 Affordable Housing Units within 

the Residential Building.  

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 The Owner will manage and administer the Residential Building in accordance with the 

following requirements: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the Owner will be fully responsible for the 
management, and administration of the Rental Units, including all associated 
costs, unless otherwise approved by the City in writing; 

 
(b) Advertisement: the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set out in this 

Agreement prominently in all advertising of the Affordable Housing Units;  
 
(c) Compliance with applicable laws: the Owner will comply with all applicable 

provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or municipal enactments 
imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential tenancies; 

 
(d) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement 

diligently and in good faith; 
 

(e) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 
the Personal Information Protection Act (as amended from time to time) the Owner 
will, upon request by the City, supply to the City copies of any documentation in 
possession of the Owner necessary to establish compliance with the Owner’s 
obligations under this Agreement; 

 
(f) Maintenance: the Owner will maintain the Lands and the Residential Building in a 

fit, clean and habitable condition at all times and ensure the Lands and the 
Residential Building meet all applicable standards of any provincial, municipal or 
other applicable laws or enactments, including the Building Code requirements. 
The Owner will immediately perform or cause to be performed any repair work 
necessary to keep the Lands in a fit, clean and habitable condition. 

 
5.2 It is the intent of the parties that the Affordable Housing Units will be rented to low 

income individuals and families.  To that effect, unless otherwise permitted by the City in 
writing in advance, the Owner will ensure that the Affordable Housing Units are at all 
time managed and administered by one non-profit organization having as one of its 
objective the provision of affordable housing in the City of North Vancouver.  

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner will act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 
6.2 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 

rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 
 
6.3 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that monetary compensation may not be sufficient to 

remedy a breach of this Agreement.   
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

6.4 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 
entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 
6.5 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 

public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out. 

 
6.6 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.   

 
7. LIABILITY 
 
7.1 Except for the negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will 

indemnify and save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, damage, costs 
and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or incur or be put to 
by reason of or arising out of one or more of the following: 

 
(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 

contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible;  
 
(b) the Owner complying with its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
(c) the Owner defaulting on its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
(d) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes; and 
 
(e) the City exercising its rights under this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Except to the extent of negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the 

Owner hereby releases and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, officers, 
directors, employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of one or more of the following: 

 
(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 

contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible;  
 
(b) the Owner complying with its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
(c) the Owner defaulting on its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
(d) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes; and 
 
(e) the City exercising its rights under this Agreement. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

7.3 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement will survive the 
expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 

 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 

the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement.  The Owner will bear their own 
costs, legal or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of this 
Agreement. 

 
8.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 
 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

 
(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 

contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

 
(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 

in relation to the use of the Lands. 
 
8.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 
 
 (a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 
 

(b) the Owner is not entitled and will not claim any compensation from the City for any 
decrease in the market value of the Lands or for any obligations on the part of the 
Owner and its successors in title which at any time may result directly or indirectly by 
operation of this Agreement; 

 
(c) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 

of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units; and 
 
(d) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 

and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
8.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

8.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 
by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 483 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner and its successors in title. 

 
8.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 

ensure this Agreement is registered against the title to the Lands, including any amendments 
to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title Office or the City to effect such 
registration. 

 
8.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 
8.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 

Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 
8.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
8.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
8.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
  City:  The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
    141 West 14th Street 
    North Vancouver, British Columbia 
    V7M 1H9 
    Attention: Director, Planning and Development 
    Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
 
  Owner: Vancouver Resource Society for the Physically Disabled 

#310-2006 West 10th Avenue 
North Vancouver, BC 
V6J 2B3 

 
 
Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 

 
8.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 

as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 
 
8.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 
 
9. INTERPRETATION 
 
9.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 
9.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 

 
9.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
9.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
9.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
9.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702”. 

 
9.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia. 
 
9.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 10 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

9.9 Schedule A is attached and forms part of this Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF each of the City and the Owner have executed this Agreement under 
seal by their duly authorized officers as of the reference date of this Agreement. 
 
 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
 
 
  
MAYOR 
Linda C. Buchanan 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
Karla D. Graham 
 

 
 
VANCOUVER RESOURCE SOCIETY FOR THE PHYSICALLY 
DISABLED 
 
 
  
Authorized Signatory 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
 
 
 
Authorized Signatory 
 
 
Printed Name 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 11 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8702 Document: 1756629-v3 

SCHEDULE A 
LANDS 

 
Parcel Identifier: 012-180-360, Lot 35 of Lots 4 and 5 Block 7 District Lot 549 Plan 1102 
 
Parcel Identifier: 012-180-386, Lot 36 of Lots 4 and 5 Block 7 District Lot 549 Plan 1102 
 
Parcel Identifier: 012-180-611, Lot 37 of Lot 6 Block 7 District Lot 549 Plan 1163 
 
Parcel Identifier: 012-180-629, Lot 38 of Lot 6 Block 7 District Lot 549 Plan 1163 
 
Parcel Identifier: 012-180-637, Lot 39 of Lot 6 Block 7 District Lot 549 Plan 1163 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



$L 1/4
Division
Manager 1 CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Mike Friesen, Planner I
Larry Orr, Manger, Business Services

Subject: BREWERY AND DISTILLERY ACCESSORY LOUNGE USE - M-4
INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT AND 
LOUNGE ENDORSEMENT REFERRAL POLICY

Date: March 20,2019 File No: 08-3360-20-0437/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner I and Manager, Business Services, dated 
March 20, 2019, entitled “Brewery and Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 
Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral 
Policy”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” 
(Accessory Lounge Use) be considered and that the Public Hearing be waived;

THAT the attached “Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licences Policy” 
be endorsed subject to adoption of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2019 No. 8705” (Accessory Lounge Use);

AND THAT public notification take place as described in the report.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 8705 (Doc #1762075)
2. Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licences Policy (Doc #1759454)
3. M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone Properties Map (Doc #1700708)

Document Number: 1754726 V2



REPORT: Brewery And Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw
Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral Policy
Date: March 20, 2019

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present, for Council consideration, a Zoning Bylaw 
amendment to permit Accessory Lounge Use in the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone. A 
Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licences Policy, to guide staff on when to 
bring lounge endorsements - referred to us by the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch 
- to Council, is also presented for consideration.

BACKGROUND

Options concerning amendments to the M-4 Industrial Commercial zone were first presented 
to Council on September 24th, 2018 in a report requesting preliminary direction for a rezoning 
of 266 East Esplanade to permit a lounge accessory to brewery in a proposed development. 
At that time, Council referred the matter to a Policy Committee Meeting in order to hear from 
a broader range of constituents and to explore more thoroughly the implications of permitting 
lounges accessory to brewing and distilling uses prior to making a recommendation.

A Policy Committee Meeting was held February 4th, 2019, at which time staff presented the 
rationale for an amendment to the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone. Staff noted the proximity 
of the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone to the City’s cultural and commercial core, the potential 
economic development and place-making opportunities associated with small-scale 
breweries, and the support for small industrial entrepreneurs. Council directed staff to prepare 
an amendment to the City’s Zoning Bylaw and to present options for how the City will respond 
to referrals from the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch via the following resolution:

THAT staff prepare an amendment to the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone to support 
breweries and distilleries with an accessory lounge.

DISCUSSION 

Area Description

The subject area is located east of Lonsdale Avenue, with most of the properties located on 
the 200-block of East 1st Street and the 200 and 300 blocks of East Esplanade, although 
several sites extend west along the 100 block of East 1st Street (Attachment 3 - M-4 Industrial 
Commercial Zone Properties Map).

The area’s character is industrial, and the district hosts a range of light-industrial uses such 
as car garages, sign making studios, research laboratories, small-scale manufacturing, and 
an existing brewery. Adjacent to the City’s commercial and cultural core, the area is well 
served by transit, active transportation infrastructure, and civic amenities.

The light-industrial activity provides services and economic opportunities for the City and it 
acts as a buffer between the residential area to the north and the heavy industrial uses along 
the City’s eastern shoreline.

Page 2 of 6



REPORT: Brewery And Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw
Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral Policy
Date: March 20, 2019

Planning Policy

The City's Zoning Bylaw broadly prohibits various types of lounges which means that under 
our current process, every proposed Accessory Lounge Use would require a rezoning in order 
to be developed. The proposed amendments would significantly reduce the barriers to entry 
for potential brewers while still ensuring the City maintains important controls to ensure 
development is appropriate for the industrial character of the area and does not unduly 
nuisance nearby residents.

The subject area is designated Mixed Employment in Metro Vancouver’s Regional Growth 
Strategy (RGS). The proposed changes are consistent with the RGS and supports Goal 2 - 
Support a Sustainable Economy - through strategies 2.1 "Promote land development 
patterns that support a diverse regional economy and employment close to where people 
live” and 2.2 “Protect the supply of industrial land”.

The subject area is primarily designated Mixed Employment in the City’s Official Community 
Plan. The Mixed Employment designation is intended to promote light industrial uses with a 
limited commercial use. The Accessory Lounge Use permitted by the Zoning Bylaw 
amendment would be accessory to the brewery function and would not require an 
amendment to the OCP in order to take effect. The proposed amendments also align with 
The City’s cultural policies - such as the Lower Lonsdale Cultural Facilities Study - which 
strive to promote cultural, economic, and place-making opportunities in the Lower Lonsdale 
area.

Zoning Bylaw Amendment

The purpose of the Zoning Bylaw amendment (Attachment 1) is to permit Accessory Lounge 
Use where an approved brewing or distilling use is present. Several provisions of the City’s 
existing zoning bylaw necessitate this change, namely:

• Section 402 (19) which broadly prohibits various types of liquor licences; and
• The definition for Accessory Manufacturing Retail Use, which limits retail sale only to 

goods or things that are manufactured on site.

In order to address these restrictions, staff are proposing the creation of an additional 
accessory use for the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone: Accessory Lounge Use. Accessory 
Lounge Use would only be permitted accessory to a brewery or distillery

In order to ensure that the Accessory Lounge Use remains secondary to the primary industrial 
use, staff are proposing that the lounges are limited to 30% of the principal use’s floor area, 
up to a maximum of 80 m2 (861.1 square feet). This floor area must accommodate all 
commercial activities including customer seating and circulation areas, the bar, kitchen and 
food preparation areas, customer washrooms, merchandise and merchandise storage areas, 
proposed off-sale areas and any refrigerators or shelving associated with it as well as 
cashiers/order taking areas. In terms of numbers of patrons, it is expected that 80 m2 would 
result in a maximum of approximately 50 patrons. On-site patios would also be permitted, to 
a potential maximum area of 40m2. Although permitted by zoning, all patios will need to apply 
for an outdoor dining permit. Staff will review all applications and ensure that the design 
mitigates impacts on adjacent users to whatever extent possible.

Page 3 of 6



REPORT: Brewery And Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw
Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral Policy
Date: March 20, 2019

In order to support other small manufacturers and producers, staff are proposing an 
amendment to the definition of Accessory Manufacturing Retail Use in order to the sale of 
complementary items in addition to what is manufactured on site. This would permit, for 
example, a coffee roaster to sell a latte even though the milk was not processed on site, or a 
bicycle manufacturer to be able to sell a helmet and lock along with the bike that is 
manufactured on site

Staff are not proposing an increase to the parking requirements for Accessory Lounge Use. 
Although it is expected that the proposed changes will increase the number of visitors to the 
area, it is expected that this impact is mitigated due to several factors: firstly, the businesses 
are already served by parking and the Accessory Lounge Use will generate the greatest 
demand in the evenings and weekends when traditional industrial uses do not require 
significant parking resources; secondly, as these businesses are purveyors of alcoholic 
beverages, we are expecting that the majority of users will walk, bus or cab/carpool to the 
lounges which will reduce parking demand; and thirdly, that most breweries and Accessory 
Lounge Uses will be renovations of existing industrial buildings - rather than new 
developments - and requiring an increase of parking will likely make the use impossible on 
existing sites without a rezoning or development variance permit.

Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licences Policy

Should Council determine that a change to the Zoning Bylaw is appropriate, staff are 
requesting that Council endorse a policy that provides direction for when staff are to refer 
provincial “Lounge Endorsements” to Council. Should Council not consider the Zoning Bylaw 
amendment appropriate, there would be no requirement to endorse a new policy; all “Lounge 
Endorsements” would be considered as a part of a site specific rezoning.

Under current provincial liquor licensing regulations, manufacturers that want to add a lounge 
area must apply for a “Lounge Endorsement” on their Liquor License. Local governments are 
invited to provide comment on “Lounge Endorsement” applications. For each application, 
local governments have the option to provide comment or opt out of providing comment. If 
the local government chooses to provide comment, they are required to gather public input 
on the application. If local government opts out of providing comment (usually in cases where 
the zoning permits the use and there are no perceived impacts on adjacent uses) then the 
Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch conducts their own public consultation before a 
decision is made on the lounge application.

Staff are recommending Council adopt a policy (Attachment #2) which sets out the criteria for 
when staff will refer Lounge Endorsement applications to Council for comment. The criteria 
include:

• The entrance and/or patio of the proposed Accessory Lounge Use fronts onto 
or is directly adjacent to residential-only uses;

• The proposed Accessory Lounge Use proposes a roof-top patio;
• There have been past issues with the existing craft brewery business;
• Staff have identified other reasons to refer the issue to Council.

Page 4 of 6



REPORT: Brewery And Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw
Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral Policy
Date: March 20, 2019

Should any of these conditions exist, staff will conduct public consultation on the Lounge 
Endorsement application and subsequently refer the matter to Council for comment. If these 
conditions do not exist, staff will opt out of providing comments and allow the Province to 
conduct its review and public engagement.

Council may wish to review all lounge endorsements that are referred to us by the Liquor and 
Cannabis Regulation Branch. This option would result in prolonged processes for the 
businesses that are applying. Should Council prefer to have all lounge endorsements referred 
to them for consideration and comment, the following motion is recommended:

THAT staff refer all future Lounge Endorsement referrals to Council for 
consideration;

Public Hearing and Notification

Staff are recommending to waive the Public Hearing. The Policy Committee Meeting, which 
took place on February 4th, 2019, provided an opportunity for public feedback. Additionally, 
in the time since the Policy Committee Meeting there has been news coverage that has 
resulted in broad awareness of the proposed changes. Staff expect that should a public 
hearing be held, feedback would largely mirror that which was presented at the Policy 
Committee meeting; 39 public submissions were received prior to the Policy Committee 
meeting, all of which were in support of amending the zoning bylaw to facilitate lounges in the 
M-4 zone. A Waived Public Hearing would continue to allow for written comments to be 
received and considered by Council.

As the Zoning Bylaw amendment is proposing changes to more than ten properties, notice 
must be published in two consecutive issues of the local paper, but does not need to be sent 
to landowners of the area, nor does a sign need to be posted in the area. In order to ensure 
that stakeholders are well-informed and provided with adequate opportunity to comment, staff 
recommend sending notice to the property owners of all M-4 Industrial Commercial zoned 
properties and that three public notification signs be erected at the three primary access 
points to the area: the corner of East Esplanade and St. Georges Avenue; the corner of East 
First Street and St. Georges Avenue; and the corner of East First and St. Patricks Avenue.

Should Council wish to hold the Public Hearing, the following motion is recommended:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” (Accessory 
Lounge Use) be considered and that the public hearing be scheduled.

Advisory Body Input

The topic of breweries and lounges in the M-4 Industrial Commercial Zone was presented to 
the Advisory Planning Commission at their November 14th, 2018 meeting. The Commission 
was supportive of the proposed changes and carried the following motion unanimously:

THAT the Advisory Planning Commission supports amending the M4 zoning to 
consider lounges accessory to beer or spirit production and recommends staff 
consider the following elements in crafting the policy:

• Preservation of light industrial;

Page 5 of 6



REPORT: Brewery And Distillery Accessory Lounge Use - M-4 Industrial Commercial Zoning Bylaw
Amendment and Lounge Endorsement Referral Policy
Date: March 20, 2019 __________________________

• Placemaking including food truck colocation, precinct branding and alleyway 
animation; and

• Ensure sufficient transportation access, including adequate parking, bike 
facilities and walkability.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

With the combined economic development and land use implications of the proposed 
changes, this report has been prepared as a collaboration between the Planning and 
Community Services Departments.

The City’s Building and Development Services departments have reviewed the Zoning Bylaw 
amendments and are supportive of the proposed direction. The Building Department did note 
that new breweries and distilleries - and any proposed Accessory Lounge Use - will be 
required to conform to the BC Building Code and will be subject to Metro Vancouver’s

Page 6 of 6



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705 Document: 1762075-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BYLAW NO. 8705 
 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 
 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” (Accessory Lounge Use). 
 
2. Division I: Administration of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

A. In Part 2: Interpretation, adding the definition for “Accessory Lounge Use” as follows: 
 

“Accessory Lounge Use” means the retail sale of alcohol, the majority of which is 
brewed or distilled on site, with food and other beverages for on-site consumption. The 
use is only permitted accessory to distilleries or breweries. 

 
B. In Part 2: Interpretation, deleting the definition for “Accessory Manufacturing Retail 

Use” in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“Accessory Manufacturing Retail Use” means the retail sale of goods or things that 
are manufactured on-site, as well as complementary items. For purposes of this 
definition, manufacturing means assembling, fabricating, producing, or repair of goods 
or things. 

 
3. Division III: Zone Standards of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

A. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, adding to Section 701 (6) as follows: 
 

(f) Accessory Lounge Use, subject to Section 702 (7); 
 

B. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, deleting Section 702 (4)(b) in its entirety and replacing it 
with the following: 

 
(b) together with Accessory Retail Service Group 2 Use, shall not occupy a 

combined area of more than 30% of the Gross Floor Area of the Principal 
Industrial Use; 

 
C. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, adding to Section 702 as follows: 

 
(7) Accessory Lounge Use 

 
(a) shall be completely enclosed within the Principal Building; 
(b) together with Accessory Retail Service Group 2 Use and Accessory 

Manufacturing Retail Use, shall not occupy a combined area of more than 
30% of the Gross Floor Area of the Principal Industrial Use to a maximum 
of 80 square metres (861.1 square feet); 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705 Document: 1762075-v1 

(c) notwithstanding 702 (7)(a) and 702 (7)(b), an on-site outdoor patio is 
permitted with a maximum area which shall not exceed 50% of the 
permitted Accessory Lounge Use. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



City of North Vancouver 
COUNCIL POLICY  
 

Document Number: 1079208 V1 City of North Vancouver Council Policy - Page 1 

Policy Name: Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licensing      
Policy  

Policy Number:  

 

POLICY 

Lounge Endorsement for Manufacturing Liquor Licensing Policy applies to applications from 
liquor manufacturers (distilleries, breweries and wineries) for a Lounge Endorsement.  

REASON FOR POLICY: 

Under current provincial liquor licensing regulations, establishments operating with a 
Manufacturing Liquor License (craft breweries, distilleries and wineries) can apply for a 
Lounge Endorsement which would allow them to have a lounge area where patrons can 
purchase and consume products as opposed to just sample. Adding a lounge area to a liquor 
manufacturing business provides support for small industrial entrepreneurs, assists with the 
sustainability of the business and contributes to place-making and community economic 
development. 

Current provincial liquor licensing regulations require Lounge Endorsement applications to be 
referred to local government. Local government has the option to provide comments on the 
application or to opt out of providing comments. This Policy provides the criteria which will be 
considered to determine when to refer Lounge Endorsement applications to Council for 
comments.  

AUTHORITY TO ACT 

Administration of this Policy is delegated to the Community and Partner Engagement 
Department. 

 

 

 

 

 



City of North Vancouver Council Policy - Page 2 

PROCEDURE 

Staff will refer Lounge Endorsement applications to Council if any of the following conditions 
exist:  

• The Accessory Lounge Use fronts onto or is directly adjacent to residential-only uses;  
• The proposed Accessory Lounge Use is a roof-top patio; 
• There have been past issues with the business that is applying for the endorsement; 

and 
• Staff have identified other reasons to refer the application to Council for comment. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Approval date:  Approved by:  
    
    
    
    



Ro
ge

rs
 L

an
e

St
. P

at
ric

ks
 A

ve

St
. G

eo
rg

es
Av

e

Lo
ns

da
le 

Av
e

E 6th St

St
. A

nd
re

ws A
ve

W Esplanade

W 1st St

W 2nd St
E 5th St

Alder St

Wallace M e ws

E 4th St

E 1st St

E Esplanade

E 2nd St

E 3rd St

Victory Ship Way

Low Level Rd

City of North Vancouver

M-4 Zoning:

PUBLISHED: September 13, 2018 

PATH: H:\CNV_Maps\Comm_Devt\M4_Zones\
COORDINATE SYSTEM: NAD 1983 UTM Zone 10N

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

0 50 100 150
Meters

FILE: M4_Zoning_8_5x11

Legend
M-4 Zoning Sites

Legal Parcels

Park

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

Se
a 

Bu
s

Fe
rry

Con
ne

cti
on

Squamish
Nation

Industrial - Commercial
Sites

Overview







141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG                  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (WAIVED)

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider:

Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705
to permit Accessory Lounge Use 
in the Industrial-Commercial (M-4) 
Zone.  Accessory Lounge Use will 
only be permitted accessory to 
active distilleries or breweries and 
will be limited to 30% of the gross 

use to a maximum of 80 sq. m. (861 
sq. ft.).  An on-site outdoor patio, 
not to exceed 50% of the permitted 
Accessory Lounge Use area, would 
also be permitted.

the above proposal, please forward 
written or email submissions, 
including your name and address, 
to the City Clerk, at input@cnv.
org, or by mail or delivered to City Hall.  Submissions must be received 
no later than 4:00 pm, Monday, April 15, 2019, to ensure their availability 
to Council.  No further information or submissions can be considered by 
Council after third reading of the bylaw.

The proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw and background material will be 
available for viewing at City Hall between 8:30 am and 5:00 pm, Monday to 
Friday, except Statutory Holidays, from April 5, 2019, and online at 
cnv.org/PublicHearings.

Please direct any inquiries to Mike Friesen, Development Planner, at 
mfriesen@cnv.org or 604-990-4206.

E 2nd St

LowLevel Rd

Alder St

E 1st St

E Esplanade
Victory Ship Way

E 3rd St

E 4th StLo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

St
 G

eo
rg

e’s
 A

ve

W
al

la
ce

M
ew

s

St
 A

nd
re

w
’s 

Ave

Subject area

WHO: City of North Vancouver

WHAT: Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment
 Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705 (Accessory Lounge Use)

WHEN: Monday, April 15, 2019 at 6:30 pm
 Council Chamber, City Hall
 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705 Document: 1762075-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BYLAW NO. 8705 
 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 
 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705” (Accessory Lounge Use). 
 
2. Division I: Administration of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

A. In Part 2: Interpretation, adding the definition for “Accessory Lounge Use” as follows: 
 

“Accessory Lounge Use” means the retail sale of alcohol, the majority of which is 
brewed or distilled on site, with food and other beverages for on-site consumption. The 
use is only permitted accessory to distilleries or breweries. 

 
B. In Part 2: Interpretation, deleting the definition for “Accessory Manufacturing Retail 

Use” in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 
 

“Accessory Manufacturing Retail Use” means the retail sale of goods or things that 
are manufactured on-site, as well as complementary items. For purposes of this 
definition, manufacturing means assembling, fabricating, producing, or repair of goods 
or things. 

 
3. Division III: Zone Standards of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

A. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, adding to Section 701 (6) as follows: 
 

(f) Accessory Lounge Use, subject to Section 702 (7); 
 

B. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, deleting Section 702 (4)(b) in its entirety and replacing it 
with the following: 

 
(b) together with Accessory Retail Service Group 2 Use, shall not occupy a 

combined area of more than 30% of the Gross Floor Area of the Principal 
Industrial Use; 

 
C. In Part 7: Industrial Zones, adding to Section 702 as follows: 

 
(7) Accessory Lounge Use 

 
(a) shall be completely enclosed within the Principal Building; 
(b) together with Accessory Retail Service Group 2 Use and Accessory 

Manufacturing Retail Use, shall not occupy a combined area of more than 
30% of the Gross Floor Area of the Principal Industrial Use to a maximum 
of 80 square metres (861.1 square feet); 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2019, No. 8705 Document: 1762075-v1 

(c) notwithstanding 702 (7)(a) and 702 (7)(b), an on-site outdoor patio is 
permitted with a maximum area which shall not exceed 50% of the 
permitted Accessory Lounge Use. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 1st day of April, 2019. 

READ a second time on the 1st day of April, 
2019. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2019. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CITY CLERK 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1095176 V1 

PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES 
 
Public Hearings are generally held on the third Monday of the month and are included as part 
of a Regular Council agenda.  Public Hearings are governed by the provisions of the Local 
Government Act. 
 
A Public Hearing is held for the purpose of allowing the public an opportunity to make 
representations to Council – in person at the Public Hearing or by written submission – on a 
proposed amendment to the City's Official Community Plan and/or Zoning Bylaw.  All persons 
who believe their interest in property is affected by a proposed bylaw(s) are afforded a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard, voice concerns or present written submissions regarding 
matters contained within the bylaw(s). 
 
All written submissions and representations made at the Public Hearing form part of the official 
public record.  Minutes of the Public Hearing and a video recording of the proceedings are 
posted on the City’s website at cnv.org. 
 
A sign-up sheet is located outside of the Council Chamber 1.5 hours prior to the start time of 
the Public Hearing and members of the public may sign the sheet if they wish to speak at the 
Public Hearing.  The sign-up sheet remains available until the commencement of the Public 
Hearing and is restricted to “In Person” sign-up only.  Other persons are not permitted to sign 
the sheet on another speaker’s behalf.  Speakers cannot pre-register. 
 
Please restrict comments to the issues related specifically to the proposed application; do not 
divert to other matters and avoid repetitive comments. 
 
Speakers are requested to provide their name and address for the public record and are 
provided up to 5 minutes to present their comments.  After all people listed on the sign-up 
sheet and anyone else in the gallery have spoken a first time, speakers may come forward to 
speak a second time if they have any new information to provide.  The Chair (Mayor) may 
restrict the speaking time to a defined number of minutes and may also impose other 
regulations.  Procedural rules for the conduct of the Public Hearing are set at the call of the 
Chair. 
 
Everyone shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard and no one should feel 
discouraged or prevented from making their views known.  All persons in the gallery are 
requested to refrain from applause or other expressions, either showing support or opposition 
to an application. 
 
If a large turnout for the Public Hearing is anticipated, separate sign-up sheets may be 
provided for speakers – in support and in opposition/with concerns.  The sign-up sheets are 
monitored by City staff.  The Chair will call each speaker to come forward by name, alternating 
between the sign-up sheets. 
 Continued… 
 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1095176 V1 

PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES (continued) 
 
A document camera is available should a member of the public wish to display hardcopy 
material/information on the monitors in the Council Chamber.  The document camera can also 
display information from an iPad or tablet.  If a member of the public wishes to provide written 
material to the Mayor and Council, it must be handed to the City Clerk for distribution to 
Council. 
 
Members of Council may ask questions of a speaker in order to clarify or expand on a 
speaker’s submission.  However, the main function of Council members is to listen to the views 
of the public regarding the change of land use in the proposed bylaw(s).  It is not the function 
of Council to debate the merits of an application with speakers at the Public Hearing.  
Questions from members of the public and Council must be addressed through the Chair. 
 
When the Public Hearing concludes, Council moves a motion to adjourn.  No further 
information or submissions can be considered by Council once the Public Hearing is closed. 
 
Following adjournment of the Public Hearing, the Regular meeting reconvenes and the Zoning 
and/or Official Community Plan bylaw amendment(s) are discussed and debated by Council.  
Consideration of third reading and discussion of the bylaw(s) usually takes place at the same 
meeting as the Public Hearing, but may occur at a subsequent meeting. 
 
If there is insufficient time for the Public Hearing to be conducted in one evening (i.e. to 
accommodate a large number of speakers), Council may recess the Public Hearing to a 
specified date, time and place. 
 
Council will consider final adoption of the bylaw(s) after third reading and once all covenants 
and legal agreements are in place.  Adoption usually occurs at a subsequent meeting of 
Council; however, a Zoning Bylaw amendment or Official Community Plan Bylaw amendment 
may be adopted at the same meeting as the Public Hearing if all legal requirements have been 
satisfied. 
 


	1 Agenda�
	2 Minutes�
	Proclamations
	Day of Mourning�
	Neighbourhood House Week
	MS Awareness Month

	*3 Bylaw 8536�
	*4 Bylaw 8707�
	*5 Bylaw 8708�
	*6 Bylaw 8709�
	*7 Board in Brief�
	*8 Shipyard Artifacts - Report�
	IR Apr 9 2019�

	*9 LMLGA Conference - Report�
	10 Affordable Housing - Report�
	10-1 Reserve Fund Overview�
	10-2 Draft Terms of Reference�

	11 Sunrise Parkland - Report�
	12 Bylaw 8706�
	13 2019 Tax Rates - Report�
	14 Bylaw 8704�
	Public Hearing - 125 E 20
	Report - 125 E 20
	1-Map
	2-Summary
	3-Plans
	4-Ltr from VRS
	5-Relocation Materials
	6-Design Rationale
	7-ADP Resolution
	8-Consultation

	Staff PP
	Applicant PP
	Submissions
	Notice

	15 Bylaw 8701�
	16 Bylaw 8702�
	Public Hearing Waived - Accessory Lounge Use
	Report - Accessory Lounge Use
	1-Bylaw 8705
	2-Proposed Policy
	3-Map

	Submissions
	Notice

	17 Bylaw 8705�
	PH Guidelines�



